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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEEBARR S

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a loss of HK$36.8 million
from its continuing operations (2022: HK$176.4 million) and a loss
of HK$8.8 million from its discontinued operations (2022: HK$5.8
million). Losses attributable to the owners of the Company for the
Year from its continuing and discontinued operations were HK$36.8
million and HK$40.6 million (2022: HK$176.4 million and HK$0.7
million) respectively.

The Group's revenue from its continuing operations was
approximately HK$21.7 million, representing an increase of 42.1%
as compared to the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Group's continuing operations comprised of five segments,
namely (i) trading of optical frames and sunglasses, (ii) film
investment and distribution, (iii) property investment, (iv) debts and
securities investment, and (v) energy business.

During the Year, the Group disposed of its subsidiaries which were
engaged in the manufacturing of optical frames and sunglasses
(details in “Material Acquisition and Disposal” below). The trading
of optical frames and sunglasses segment was introduced upon
the disposal of the manufacturing and trading segment. Such new
trading segment contributed approximately HK$7.8 million revenue
since October 2022.

Revenue from film investment and distribution dropped from
HK$14.0 million in the prior year to HK$12.6 million in the Year,
while the segment loss dropped significantly from HK$91.1 million
in the prior year to HK$8.4 million in the Year. The loss in the prior
year was mainly attributable to fair value loss in investments in film
production and impairment loss on investment in an associate of
HK$42.8 million and HK$46.1 million, respectively. During the Year,
impairment loss on investment in an associate of HK$9.6 million
was recorded.

For property investment, rental income remained stable at
approximately HK$1.3 million (2022: HK$1.3 million).

For debts and securities investment segment, the Group did
not record any revenue for both years. As at 31 March 2023,
the fair value of the Group’s securities investment amounted to
approximately HK$0.2 million. The management will continue to
adopt prudent approach under the volatile financial market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS W

For energy business, the Group did not generate any revenue
during the Year (2022: Nil).

The manufacturing and trading of optical frame and sunglasses
business contributed HK$16.4 million revenue during the Year
before its disposal (2022: HK$40.9 million). The discontinued
segment recorded a segment loss of HK$17.8 million during the
Year (2022: segment profit of HK$5.7 million).

Portion of the Group's property investment business was disposed
of together with the disposal of the subsidiaries engaged in
manufacturing business. Such discontinued segment generated
revenue HK$0.3 million during the Year (2022: HK$0.6 million).

PROSPECT

The cost saving measures of the Company has demonstrated
some positive outcomes. Upon the disposal of its manufacturing
of optical frame and sunglasses business, the Group has released
its financial burden associated with the disposed subsidiaries.
The Directors believe the shift from production to solely sourcing
finished goods directly from more competitive suppliers would
allow the Group to minimise unnecessary production cost,
turnaround from the loss-making operations and improve the
Group's financial position in the long run.

Subsequent to the easing of social distancing restrictions in the
Year, it is observed that the box office have rebounded significantly
as the reopening of the cinema and audiences release their pent-up
demand for entertainment. Concurrently, blockbuster film releases
have progressively gained momentum both internationally and
domestically. Box office receipts have rebounded significantly as
audiences release their pent-up demand for entertainment, in light
of the recovery of the film industry, management has proactively
looking for promising projects. The Company intends to undertake
new film investments in the coming financial year and is currently in
preliminary discussions with potential projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTERMRRS I

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any material capital
commitment (2022: HK$247 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no significant liabilities (2022:
Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 9 August 2021, Green Source Global Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into subscription
agreement with H. Sterling (the “Subscription Agreement”) to
subscribe 50% of the enlarged issued share capital of H. Sterling at
a total consideration of RMB223 million. H. Sterling indirectly owns
21% equity interest in the Yantai LNG. Yantai LNG is principally
engaged in the gas operation, import and export of goods and
technology and import and export agency services, and is a project
company established to implement the Terminal Project. As at 31
March 2023, the conditions precedent as set out in the Subscription
Agreement are not fully fulfilled or waived. The Group is following
up refund of the deposit paid under the Subscription Agreement.
For details, please refer to announcement of the Company titled
“DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION SUBSCRIPTION OF 50% OF THE
ENLARGED ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE TARGET COMPANY”
dated 9 August 2021.

On 28 September 2022, the Group entered into a Sale and
Purchase Agreement pursuant to which the Group agreed to
sell its 55% shareholding in an indirect non-wholly subsidiary at
a consideration of HK$21 million. The principal asset of this 55%
owned indirect non-wholly subsidiary is its indirect equity interest
in properties located in Dongguan City. For details, please refer
to the Company’s announcements dated 28 September 2022 and
10 October 2022. Completion took place by 31 October 2022 and
this indirect non-wholly subsidiary had ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Group. As at 31 March 2023, deferred consideration of HK$11
million will be paid by the Purchaser to the Group as to HK$5
million and HK$6 million on 28 September 2023 and 28 September
2024 respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS W

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCE AND
GOING CONCERN

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$7.4 million (2022: HK$18.8 million) and
the Group's debt to equity ratio (expressed as a percentage of
non-current liabilities over equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was approximately 1.9% (2022: 13.2%). The non-current
liabilities of the Company mainly comprised of deferred tax
liabilities, deposit received and lease liabilities amounting to
approximately HK$1.2 million, HK$0.5 million and HK$nil (2022:
HK$2.1 million, HK$0.5 million and HK$19.0 million), respectively,
which came up a total amount of approximately HK$1.7 million
as at 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$21.6 million). The Group's equity
attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 March 2023 was
approximately HK$86.4 million (2022: HK$163.2 million). As at 31
March 2023, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by HK$2.8 million (2022: current assets exceeded its current
liabilities by HK$15.7 million).

A series of plans and measures have been taken to mitigate
liquidity pressure and to improve the financial position of the
Group. In order to enhance the liquidity and improve the financial
position of the Group, the Group has obtained external credit
facilities.

Details regarding uncertainties on the going concern of the Group
and the respective plans and measures are set out in the section
headed “Going concern basis” in Note 3 to the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2023, the Group employed 40 (2022: 194) full time
employees in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Salaries, bonuses
and benefits are determined with reference to market terms and
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee, and are subject to review from time to time.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year (2022: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BTERMRRS I

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Being one of the major traders and exporters of optical frames,
the Group has put its emphasis on product quality and production
technology development. Putting the customers’ needs on the
highest priority, the Group always strives to provide customers with
first class service and full satisfaction.

The Group is also actively identifying and exploring other
investments and business opportunities to broaden its assets and
revenue base. Potential acquisitions or mergers will be assessed by
the Board for expansion of the business segments of the Group.
The Board believes diversified investments are beneficial to the
interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) and are in
addition to the matters referred to the Management Discussion and
Analysis.

In the normal course of business, the Group's operations, business
performance, financial position and prospects may be exposed to
the following risks and uncertainties:

1. Economic Conditions and Market Risk

The impact of economic conditions on consumer confidence
and buying habits will affect the sales, revenue and results
of the Group. The economic growth or decline in respective
geographical markets that affected consumer spending
on our products will also affect the Group's business. The
Group continues to implement its strategies to develop and
strengthen penetration of different geographical markets
thereby reducing its dependence on specific markets.

2. Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables, accruals and deposits received, lease liabilities
and interest-bearing borrowings. The management will closely
monitor the risks attributable to those assets should there
be any significant exposure arise in the future. Details of the
Group's credit and liquidity risks are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMRRS W

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

3.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact
of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets and
liabilities, mainly bank balances at prevailing market interest
rates. The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However,
the management will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi (“RMB"”) and United Stated dollar
("USD"). As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the USD, the
Group does not foresee any material exchange risk in this
respect. The management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BE - HERELHSE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This report highlights its Environmental, Social, and Governance
(the "ESG") performance by the Group, with disclosure reference
made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("“Stock Exchange”).

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two
areas, namely, environmental and social areas of the business
operations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Company has complied with all “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide and followed the following
reporting principles in the preparation of this ESG Report:
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency.

e  Materiality
The Group determines ESG issues that are significantly
important by stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment. Details are explained in the sections headed
"Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” of
this ESG Report.

e Quantitative
Information is presented with quantitative measure,
whenever feasible, including information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions used and provision of
comparative data.

e Balance
This ESG Report identifies the achievements and challenges
faced by the Group.

e Consistency
This ESG Report is the fourth ESG Report of the Group. This
ESG Report will use consistent methodologies for meaningful
comparisons in the following years unless improvements in
methodologies are identified.

The information contained herein is sourced from internal
documents and statistics of the Group, as well as the
combined control, management and operations information
provided by the subsidiaries in accordance with the Group's
internal management systems. In the event of contradiction
or inconsistency between the Chinese version and the English
version, the English version shall prevail.

FE KRB EHE
HHERFAANEERRE LB REE (R
SoHeghERDITEZRE H2EER
BEaRXZMARRAR ([BXFA])EHF L™
BAI(TEmRAN) M 8R27FT R IR IR -+
ERERHREESIMME-

ARE HENERREREAEE N E
K BB EEEBHNIRIE Mt & m (E 55
ZEERE-

ARARDETRE HENREERERESIM
EOMABAITETHBREIRE TERH
ARE HENMEARERHKE THERR
228 B FEk M-

- EHEM
AREBERN SRR BRES
MR EHESMER HE
REABE AW ERARE R
REABE [RFEAMERR R
[EE P () M e

- Eit
ERAITTHBR T ERUNELFTEE
25 BEABEABEE - HE R
BRI RBUIBNE R -

. Ff
AERRE HEREABMERNAEER
B BX Bt N P TED T e PR o

e —HM
AREFE - HEREABRE/AEED
FONRFE HERERARS AR
B HeREAREARARBFHERD
— B TEER B RN LE R
B I35 B P BCERR S -

ARF-HERERREMEE R K
B A& B B R R M RS BUE - A
Ko e B B8 2 MR IR AN SR 1B AR 2R A
FRHENEH EBEREEEHES
15 o fis o 28 SRR AR B (E AT HE A = A
28 A RIRA R -

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -EREIHBE

Reporting Boundary

Unless otherwise stated, information disclosed in the ESG Report
covers the Group's businesses including (a) the trading of optical
frames and sunglasses; (b) the property investment segment; (c) the
debts and securities investment segment; (d) the film investment
and distribution segment; and (e) the energy business segment.

STAKEHOLDE ENGAGEMENT

The Group understands the concerns of its stakeholders through
day-to-day communications. Stakeholders’ opinions are the solid
foundation for the Group’s sustainable development and success.
They help the Group to develop a business strategy that meets
the needs and expectations of stakeholders, enhance the ability
to identify risk and strengthen important relationships. The Group
communicates with its stakeholders through various channels,
shown as below.

Stakeholders
BinE

Communication Channels

BERE

Government and regulatory authorities

BT REE#E

information
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Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other public
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Investors and Shareholders °
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o Company website

DR

Annual general meetings and other general meetings of shareholders
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. Press releases/announcements

I YN

o Annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and other public

information
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -eREIHS

Stakeholders Communication Channels

FinE BERE
Customers J Email and customer service hotline
5P BEBLREPRBAR
o Business meetings
ER4
o Company website
NGIFENS
Suppliers o Email and customer service hotline
e EBLREPRBAR
o Business meetings
Ea
J Contract and agreements
Bk 4% e 22 Bk
] Company website

NGIFENS

ESG GOVERNANCE

The Board supports the Group’'s commitment to fulfilling
its environmental and social responsibility and has overall
responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting.

The Board oversees the ESG strategies, policies, objectives and
targets. The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of
the implementation to the senior management and department
heads. Senior management advises and supports the Board on
ESG matters, strategies, policies, manages and monitors ESG
performance and targets. Departments implement ESG policies
and related initiatives. The Board regularly reviews the Group's ESG
performance and examines and approves the Group's annual ESG
report. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing ESG-
related issues.
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SUSTAINABILITY VISION

Our vision and aspiration are:

1. To be a pioneer and a leader in the industry with a portfolio
of transformative and innovative products for our customers;

2. To ensure that our business is sustainable and profitable
providing healthy and long-term returns to our shareholders;

and

3. To build a high-performance team with good business culture
and robust engagement of internal and external stakeholders.

Our commitments are:

1. To do business in environmentally-friendly way to conserve
resources;
2. To create a positive impact and contribute to our

communities; and

3. To be an effective organization that enhances integrity and
high operational standards.
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BOARD STATEMENT
Dear Stakeholders:

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Director(s)”), | hereby present to you the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") Report for the year ended 31 March 2023,
providing an overview of the Group’s management on significant
ESG issues that have impacts on the operation.

Over the past years, the Company has conducted materiality
assessments of ESG issues concerned by its stakeholders, in
which the Board participated in the evaluation, prioritisation,
and management of important ESG issues and put in place an
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
supervision system.

The Group's business operations unavoidably result in
environmental impacts and contribute to climate change, either
directly or indirectly. We, based on the interests of stakeholders,
advocate waste reduction and improving resource efficiency. The
Group has established short-term and long-term sustainable
development goals to reduce emissions in accordance with
governmental requirements. To promote sustainable development,
we enhance our safety management system to ensure the safety
and health of employees. We acknowledge the importance of
managing ESG impacts in the supply chain, protecting the interests
of local communities, and complying with all applicable laws and
regulations.

Moving forward, the Group remains committed to pursuing a better
society and achieving common prosperity for enterprises, society,
and the environment. We strive for a win-win situation for all
stakeholders and aim to be a positive force for social stability and
upward progress.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited
Chung Yuk Lun
Executive Director

Hong Kong
30 June 2023
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B HRREAHS
A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. IR
Type of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting AEBRBREPBEZESIREN A
period was mainly electricity, gasoline, water, paper and K AROR - EEEYEHERR R -
waste.
The business does not involve in production related air and ZEBLE P RZER R T H)5LHEE
land pollutions which are regulated under the laws in Hong WEE BRASEAIXBEBRPBIEE
Kong and in the PRC. FTiRE -
Total floor area coverage for the Group was 450,089 sq.ft. NEE 2 FT7B & R R ST 18 /450,089
(2022: 450,089 sq.ft.) and the Group accounts for 100% of FHER (ZF = —F :450,089F F
emissions from its operations in the PRC and Hong Kong. ER) MASERPBRES ZFED
EEBERE2100% °
Greenhouse Gas Emission im = R BB HE
Change in
Scope of Greenhouse Emission Emission
Gas Emissions Emission Sources (in tonnes of CO.e) (in percentage)
ERE ERESL
RERRBHNEE BEROKRR (MBS {LREEsT) (B9E)
31 March 31 March
2023 2022 2023 vs. 2022
—E¥Z= T R =FH
ZEA=+—-B Z=A=1+—-H ZZZ-FUK
Scope 1
gEM
Direct Emission Unleaded Petroleum 53.6 57.1 (6.0)%
BEHER Consumed by
Company owned fleet
ARABREHREREZ
BT
Scope 2
EE2
Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 1,437.6 2,675.3 (46.3)%
B BAEN
Water Consumption 11.8 16.5 (28.5)%
ke
Sewage Consumption 3.9 5.4 (27.8)%
AEFE
Scope 3
gE3
Other Indirect Emission Paper Consumption 8.8 25.4 (65.4)%
Hoth PR B2 R R IERE
Total 1,515.8 2,779.7
et

=B EEBR AR 2022/2023 35 15
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Removal of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRE - HERE

BRREREHBE

Unit 2023 2022 Changes

B Z—ZFTZ= B 21t

Total Greenhouse Gas Emitted (a) tCOse 1,515.8 2,779.7 (45.5)%
BERBHENEE(Q) ZELREE

Total Floor Area Coverage (b) ft2 450,089 450,089 0%
F7E & v BEEAE(b) FHHER

Annual Emission Intensity (c) = (a)/(b) tCO,e/ft? 0.003 0.01 (70.0)%
FEHBEE () = (a)/(b) ZEtREE
SERER

There was 1,515.8 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and
nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group's operation in the
reporting period. The annual emission intensity was 0.03
tCO,e/ft? (2022: 0.01).

Water

Water consumption by the Group was 26,292 m? (2022: 37,282
m3), with water intensity of 0.06 m3m? (2022: 0.08 m3/m3).
The Group actively promotes water efficient practices so
as to reduce water wastage caused by human error and
unintentional switching mistake.

Electricity

The electricity consumption by the Group was 2,047,281
kWh (2022: 3,809,919 kWh), with an energy intensity of 4.5
kWh/m? dropped from last year (2022: 8.5 kWh/m?) despite
positive business growth. The Group advocates employees
to switch off idle lightings, computers, office equipment
and air-conditioning systems when they are not in use. The
Group continues its commitment in installing and switching to
energy-saving lighting fixtures and sourcing energy efficient
equipment to ensure functioning in optimal conditions and
efficiency.

Gasoline

A total of 31,965 liters of gasoline (2022: 34,014 liters) was
used for motor vehicles and production equipment in the
reporting period, contributing to 53.7 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (2022: 57.1 tonnes). Regular maintenance
on the Group's vehicles is carried out to ensure a high fuel
efficiency to reduce emissions.
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Paper

The Group continues to practise paper saving initiatives, such
as default double-sided printing, reminder for staff to have
environmentally friendly photocopying habit, and separated
collection of waste paper for effective recycling. A total of 1.84
tonnes of paper (2022: 5.72 tonnes) has been used for daily
office operations and advertising materials such as leaflet,
catalogue, sales kit.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Wastes from the Group's operation includes cellulose acetate
sheets, packaging materials, scrap metal, scrap equipment
and scrap papers for production and office use for sales and
marketing purposes.

Non-hazardous waste includes waste papers of approximately
0 tonnes (2022: O tonnes). All of the aforesaid wastes have
been collected by licensed recycling companies. Packaging
materials such as paper boxes and carton containers used
for packaging were also collected by licensed recycling
companies.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The business activities of the Group have no direct/significant
impact on environment and natural resources. The Group
nonetheless commits to using natural resources efficiently
while we encourage the reuse and recycling of materials
during our daily operations. In addition, the Group is
committed in applying industry best practices and complying
with legislation, establishing and reviewing safety, security,
and environmental goals and targets, effectively using
energy and materials, reducing waste and emissions, and
communicating our environmental protection policy to all
employees.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises that businesses must take
responsibility for being a role model of industry in relation
to sustainability of the environment, and we should bear the
responsibilities and fulfill the obligations in protecting them.
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Climate Change

The Group is aware that climate changes would have
significant impact on its business operations and its property
may be damaged by extreme weather conditions, e.g.,
tropical cyclones, rainstorms and earthquakes, which may
further affect the safety of our employees. The Group
identified, evaluated and managed the climate-related
risks. During the Reporting Period, the Group has not been
seriously affected by extreme weather conditions as the Group
has set up various emergency plans to prevent the disruption
of our business operations and to safeguard the safety of
our employees such as working arrangement under tropical
cyclone warning signal no. 8 or above, and black rainstorm
warning. The Group will continue to closely monitor the effect
and potential risks of climate change, and to improve and
implement the measures taken to reduce such climate-related
risks. Set out below are risks that the Group identified.

Physical Risks

Physical risks are the risks that may potentially cause physical
impact to our Group's operations. For instance, extreme
weather may disrupt supply chain and hence reduce revenue
and increased costs from business; and the increase in global
temperature may lead to an increase in energy consumption
by our Group's offices. We expect that it would not have a
material impact on our operations and financial performance
in the short or medium term. A range of measures, such
as contingency plan for extreme weather or emergency
conditions, are in place to enhance the resilience of the
Group's operation to such risk.

Transition Risks

Transition risks are the risks related to the transition to a
lower-carbon economy, which may entail extensive policy,
legal, technology, and market changes to address mitigation
and adaptation requirements related to climate change.
For instance, (i) regulators may impose more stringent
ESG-related disclosure requirements; and (ii) technological
advancements may affect our ability to compete unless we
invest in the relevant technology. Such changes may therefore
result in increased operating costs for us. The Group shall
regularly monitor existing and emerging trends, climate-
related policies and regulations.
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B. SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

Employment

The Group had a total number of 40 employees as of

#HE

BIEREIER

1 1%

%jzi_?:—i A=+-8 &%

31 March 2023 (2022: 194), in which 100% was working as full AHELIOZ(ZZEZZF :1948)
time staff. 1@;\ TEH100% B EBE T .
Compensation and dismissal B X %
2023
Number of
employees
EEAH
Employee structure EE%RE
By gender =R El 5
Male S 21
Female egid 19
By age group RER AR S5
Under 35 35mIA T 2
36-55 36 E555% 25
Over 55 55 A & 13
By category RERE 5
Management EIRE 11
General Employees —REE 29
By geographical region RBES S
Hong Kong E 34
PRC A 6

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional
opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract
and retains talents. Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on a
yearly basis based on performance appraisals and the market
trend. Employees are entitled to year-end bonus, mandatory
provident fund, medical insurance, various types of paid leave
in addition to annual leave and sick leave.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group treats all employees equally. Their employment,
remuneration and promotion will not be affected by their
social identities such as ethnicity, race, nationality, gender,
religion, age, sexual orientation, marital status, pregnancy,
disability and political beliefs. The level of compensation of
our employees is reviewed annually in an annual appraisal on
their performance basis, during which process each employee
is given equal opportunity for promotion.

Kﬁlhyﬂﬁ%ﬁz M-ﬁﬂ%
ﬁ%&@ﬂ B LA S| R A
ﬁ' FeNBRESTELETSEBEM
ﬁimﬁ&mﬁlﬁaT¥ﬁ¢%
RN AES BERBURER
RmEBANN ZBEHRE -

ERREH
K%@iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%%&%ﬁ%‘
FHEkEATEXINERK Bk B
%4‘1 MR R e MERE - BRI
Lg@ BRERBARESSELE SN
Fﬁ“ 2 - AEESFRETBFIX
BIREEBRR W EHHAKF £
ZBRET BEREREHEAFFEAK

= o
=

=R BEEEEBR AR 2022/2023 £ 19



20

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -eREIHS

SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Working hours and rest periods

The Group understands the importance of “work-life balance”
to its employees and adopts five to six days workweek
dependent on level of duty and nature of operations involved
to ensure that the employees have adequate rest. The Group
determines working hours and rest periods for the employees
in line with Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and
employment contracts with the employees. In addition to
statutory holidays, the employees are also entitled to other
paid holidays including annual leave, sick leave, marriage and
compassionate leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and
compensation leave.

Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
The Group is dedicated to promoting the value of diversity
and recognizes the importance of having a workforce with
different backgrounds and perspectives for the organization's
success. In such regards, the Group is committed to creating
and maintaining an embracing and collaborative workplace
culture. The Group aims to provide equal opportunities in
all aspects of employment and ensure the workplace is free
from discrimination, physical or verbal harassment against any
individual based on race, religion, colour, gender, physical
or mental capability, age, place of origin, marital status,
and sexual orientation. The Group also strives to ensure
that complaints, afflictions and concerns, including whistle-
blowing, are dealt with promptly and confidentially.

The Group regularly reviews employee handbook which
outlines the Group's key messages, policies, procedures,
promotion channel, compensation and benefits, occupational
health and safety, complaint and whistleblowing channels.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
(Continued)

B. #& (#&)
BRERSIESR (F)
Sl FERERRER (F)

2023
—g=-=
Number of
employees
EEANE
Annual turnover rate EEREKE
By gender R E 5
Male St 12
Female gegid 8
By age group RERARE S
Under 35 355 AR 12
36-55 36B% £555% 5
Over 55 558k A E 3
By category RER &5
Management BIRE 0
General Employees —RER 20
By geographical region i = 2| 5
Hong Kong BB 0
PRC + 20

Occupational Health and Safety Data
The Group is committed to providing employees a safe,

healthy and hygienic working environment. The following

sets out the practices adopted by the Group in relation to
workplace:

Office employees are assigned with individual
workstations. Offices are properly lit and ventilated, kept
clean and tidy with ample space between workstations;

Cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection
treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;
First-aid boxes are set up in the offices; and

Office furniture and fittings are well-maintained and
replaced when necessary.
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELRSE

#HE (&)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued) EERLTEE (8
Occupational Health and Safety Data (Continued) BERERTEE (8)
2023 2022
—F=Z= =
Work related fatality HITIEERET 0 0
Work injury cases > 3 days ITHMER(FKN3A) 0 0
Work injury < 3 days T (LR3E) 0 0
The total days lost due to work injury ETEEXBTEEH 0 0
Employee Health and Safety EEREHZR

The Group commits to ensure safe and healthy working
environment for employees and to inspire and strengthen
workforce regardless of their age, gender and ethnical
backgrounds. With the aging population being a long-term
demographic trend in Hong Kong, the Group has a
sustainable workforce in this perspective.

The Group regularly reviews the employees’ health and safety
procedure to safeguard employees’ well-being. Briefing,
training, news and tips are provided to employees to raise
their awareness on safety production process.

There was no lost day due to work injury in this reporting
period. The management will continue its effort in
strengthening the Group’s occupational health and safety
performance.

Development and Training

Comprehensive professional training is provided to employees
to deliver top services to our customers. For the Reporting
Period, 10 employees have received training, representing
25% of the employees of the Group, with the average training
hours of 3 hours for male and average training hours of 2
hours for female.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practices (Continued)
Labour Standard

Neither child nor forced labour was in the Group’s operations
in the reporting period. It is in compliance with the
Employment Ordinances, both in Hong Kong and the PRC in
terms of employment management.

The recruitment process is strictly abided by the guidelines
of the Group’s Human Resource Department. Every job
applicant is required to fill in their information in a recruitment
questionnaire, which is checked by Human Resource
Department to ensure information’s accuracy. This also allows
the Group to hire suitable candidate in accordance with the
job requirements and candidates’ expectations.

Employment Communication

The Group actively engages and motivates employees
through various communication channels. The regular update
on website keeps employees updated on corporate news and
activities. The Group also organized annual dinner, festival-
related celebration, sport and volunteer works, etc. to nourish
a greater sense of belonging and to provide enhanced
communication channels between senior management and
general staff. The Group believes having better transparent
governance and investing efforts and hours on our best asset,
employees, is the key to success of a sustainable business.

Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement,
and compensation and benefits. The employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities on the
basis of gender, ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual
orientation, age, marital status, family status, retirement,
disability, pregnancy or any other discrimination prohibited by
applicable law. The Group also appreciates the importance
of cultural diversity in the development of the business, and
employs employees in a wide range of ages, genders, and
ethnicities.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

A strict tendering process is also in place to provide a fair
and transparent platform for securing the best supplier for
procurement of all equipment, products and services.

Supplier

Suppliers for products, semi-products, spare parts, raw,
treatment and packaging materials range from France,
United Kingdom, Germany, ltaly, Japan, Taiwan, the PRC
and Hong Kong. They are selected based upon rational
and clear criteria, such as production process, quality
management system, regulatory requirement compliance,
operating capacity, sample availability for testing, packaging,
management’'s commitment, training policy and procedure,
price, delivery assurance, and product recall policy, so as
to procure superior goods and services from the most
competitive sources. Additional information such as
observation results after suppliers’ production plant visits
is used to evaluate the suppliers in order to have the best
selected providers. The Group also monitors the overall
performance of selected suppliers by conducting vendor
audits with documented reports to substantiate the selection
and on-going cooperation.

During the Reporting Period, there were 57 suppliers of the
Group, all of them are located in Hong Kong & PRC.

Product

To provide top quality services to customers, the Group
carefully sourced its raw materials and equipment with
standardized procurement procedure and policies. The
Group's procurement policy and its comprehensive
procurement management systems help screening out
undesirable products in the aspects of raw materials
and ingredients selection, product formulation, product
packaging, quality management system in factories,
transportation, etc.

Product Responsibility: Product recall policy

The Group maintains a good record of zero product recall
this year, nevertheless the Group continues its commitment
to consumer safety and protection by having product recall
procedures and policy in place.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -EREIHBE

SOCIAL (Continued)
Operating Practices (Continued)

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policy

The Group's Information Technology Department has devised
a comprehensive data protection policy to provide adequate
protection and confidentiality of all corporate data and
proprietary information. To comply with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance, Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong
and to protect the rights of employees, customers, and
business partners, access control protocol is clearly defined
to limiting the access to a system or to physical or virtual
resources. The Group employs a comprehensive enterprise
resources planning system for its finance-related operations
to ensure privacy and maintain information confidentiality.
The Group strictly abides with the regulation in the collection,
usage, handling, and storage of data to ensure data integrity
and safety.

Anti-corruption

The Group commits to manage all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness
as its core values. All directors and employees are required
to strictly follow the Code of Conduct and Group's policy
to prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group
or our employees. The Group endeavours to protect the
whistle-blower from common concerns such as potential
retaliation and is assured that their identity as a whistle-blower
will be kept confidential.

Community Investment
The Group is committed to supporting the public by means
of social participation and donation and putting the best
effort into helping the local communities and people in need
through community services and engagement, social support
and sponsorship programs.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any
donations (2022: Nil).
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -eREIHS

DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

The Group will continue actively sourcing energy-saving appliances,
equipment and materials with careful selection and review of
suppliers and their origins. Opportunities to work with other charity
partners and more training and development in terms of raising
staff's awareness on environmental and social impacts from the
business will also be considered. The Group also recognises the
trend and possibilities with applying digital technologies in daily
office operations and marketing strategy, therefore resource use
and promotional tools in the future will be adapted to make the
businesses more transformative, sustainable, as well as having
greater capability to attractive future talents.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude to all of our staff and fellow directors for their
contributions, support and dedication. | would also like to thank
our customers, shareholders, bankers, suppliers and other business
partners for their continuous support.

Chung Yuk Lun
Executive Director

Hong Kong
30 June 2023
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Profiles of Directors

EFEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHUNG YUK LUN, aged 62, had been appointed as an executive
director of the Company from 29 September 2018 to 11 January
2019 and was reappointed on 15 July 2019. He is also the company
secretary, an authorised representative and a consultant of the
Company. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an ICAEW Business and Finance Professional. He has
over 30 years’ management experience at board level in a number
of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chung is currently (i) an executive director, company secretary
and authorised representative of China Come Ride New Energy
Group Limited (Stock code: 8039); and (ii) the company secretary of
QPL International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 243), all are listed
company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Chung was previously the company secretary and authorized
representative of Life Healthcare Group Limited (Stock Code: 928),
a listed company in Hong Kong, until 31 March 2023.
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Profiles of Directors
EEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MAN WAI LUN, aged 50, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 11 January 2019. He
is the chairman of both of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.
Mr. Man obtained his diploma in Business Management from the
School of Continuing Education, Hong Kong Baptist University in
April 2003 and obtained a bachelor degree of accountancy from
the University of South Australia in March 2007. Mr. Man has over
16 years of experience in accounting.

Currently, Mr. Man is an independent non-executive director of
Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
GEM of Stock Exchange (stock code: 8147), an independent non-
executive director of Momentum Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1152), an executive director of Century Group International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2113) and Life Healthcare Group
Limited (stock code: 928), all companies are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.

He was previously an executive director of China Clean Energy
Technology Group Limited (stock code: 2379), a listed company in
Hong Kong, until 3 October 2022.

He was previously an independent non-executive director of China
Trustful Group Limited (Stock Code: 8265 delisted on 12 November
2021) until 9 November 2020 and an executive director of CT
Environmental Group Limited (Stock code: 1363 delisted on
10 September 2021) until 19 April 2021.

CHENG CHUN MAN, aged 61, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since 15 July
2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 30 years’
experience in accounting, auditing, consulting and management.
Mr. Cheng was previously an independent non-executive director of
Life Healthcare Group Limited (stock code: 928) until 30 November
2021, a listed company in Hong Kong.
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Profiles of Directors
EEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HUI MAN HO, IVAN, aged 44, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
31 March 2020. He is a member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Hui holds master degree in Practising Accounting, master
degree in Applied Finance and a bachelor degree in Business
(Banking & Finance) from Monash University, Australia. He is also
a member of CPA Australia. Mr. Hui has over 15 years of working
experience in auditing, accounting, financial management and
corporate finance. Mr. Hui is an independent non-executive
director of Upbest Group Limited (Stock Code: 335) and Zhejiang
United Investment Holdings Group Limited (Stock code: 8366). He
was previously an independent non-executive director of Prime
Intelligence Solutions Group Limited (Stock Code: 8379) from
January 2018 to December 2021. All are listed companies in Hong
Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The statement of corporate governance practices set out below and
information incorporated by reference constitutes the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

The Board is committed to ensuring and maintaining high standard
of corporate governance practices and procedures in fulfilling its
responsibilities. It is the belief of the Board that shareholders can
maximize their benefits from good corporate governance. The
Company has always recognised the importance of transparency
and accountability. The Group has adopted the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance practices. The Directors of the Company consider that
the Company has complied with the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2023 (“Year"), except for the following deviations:

Code provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that there should be a clear division
of responsibilities between management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of business. Upon the resignation of Mr.
Yu Baodong as chairman of the Board on 11 October 2022, the
Board did not appoint any Director as its Chairman. The Board
will review the present situation in the coming regular meetings as
appropriate.
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Corporate Governance Report
ERELIERS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Code provision D.2.5

Code provision D.2.5 stipulates that a listed company should
have an internal audit function. For the year, the Company has
outsourced the internal audit function on analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management
and internal control systems on trading of optical frames and
sunglasses segment to independent professional firm(s). The Board
will perform such functions on all segments in the coming year.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to cultivating a corporate culture,
focusing on customer oriented, excellence in products and
services, people first and law compliance, which is underpinned by
its purpose and values that enable employees at all levels of the
Group to thrive and meet their full potentials by acting in a lawful,
ethical and responsible manner that allows the Company to deliver
sustainable long-term performance and operate in a way that
benefits society and the environment.

The Company’s purpose and values serve as a guide for employees’
conduct and behaviours, ensuring that they are integrated
throughout the Company’s operational practices, workplace policies
and practices and stakeholder relationships:
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY
(Continued)

The management is responsible for setting the tone and shaping
the corporate culture of the Company, as well as defining the
purpose, values and strategic direction of the Group, which are
under review by the Board. Taking into account the corporate
culture is reflected in various contexts, such as workforce
engagement, employee retention and training, legal and regulatory
compliance, staff safety, wellbeing and support, the culture,
purpose, value and strategy of the Group are aligned with one
another.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers under Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry to all Directors of the Company, all of
them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of the success of the Group in
the interests of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its
affairs and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the
financial and management performance of the Group.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of four Directors, including
one executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Yuk Lun and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”), namely Mr. Man
Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun Man and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. As least
one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as prescribed
by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

To ensure independent views and input are available to the Board,
the following mechanisms were established:

o sufficient number of INEDs in a total of three, representing
more than one-third of the Board;

o no INED has served the Board for more than 9 years;

J separation of the role of the Chairman and the management
ensures that there is a balance of power and authority; and

o annual meeting between the Chairman and all INEDs without
presence of other Directors provides an effective platform for
the Chairman to listen to independent views on various issues
concerning the Group.

During the Year, the Board reviewed implementation of these
mechanisms and determined that they remain effective except
the Board did not appoint any Director as its Chairman upon the
resignation of Yu Baodong on 11 October 2022. The Board will
review the present situation in due course.

Board Diversity

The Company also adopted the Board Diversity Policy setting out
the approach to achieve a diverse Board with a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives to the business nature of
the Company. In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a wide range of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. The merits and contribution that
will bring to the Board for any Director proposed for re-election
or any candidate nominated to be Director will also be assessed,
taking into account the Company’s corporate strategy and the mix
of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) EEE (&)
Board Composition (Continued) EETHEK (&)
Board Diversity (Continued) BEEgz ot (B)

The current Board composition reflects a diverse mix of educational BENEEEABERKRBTANHEE
background, professional knowledge, industry experience and R EBERXRNB TELEBREBRBEFENSZ T
length of service. The diversity mix of the Board as at 31 March e - R-_TE-_=F=fA=+—H E=F

2023 is summarized as follows: gL bBAEAmT
(i) Board Composition, Gender Distribution, Age Distribution () EFSASHEK 15 Fhe
and Length of Service R IR FE

Number of Directors
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

Board Diversity (Continued)

(i) Directors’ Skills and Experience
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Number of Share of the
Areas of Experience Directors Board
EEEE EEAH EEEMGLL
Related Industry Knowledge/Experience 4 100%
BT EE, KR
Business Management 4 100%
[EE -
Legal/Regulatory 0 0%
EREE
Financial & Accounting 4 100%
e BmEst
Strategic Planning & Risk Management 4 100%
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The Board's gender diversity level is yet to achieve as all four
directors are male. During the Year, the Nomination Committee
recommended and the Board approved a target of having no
less than 20% female directors on the Board. The Nomination
Committee proposed to appoint a female director by 31 December
2024 for achieving the gender diversity target of the Board. The
Nomination Committee will continue reviewing the composition of
the Board to maintain diversity.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from Mr. Man Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun Man and Mr. Hui Man Ho,
Ivan as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The composition of the Board will be reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section “Profiles of Directors”
of this annual report.

Appointment and re-election

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In
addition, every Director shall retire from office no later than the
third annual general meeting after he/she was last elected or
re-elected or ceased to be a Director and been re-elected by a
general meeting at or since either such annual general meeting.
Further, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting of the Company according to the new Bye-
laws to be adopted and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Company has published the procedures on its website for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director.

Duties of the Board

The Board formulates the overall policies and strategies, monitors
the financial performance, oversees the management, and
implements good corporate governance practices of the Group.
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs.

The Directors meet regularly to review the financial and operational
performance of the Group by discussing and formulating the
Group's development plans. Daily operations and administration
are delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's
management. The members of the Board are mostly professionally
qualified and widely experienced personnel who bring in
valuable contribution providing different professional advices and
consultation for the development of the Group. They provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Functions of the Board

During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, 7 Board meetings
were held. The attendance records of each Director at the
meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and general meeting of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out as follows:

BE_T_=F=A=+—BLMBFE"
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Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ BITERERY
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of directors EEgE EXE BEEEE REZEZEE HFWEEE BREXE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun EEBEE 717 111
Mr. Yu Boadong (resigned on EREE (R-FE-—F#+H+—H 2/5 11
11 October 2022) BHE)
Mr. Wong Chong Fai (resigned on BRBEE (R=F-=F+A+—H 4/5 01
11 October 2022) )
Independent Non-Executive Directors B EHITES
Mr. Man Wai Lun XEBLE 717 3/3 11 1” 1”
Mr. Cheng Chun Man HBIREEE 717 3/3 " 11 11
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan HELE 1 3/3 1”1 11 11

All the regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance, and
at least 14 days' notice is given to all Directors to give them an
opportunity to attend. Agenda and accompanying Board papers are
normally sent to all Directors in advance of every Board meeting to
enable the Directors to make informed decisions on matters placed
at the Board meetings. All Directors have been consulted about any
matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
the company secretary, all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings, so that Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner.

Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary and
are open for inspection by any Director. All Directors have access to
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
the Directors.

During the Year, the Chairman held a meeting with INEDs without
the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with code
provision C.2.7 of the Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Functions of the Board (Continued)

The Company has received confirmation from each director that
he has given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during the Year. Directors have also disclosed to the
Company the changes, if any, in the number and nature of offices
they hold in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitment, including the identity of the public companies or
organizations and an indication of the time involved.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on the
relevant Board resolution and he/she shall not be counted in the
quorum present at such Board meeting.

Directors’ continuous professional development
The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities as
directors of the Company.

In addition, each newly appointed Director would be provided with
an induction package covering the duties and responsibilities of
directors under the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and
other related regulatory requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ continuous professional development
(Continued)

The Company provided updates and reading material (“CPD")
to keep the Directors informed on a timely basis about the latest
major developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements affecting the Group or their duties and
responsibilities as the Directors as well as the macro economics
and general business environment in which the Group’s major
operations are operated. The Company, through CPD, enhances
Directors’ awareness and keeps them abreast of the essences and
key areas of such updates and information. Such CPD is an efficient
and effective way which offers flexibility to the Directors by allowing
them to access the information at a time suitable to them. All
Directors are required to provide the Company with their training
records on an annual basis. A summary of their training records
during the year ended 31 March 2023 is as follows:

EEE(E)
EFEZHEFEER (H)

AATRGEHRER REEMR ([HES
LR ) EEFARNEEYEREEN L
FTRUREMEAEERENRFEAS
RERASEZSEAESAMBRET UK
AEEIRLERENEREERRRE
BEEEE-AAR BB ERLRER
BEFETESE BERSLESHEFR
ERHNBBREOND REREILUE
FAMERENN UTREEEEREAE
EEEHEH -2 BEELEAAL TR
B B E YRS TR D RERBE
—E-=4=A=t-BiEEHEIR
S E

Type of training activities

Topics of training covered

Pt 2 3l £

Name of directors EEgE sl E &R

Executive Directors BiTES

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BREMEE

Mr. Yu Baodong TEREE (RZF_—F
(resigned on 11 October 2022) THT—HEE)

Mr. Wong Chong Fai BEIEELE (RZF_—F
(resigned on 11 October 2022) THT—HEE)

Independent Non-Executive BUFHITES
Directors

Mr. Man Wai Lun XEHEE

Mr. Cheng Chun Man BRREE

Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan BB

Webinars and/or seminars.
BERTER/AHHE -
Reading newspapers and
journals relating to directors’
duties and responsibilities as
well as updates on the Listing
Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements.
BEEWESRAEREEUR
BT LHRARAMEREE
RESMEHNBRE KRBT -

Corporate governance
txER

Finance and tax

B R B
Regulatory

]
Business Management/Economy

ABER/RE

SHENEREEBAER DA 2022/2023 £33 39
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RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Board
is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in annual and interim reports and other financial
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. With the assistance of Finance Department,
the Directors prepare the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with statutory requirements and prevailing accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for timely publication
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 66 to 74 of the annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in June 2005 and its terms of
reference were amended on 29 March 2012 and 30 December
2022. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Man Wai Lun (Chairman),
Mr. Cheng Chun Man and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. The major
duties and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
but not limited to making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual directors and senior
management of the Company. It is also mandated to review
and approve compensation payable to the directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office to ensure that it is
consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the reporting
year and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed "Functions of the Board” of this report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
summarized as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2.  to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

7.  to review and approve compensation arrangement relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has, among others
things, reviewed the remuneration packages of all directors
and senior management with reference to market terms, their
duties and responsibilities and performance as assessed by the
Remuneration Committee, and has made recommendation to the
Board accordingly. Pursuant to E.1.5 of the Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the members of senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows:

FMEEE (8)

RAFEE FMEE@C (EhEE)Z2E
MEGER 2BESTRERAEEABZR
BBRAELRR (EFMEBESTE)HE
EZHEMS RETER ITF&EF?%%A?E
HEZZE - REBEFRIFEENSK BE
F=A=t+-ALEFEREELSZER
EEABZFEHFMAFRBOT:

Number of employees

BEEAE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,0005% 7T 8
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0015% 7t 2 1,500,0007% 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t Z2,000,0007% 7T 1
Total BEt 10

Details of the emoluments of Directors are set out in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company had adopted a specific terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee as of 29 March 2012 in accordance with
Rules 3.25 to 3.27 of the Listing Rules which has been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established in June 2005 and its terms of
reference were amended on 6 September 2013. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Man Wai Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Chun Man and
Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan. lts main duties and functions include but
not limited to review of the structure, size, composition and the
diversity policy of the Board and the selection or recommendations
to the Board for nomination on directors and senior management.

The Nomination Committee may identify potential candidates from
any source as it may consider appropriate and evaluate them by
considering various factors, including their professional expertise,
industry and business experience, time commitments, potential
contributions to board diversity, material conflict of interest with
the Group (if any) and independence (for INEDs). The Committee
will then make recommendation for suitable candidates to the
Board for consideration of appointment. In case of reappointment
of existing Directors who will retire at an annual general meeting
("AGM"), the Committee will review the rotation and retirement of
Directors and make recommendations to the Board accordingly.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the reporting
year and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “Function of the Board” of this report:

1. review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
4. review on directors’ contribution in performing their

responsibilities;

5. make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive of the Company;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

6. review the board diversity policy of the Board or this
Nomination Committee, as appropriate, considering factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background and professional experience of Board
members, and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy, and
the progress on achieving the objectives; and

7.  conform to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in
the constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation, where appropriate.

A board diversity policy had been formulated and adopted by the
Board in 2013. The Company recognises the importance and values
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. Appointments to the Board will largely be based
on meritocracy with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. Selection of candidates will generally be based on factors
considered applicable and adopted by the Board, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Company had adopted a revised specific terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee as of 6 September 2013 and it has been
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in 1999 and its terms of reference were amended by
the Board and became effective on 23 February 2016 and 1 March
2016 respectively. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Chun Man
(Chairman), Mr. Man Wai Lun and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. Mr. Cheng
Chun Man possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as prescribed
by the Listing Rules. None of them is employed by or otherwise
affiliated with former or existing auditors of the company.

The main duties and functions of the Audit Committee include
but not limited to review of the relationship between the
Company and its external auditors, review of the Group's financial
information, oversight of the Group's financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems, assessment on any
potential special risks to be encountered by the Company and
review on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the Year. Minutes
of the Audit Committee are kept by the secretary of the Audit
Committee and the copies of the minutes are sent to all members
of the Audit Committee. The outcomes of the Audit Committee
meetings were submitted to the Board for consideration and action
where appropriate.

The accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the meetings held in the Year, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

1. reviewed the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2022 (“Previous Year”) and the
related annual results announcement with a recommendation
to the Board for approval.

2. reviewed the relevant disclosures made in the Directors’
Report of the Annual Report in the Previous Year.

3. met with the external auditors in the Previous Year and
discussed the audit findings reported by external auditors.

4. assessed broadly any special risks faced by the Group and
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the Previous Year
and concluded that the Group operated at a manageable risk
level and kept on improving the management system.

5. reviewed the reports including the 2022 audit planning report
and the management letters (if any) submitted by the external
auditor.

6. reviewed the Group's unaudited consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2022 and
the interim results announcement with recommendation to
the Board for approval.

7. considered those topics, which were requested by the Board
and reviewed those relevant documents.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were amended and
took effect by the Board on 23 February 2016 and 1 March 2016
respectively. Such amendments in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code under the Listing Rules have been posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment of CCTH
CPA Limited as the external auditors of the Group for 2023/2024
and that the relevant resolution shall be put forth for consideration
by the shareholders of the Company and their approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM").

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board performs the following corporate governance functions
during the Year:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conducts and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

(f)  to adopt new anti-corruption policy and procedures and
the revised inside information policy and procedures of the
Company.

All committees established under the Board are required to report
back to the Board on their decisions or recommendations, unless
there are legal or regulatory restrictions on their ability to do so
(such as a restriction on disclosure due to regulatory requirements).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun is the current company secretary of the
Company. The company secretary, whose appointment
was approved by the Board, complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements under the
Listing Rules. All Directors are entitled to have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, who is responsible for
providing Board papers and related materials to Directors in order
to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and
regulations are followed.
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AUDITORS' INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditors, CCTH
CPA Limited, are independent and has recommended the Board to
re-appoint them as the Company'’s auditors at the AGM.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the remuneration paid or
payable to the Company’s auditors, CCTH CPA Limited is set out as
follows:
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CCTH CPA Limited

ohIF X 15 E5HAm

Services rendered Frig (AR 7S HRAT
HK$'000

FAT

Audit services EZR 1,193
Non-audit services IEEZ RS -
Total @t 1,193

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Code.

(1) Procedures for shareholders to convene a

special general meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Board
shall, on a requisition in writing by any shareholder made
in compliance with the applicable law to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company holding not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company, forthwith proceed to convene a special general
meeting ("SGM”) in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM for a day not later than two
months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
do so but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, shareholders
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
general meeting of the Company. The number of shareholders
shall represent not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting, or shall not
be less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the general meeting. It must
also be signed by all of the shareholders concerned and be
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong at Room 22, 22/F, On Hong Commercial
Building, 145 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the
attention of the company secretary not less than six weeks
before the general meeting. In case of a requisition requiring
a notice of the resolution, the requisition must be served to
the Board not less than one week before the general meeting.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's expenses
in giving the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned under
applicable laws and rules.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company's Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F,
Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's Road, North
Point, Hong Kong. Shareholders and the investment
community may during office hours make a request for the
Company's information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Shareholders may also send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board by addressing to the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business of the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
all shareholders. The Company establishes different communication
channels with shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (ii) updated key information of the
Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) the Company’s website offers communication
channel between the Company and its shareholders and investors.

The annual general meeting is a channel for the Board of Directors
and the sub-committees of the Board to address concern of
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting. Notice of the annual general meeting and related
papers will be sent to shareholders at least 21 clear days before the
meeting and the said notice is also published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

A. Objectives
The Board is responsible to ensure that adequate systems of
internal control and risk management (“Control Systems”) are
maintained within the Group, and to review their effectiveness
through the Audit Committee. The Control Systems are
designed to meet the Group's particular needs and the risks
to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement
or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure
in achieving the Group’s objectives. Practicable and effective
internal control systems and procedures and risk management
systems have been implemented by the Group to enhance
internal control and risk management on an ongoing basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (Continued)

B. Internal control
The Board .

Audit Committee

The management o

Internal Audit °
Function

ensure the maintenance of
appropriate and effective Control
Systems in order to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and assets
of the Group;

define management structure with
clear lines of responsibility and limit
of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of
significant risk (including ESG risks)
that the Company is willing to take
in achieving the strategic objectives
and formulate the Group's risk
management strategies.

oversee the Control Systems of the
Group;

review and discuss with the
management annually (including
ESG risks) to ensure that the
management has performed its duty
to have effective Control Systems;
and

consider major findings on

internal control matters and make
recommendations to the Board.

design, implement and monitor
the Control Systems properly and
ensure the Control Systems are
executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures
to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations;

give prompt responses to, and
follow up the findings on internal
control matters; and

provide confirmation to the Board
on the effectiveness of the Control
Systems.

carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the
Control Systems, and the details
are set out in the section headed
“Internal Audit Function” of this
report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL EEEBRRNIPEEE (E)

CONTROL (Continued)

Risk management

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and
review.

The management conducted interviews with relevant staff
members, reviewing relevant documentation of the internal
control system, identifying and evaluating findings of any
deficiencies in the design of the Group's internal control
system, providing recommendations for improvement and
following up on the effectiveness of implementation of such
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope and findings
of review on the risk management and internal control are
reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

Certain significant risks have been identified through the
process of risk identification and assessment. Such significant
risks of the Group and their respective key strategies/control
measures are set out on pages 8 to 9 of the Management
Discussion and Analysis of this report.

Control approach

The scope and findings of review on the risk management and
internal control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually. Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines are in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance
of proper accounting records in compliance with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use and/or external
publication.

Management confirmation

The Board had received a written confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Control Systems
of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board, upon
reviewing the Control Systems, were not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Control Systems.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Control Systems for the
year ended 31 March 2023. The review identified the findings in
internal control system of the Company, the risks associated with
operating units of the Company and the recommendations to
rectify the findings in internal control systems and to lower the risks

identified.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Control Systems
in respect of financial, operational and compliance aspect annually
and considers that the Control Systems are adequate and effective.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting functions, and consider that they are adequate.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The Company has taken, and continues to take steps to promote
diversity at all levels of our workforce. We provide equal
opportunity to all employees regardless of gender, age, family
background, ethnicity, religion, nationality, sexuality, disability,
and other aspects of diversity and are against any forms of
discrimination.

As of 31 December 2023, our total workforce comprised of 45%
female and 55% male.

Therefore, no plan or measurable objectives were deemed
necessary for enhancing gender diversity at workplace.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy where the
Company would, where the situation allows, declare dividends to
shareholders taking into consideration the Group's distributable
profits generated during the Year, the financial situation and
liquidity of the Group, the funding needs for future investment and
development purposes. The payment of dividend is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda and Hong Kong as well
as the Bye-Laws of the Company.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION
OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance ("SFO") and the Listing Rules in relation to
the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

Anti-corruption policy is established to outline the Group's zero-
tolerance stance against bribery and corruption and assists
employees in recognising circumstances that may lead to or
give the appearance of being involved in corruption or unethical
business conduct, so as to avoid such conduct which is clearly
prohibited, and to promptly seek guidance where necessary or
report any reasonably suspected case of corruption or any attempts
thereof, to the management through an appropriate reporting
channel.
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Report of the Directors

EFERE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

During the Year, the Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the trading of optical
frames and sunglasses, property investment, debts and securities
investment, film investment and distribution and energy business.

Further discussion and analysis of the activities as required by
schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 4 to 9 of this annual report. The discussion forms
part of this Directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 and its financial
position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 75 to 222.

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

Results

MHEEFRBE
AEERBEEEERREMBHRRIEE
FI(ER) 2 BERBEVRERE 2B T E
FEUMEE BAERFERESHEHRN
TX B IFRBZ G A M HRRNA
BB ©

E4
Year ended 31 March
gE=A=1+—HILEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—¥=f —ZT_C T ZTITF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET TR FAET
REVENUE Wz 38,451 56,800 53,930 66,246 178,951
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REZEHRE (45,668) (182,210) (18,166) (101,685) (102,841)
Attributable to: THIA LA :
Owners of the Company RN RI#EA A (77,389) (177,076) (15,274) (98,399) (99,090)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE1E % #E 25 31,721 (5,134) (2,892) (3,286) (3,751)
(45,668) (182,210) (18,166) (101,685) (102,841)
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests SE - BEERIEEIRREZ
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=f —T-— “E-—% ZZ-TF —T—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TAT FTAET TAT TAT

TOTAL ASSETS BERRE 148,350 263,011 400,510 379,664 427,737

TOTAL LIABILITIES EER%E (61,948) (11

NON-CONTROLLING FEEREE
INTERESTS - 1

6,216) (128,018) (159,106) (129,289)

6,409 10,954 8,837 4,971

86,402 163,204 283,446 229,395 303,419
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the reporting year are
set out in note 14 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 March 2020 to provide incentive or rewards to
participants including the Directors and eligible employees of the
Group. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
31 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the reporting year are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity set out on page 80 of this annual
report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, no reserve of the
Company (2022: same) is available for distribution or paying
dividends to the Company's shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Bye-Laws and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the reporting year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun
Mr. Yu Baodong (resigned on 11 October 2022)

Mr. Wong Chong Fai (resigned on 11 October 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Man Wai Lun

Mr. Cheng Chun Man

Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In
addition, every Director shall retire from office no later than the
third annual general meeting after he/she was last elected or
re-elected or ceased to be a Director and been re-elected by a
general meeting at or since either such annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Chung Yuk Lun and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan will retire
by rotation at the AGM in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. All of the abovementioned directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from all the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Man
Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun Man and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. The
Board considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 27 to 29 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the Group's business were
entered into or existed during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link of
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current market best practice). Remuneration should be
paid with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives,
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the executive and non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group
and applicability of performance-based remuneration. The
Directors’ fees are paid in line with market practice, subject to the
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to mandatory provident fund schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to financial performance of the Group and individual
performance and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10
to the financial statements.
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SRIRBEMSER T AN EABEBRRR
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Long positions in shares and underlying shares

Number of ordinary

EREFRTHASKIRG RHE
Rz EmRiRE

Rzt kARG ZFE

Number of

=
5

Approximate

underlying ordinary percentage of

shares of the shares held under shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest Company interested Share Option Scheme (Note 1)
BEEBZEAT R s R st &l BmaRE S
EEMAE EaMg LTERBE HENHEALTERKE (Kiz£1)
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun ("Mr. Chung”) Beneficial owner = 8,000,000 0.92%
BEEBEE ([EEE]) BB A (Note 2) (H15t2)
Notes: Kt -
1. Based on 872,863,684 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 1. RBRER-_ZFT-_=F=A=+—HBHE %
March 2023. 872,863,684M AN A R AR AT H o
2. These underlying shares were share options granted by the Company under 2. ZERAROGARARR=_ZE=_—F=A+hHA

the Share Option Scheme on 19 March 2021 and accepted by Mr. Chung on
1 April 2021 at exercise price of HK$1.33 per share.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 March 2023, so far as is known
to any Director or chief executives of the Company, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii) required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO;
or (iii) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

RFERE SR BAOBEE LhELER =
E_—FMA-HER TEE/TRIIIJET

BREXFIBREEN BEZ_ZTZ_=F=H
=t+—H BAEFNESHARREZTHA
BRTA EEXARAETETHAERER
RRAFIREEAAEEE (Ex RFH K
BB EXVER) iR - HBEE AR D S EH P
}f?&ﬁ VEREFE S R E RO EXVEETR
F8 A e AR A M B 32 T B9 1 ) 4 &= 3k
KB R(N)VESHERARRREZESLE
1'ﬂ§ﬂ%3521l7'<5’]%ﬁi?‘ﬁﬁ’]iﬁéﬂﬂ%ﬁ@fﬂﬂ%
HIOAR  KGINVBREBERETREASITAE
KRB R FTH R SOA B -
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EFERE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors nor their respective
close associates was interested in any business which was
considered to compete or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed in the Related Party Transactions disclosures set
out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, none of
the Directors or his connected entity had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

EFRERGHBEHFZHEF

RAFRERRANFEEREMERE AQF -
HEEFZERAR HEBRRXRFRME LR
MBI L EML HEARAEFTLE
ZITBRAER RESBZHEBHIBEHENA T T
o RAEBARRBSEMNEMEABRRLZ
Bein i 5 M 2k o

EFENHGEERPHER

RZBE-=F=A=1+—H BEEEXRE
EEAZETHBEALTRERAEEZRHE
BEAEBEBBRS IR ATEBRES
ZEMEBFHEERE ETRBIATIHEE

EENEXX S THIASHR
BEX 5 2

BREeMBRAMEIVAEBEALRS
BEMBEEN RAFE BEEFHH
REBEREARRNEEMIERAAE B
RAHFARMBRAMATLAEAEEE
BEABBEAZEMNRS RHIRANTER
SEEEBEERN S -
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

R H M AR5 R4
2t

A—E_=F=ZA=+—H U TEXRA
BT i IR 5% bA £ 2 #E s A
BRI AN 2 RIAR IR 75 55 I HE B (6 5] 553361678
TIFE 2w S :

Long positions 59—
Number of Percentage
Capacity/ ordinary shares of issued
Name Nature of Interest interested voting shares
1EE 1T
MRSz FEREERHG
HE L8 S EiEREE =5, 174
Osman Bin Kitchell Beneficial Owner 142,297,719 16.30%
EnEA A
Mr. Wong Hoi Fung Beneficial Owner 49,020,000 5.62%
THEELEE EnEA A
Mr. Wong Chong Fai Beneficial Owner 45,000,000 5.16%
=AML AL En#EA A
CDM Trust & Board Services AG Trustee 124,898,000 14.31%
XFEA
Albert Yeung Capital Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 124,898,000 14.31%
ZEHEE S
Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of a discretionary trustee 124,898,000 14.31%
5= WIEEFE 28I A
Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 124,898,000 14.31%
7N Pic (5 7 2
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, no person, other B EXWEEN RS _=F=A=1+—

than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

B BREALXEFREETHRABRK
D MARBERR ) < m KRR | — B8 S
MARBESI BEALTRARA RN K
HERD T EERARERF LA ED
3361 T AR BB IR -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme"”) on 16 March 2020 to provide incentive or rewards to
participants including the Directors and eligible employees of the
Group. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25
August 2021, the Company was authorised to refresh the scheme
mandate limit to issue a maximum of 87,286,368 share options
under the Share Option Scheme. More information can be referred
in the Company'’s circular dated 26 July 2021.

Movements of share options under the Share Option Scheme held
by the Directors, employee and consultant are as follows:

BB AT B
RARBERZZEZTF=HATXAKEHRM
HERETE ([BREED U AZESE
(BREEFRAEESEREER)EREAD
REE R _E-_—FNATHAETH
RARAFIRRBEFRE L NAAERERH
S ERBEUARBERESEIZRTRS
87,286,368 ERE -FELZERBLHAR
AARAE T -_—FtEtA-+/"BrHAE

EX EENEREMFENBRESIET
Bz ZgeshmT :

Numbers of underlying shares in respect of
which share options were granted

ARtiERESROBERRRHEE
Date of Exercise As at Granted Exercise/ As at
grant of Exercise price per 31 March during Cancelled/ 31 March
Name of category of participant Share option  period share 2022 the Period Lapsed 2023
2EEER falR i Bk R-¥B-ZE Bffff/ KZBo=
#a Rt 8% (hid ﬁﬁ% ZA=t-H gl ##/%% ZAZt-H
HK
A
Directors
Ez
Mr. Yu (Note 1) 1/4/2021 1/4/2021 - 31/3/2031 133 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 -
TREME) ZE--% ZC—3--fmA-A%
MA—R ZE=-§ZA=1-H
Mr. Chung 1/4/2021 11412021 - 31/3/2031 1.33 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
BEE “To-f "R -#NA-HE
MA—H Z“2=-%=R=1-H
Mr. Wong (Note 1) 4/4/2021 4/4/2021 - 3/4/2031 133 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 -
BRE (Wit1) ZE--% ZC—Z--fMAMmAZR
mAMA ZE=-4MmA=AH
Other eligible participants
RSttty
Employee 71412021 71412021 - 6/4/2031 133 8,000,000 - 8,000,000 -
3] —F--f  ZZ--£QALHE
mA+H ZE=-4MAKA
Mr. Xiao Junwei, 11412021 11412021 - 31/3/2031 1.33 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
independent Consultant
Xiao Junweift & (B B ) —E--f% Z”-4¥MA-HE
MA—R ZZ=-§ZA=1-H
Mr. Lien Wai Hon, 71412021 71412021 - 6/4/2031 133 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
independent Consultant
Lien Wai Hon%t 4 (B B F) —E--% Z”-4¥MAtHE
mA+H ZE=-4MAKA
Mr. Miao Ki Kong, 71412021 71412021 - 6/4/2031 133 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
independent Consultant
Miao Ki Kong#t 4 (B B f ) —E--% Z”-4¥MAtHE
mA+H ZE=-£MAKA
Mr. Huang wei, 71412021 71412021 - 6/4/2031 133 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
independent Consultant
Huang wei%t & (BB F) —E--% ZZ”-¥MAtHE
mA+H ZE=-4MAKA
Totja} \ 60,000,000 - 24,000,000 36,000,000
s
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

Notes:

1. Mr. Yu and Mr. Wong had resigned as director of the Company on
11 October 2022.

2. The Share Options are granted without any vesting conditions/period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting year, the Group’s largest customer and the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 18% and 64% of the
Group's total sales, respectively.

During the reporting year, the Group's largest supplier and the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 47% and 83% of the
Group's total purchases, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company
or any of their associates or any shareholders, which to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the Group's
five largest customers or suppliers during the reporting year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the reporting year, the Company and the Group had the
following connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

(@) On 28 September 2022, the Group entered into the sale
and purchase agreement with Hui Leung Wah, a director
of a subsidiary of the Group, pursuant to which the Vendor
has agreed to dispose of and the Purchaser has agreed to
purchase 55% equity interest in Gold Strong Industrial Limited
("Gold Strong”), an indirect non-wholly subsidiary of the
Company, at a consideration of HK$21 million. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28
September 2022.

Wit :

1. FTRERELEEER T -_=F+ A+ —HEIE
RARESE-

2 FRREIE R (AR IR
%ﬁ% HESEBEEAATZEH
4

ARARHEEMMBRAGIRBE_T_=
FZAZ+T-HLEFEMERE HEXE
Bl A2 B 2 7] LR o

FTREFRHEER
RESFE AEERARFPRAKEAA
B 5 Bl 7 ok L 5 5 AR B 0189 2 64%

RBEFE AEEKAHERIRASER
RNEEE D RIE AR RBIRBARNITSR
83% °

B EXWBEN BEARREFTHARSFE
MBEALTIAREETEMANEBARA
E#HITRAS%IA L Z ERIBRER R &EF
ERAEENEMAREP R HEER T %
BRI EDER

FEX S RFERMERXS

RBEFE NRARRAEEEETT T
BRG MOFBCREMRANE4ATZ
MEELBE -

(a) RZZEZ-_FNLA=-ZF+NH XK£H
HEAEE-FHMNBAREST R
VEERH B BFERELER
EFEREBEARAIZHEEIEEE
MBARESAMETEERAR ([£F
EZ]) 55%/) A% # - X {& A&21,000,000/%5
Lo BRFIE BAMARRBHAE=
T-o—HFEhAA-FNBZAE
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Gold Strong, in their usual and ordinary course of business,
had amounts due (to)/from the Company’'s several
wholly-owned subsidiaries. The amounts due are unsecured
and interest-bearing at the same interest rate charged by the
Company's bank which is the same as the rate applied to the
Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries, they are repayable on
demand and the outstanding amounts are details below at
the end of the balance sheet date:

FEX I RIFEMER S (B

b) EFER-—KBBXHHES (&
) /ERERREFT2ERBRA
RB-ZERFYRERAFBEEAR
BIERTT WA Z AR A X5 B HEE
ARARRZEWMB QAT XER -
HAREREE MBEEERZH
REERBEFBOT

31 March 31 March
2023 2022
—Eg== —EF-

=A=+—H EF=r—E

HK$'000 HK$'000

TF#ET FET

Gold Strong MR - (82,179)
— amount due to Gold Strong by the - ARRAAZ2EMBARIER

Company'’s wholly-owned subsidiaries © N ERIA - =
— amount due by Gold Strong to the RRREENE R E ER

Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries & F| R FRIA - (82,179)

The Group sold Gold Strong on 24 October 2022. For details,
please refer to paragraph (a) above.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed above,
none of the Related Party Transactions as disclosed in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report is subject to disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-law 189 of the Company, Directors of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by or about
the execution of their duty in their offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and the officers of the Group throughout
the Year.

AEEBR -_ZE-_—"F+A-_t+HNHEES
ME-FEBL2ELEXE@)E-

REEREL A BEEREMAM T
BRREE REXABREEIN RAFERM
HEEMBEMRMEITRBECHEALR
SEBET FHRAUFUATIRETHRER
=

¥t ET R T 18 15 3
REARARDMAE1 A AREE
07 S B fir 7 77 BB T o B ARRE T T At
BEKRZ R BB ETA B B
BK BERAL BAAKAANEER
BEE BREMULTE-

ARAERAKEEETRBEREAEE
EENEEEEEER-
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EFERE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT REABFHRE

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company BEAAAMEREZARENREBESFRN
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the M RBEFEREEARSH XA F]
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public during EEITHRABRERZI2B%HRRANLHE
the reporting year and up to the date of this report. Ao

AUDITORS BB
CCTH CPA Limited will retire at AGM and a resolution for the FEXRESFMAERRAAKRIREESE KR
re-appointment of CCTH CPA Limited as auditor of the Company ELEE - RARFABNREGLIRE —BRSE

will be proposed thereat. R UBRPFXESFAMARAAD/RR
Al A% BLAm

On Behalf of the Board KEREFS

Chung Yuk Lun HITEE

Executive Director EH

Hong Kong &

30 June 2023 ZEZ=F1A=+H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
W BED RS

Q

To the shareholders of Elegance Optical International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Elegance
Optical International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 75 to 222, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

CCTH CPA LIMITED
REXEGEBRAE

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

RERASRERKERRATDZERE
(REREZEZMALZERAA)

==

BR

P BV ENEISE2228 1 = M 2
BEREBEERAR(IERAA)NENBA
RI(EEE] NGB HRE  WEEeH
BREBER-_ZE_=ZF=A=+—HH
GAEUBRRRNEEZEZBEFENGZS
Bak SBAANSE GARSEDE
REARenReaR UNREETEHREM
FOREETESHRBE-

BHRA ZEREMBRRECRERTES
Ao g ([FEEQFMAS)BMNEE
MEREEN(BEMBREERNEE
MeSHRRT EEER-_F_=F=A
STt HNEEPBRAREEREZA L
FENGEEMBRAMGARERE AE
EREBAAGINRERCZ SRS -

BERELRE
BACREBEEEEAMAERHNELSE
SRR ([BABEFER)ETES R
EZEEUATAENECICELARELH
ERL E ot iR @ R AR B — &
tEE— PR MREEESAMASRM
WEXEiAIER TR ([FR]) & FIB
YR BERE YERETTRTHEMBE
BRET -BMABE RAMESHNETER
BREAELEE W /RMANETEREMR
Eifto
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIAWENE S

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, that the Group incurred net losses amounted to
approximately HK$45,668,000 and HK$182,210,000 for the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respectively; and the
current liabilities of the Group at 31 March 2023 exceed the Group's
current assets at that date by approximately HK$2,755,000. These
conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. In light of all the measures and arrangements detailed in
note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
of the opinion that the Group will be able to operate as a going
concern so as to finance its future working capital and financial
requirements. The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustment that are required to be made should the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

HEHGECERMANEXTHEEM

BMRBEIESGATBHHREMIEI  H
FETR BESEEREBEE-_ZTZ_=ZF=A4
=t+—BR-_E-__F=A=+—HBIt%E
& 5 B E 4 &5 18 7% B8 #)45,668,00078 7T M
182,210,000 t: B BEHEER T -_ =4
A=t HZzRnHEEBRAEREHZ
BN E EE 492,755,000/ 7T © IL E 15 R R F
EERATHENL ARESESRFELEN
BENTFREERNRERM - ERRE I EHRERM T
ST EREREHE EFERE B
EEEREMNEERLUNABERKEEELES
L BHERIREES REMBERRILER
S BESEEERELCERNAMLEAEL
2 AEAR] 58 FE o T P9 £ k52 B IR R B AP A
R

BASEETEIR

BB PN TE AN BRES FEAYA
BEANGRRNBHRAEENEE &
LEERAMEBHERRAMBARR R
HAEREETREN MRMTELEL
FHERGEBNER -
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BIZBEERS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
PSS EIR

FRESTEIR (8)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAMEFNAEEARENER

Impairment of trade receivables, deposit and other
receivables

FEMRRSR - & R H b FE W =R I IR (B

Refer to notes 4, 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEAM TR TS - 20821 -

As at 31 March 2023, the Group recorded gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$7,923,000 before
impairment loss of approximately HK$1,507,000 and
gross deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$59,005,000 before impairment loss of approximately
HK$31,577,000.

RZZBE_=F=RA=+—H E5EEGEKRAEEIE
#71,507,0007% 7T Al 2 #& & 48 BR 5K 497,923,000 7T & BR R
B & 18 431,577,000/ JT Al 2 B4R & K H b J& W FRIA 4
59,005,000 7T °

Estimations of the impairment for the Group's trade
receivables, deposit and other receivables are dependent
on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgment, including the historical default
rates, past due status, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions as well as
forward-looking information specific to the trade and other
receivables.
EEERWERN e R H A B FIE 2R E T BUR R
ETHRELHERERBEAB ZEARR BREELENX .
BEIMRN  —REBRAREERMMRRZAEARE S R
H th JEWRIB 2 B E RTIE 1L & # o

Our procedures in relation to management's
impairment assessment of trade receivables,
deposit and other receivables included:

BB E IR E W AR RS N e WK IRR
B ERIEFBE:

- We obtained an understanding of the design,

implementation and operating effectiveness
of management’s internal controls relating
to credit control, debt collection and making
provisions for doubtful debts.
HPETHEEREMREEEE KEEHR
AARERRBEMELOAMEZORT A
TR ERE -

- We assessed the classification and accuracy
of individual balances in trade receivables,
deposit and other receivables ageing report
by testing the underlying invoices and loan
agreements on a sample basis.

P BBMEAIABEERRERBET
R AERR Re Rk HE iR RIBRER RS
T8 Bl 4 R 2 o B I R
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B3 & B Eh iR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BT BN

FRESTEIE (18)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BFABET EEEREEEIR

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate

—EBE AT REZBEFE

Refer to notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEE MWK FEARIT -

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of the
Group's investment in an associate, Filmko Culture
Limited, amounted to approximately HK$29,000,000
(after impairment loss recognised of approximately
HK$108,506,000).

RZEZ=F=ZA=+—H BREBERREBEY
108,506,000/ L% » BHEER —EEE QR (EHEXL
BRAR)RE 2 BREE /429,000,000 7T °

To support management’s determination of the fair value
used for impairment assessment purposes, the Group
has engaged external independent qualified valuers to
perform fair value valuation on the associate.
RARXBEREEETANBRETGENAAE BEEEHEZ
BINIB LS ERAEMEHERFETARBERE:.

We focused on impairment assessment of the
Group's investment in an associate as the magnitude
of the investment in an associate is significant and
management assessment of the fair value involves
judgments and estimates, key assumptions including the
basis of selection for the comparable entities and their
respective fair values as well as the discount rates taking
account of the lack of marketability factor.

BMEIR EEER-—HBLERRRE ZRERN G R
ARR—HBERRRECHEEN BEEEHAAE
WA E S RAG R AT AR BEEEREER A ENE
EENAABEAREARRZTSRBERR CAIRED
RAsRR -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of investment in an associate included:

BAEE—FEBERRRE ZBENENEFERE:

- We evaluated the independent external
valuer's competence, capabilities and
objectivity.

BT EBIINBEEMOER B RE
B o

- We assessed the key assumptions including
the basis of selection for the comparable
entities for fair value valuation and the
discount rates applied to the lack of
marketability factor. We considered the
appropriateness of the discount rates
adopted by management.
BHMPFREERAERET AR EREZE
ERBERRRZTSRBMERRZHRESE
ARBER - BMEEREEERMNME XN
BEM-

- We checked the accuracy and relevance of
the input data on sample basis.
BAIA S R E 8 A B A 2 KA
Bl e

-  We evaluated and challenged the composition
of the associate’s fair value and the process
by which they were drawn up, including
testing the underlying fair value less cost of
disposal calculation.

PGB LEREERNR AL ENEKLR
mEER BREASABEN QAL ER LS K
NGO R
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BIZBEERS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
PSS EIR

FRESTEIR (8)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAMEFNAEEARENER

Fair value measurement of investment in convertible
bonds held at fair value classified under Level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy
REBAREERFRSERAALERBTZURKES KR
BZARETE

Refer to notes 4 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2RHE A M RRM E4R22

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had investment
in convertible bond with the carrying amount of
HK$17,160,000.
RZB_=F=A=+—81"
BRTE{E /317,160,0007% 7T °

BEEEABRREFKREN

The investment in convertible bond was recorded as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
is subject to fair value measurement at the end of each
reporting period. The Group used present value of the
stream of future cash flows to evaluate the fair value of the
investment in convertible bond as at 31 March 2023.
AMBREFREARIMERARA B ABRZEREE
BARSREMRETAABEFE-R_T_=F=A
=+—B EBE5EEARKRESREZREGHAIRRKR
BEFREZAAE

These conclusions required the significant management's
judgment, with respect to the discount rate and the
underlying cash flows.
ARERRFEEREHUREX AR REELERH
B o

Our procedures in relation to the fair value
measurement of financial instruments held at fair
value classified under Level 3 fair value included:
BMEBABRBARBEERDERAREREZS
BTAZARBEFENEFBE:

- We evaluated the independent external
valuer's competence, capabilities and

objectivity;
HAPIRT B LI ER (L E APV HERR B /1 R B8R
i3

-  We challenged the key assumptions including
the discount rates applied. We considered the
appropriateness of the discount rates adopted
by management; and
BMERAEABRREEREBR-
EEBRANBRENSEN: &

APIE B

- We checked the accuracy and relevance of
the input data on sample basis.
TP AR OT e 2 o A BB 9 R I
RAE -
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WIAWENE S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
B S EIR

FRESTEIE (18)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI ENAEEARENER

Fair value measurement of investment in convertible
bonds held at fair value classified under Level 3 in the

fair value hierarchy (Continued)
REAREBAEIRSERAABERAFZURKES K
BZARERE (F)

To support management's determination of the fair value
used for impairment assessment purposes, the Group
has engaged external independent qualified valuers to
perform fair value valuation on investment in convertible
bond.

RAXKEEREETRNBENEHNAAE BEEEEE
BHONIBLEERGEMBAIBRRESREETARER
B

We focused on fair value measurement of investment in
convertible bond as the magnitude of convertible bond is
significant and management assessment of the fair value
of investment in convertible bond involves judgments and
estimates, key assumptions including the basis of selection
for the discount rate and the underlying cash flows.
BMFEINTHRBREFKREZAAEFE RERATHRAR
BHEZBHREAN BEEEUAHRRESREZAAEN
AT RABRAEFARBREZVRRAXNABETSRE
ZEENRRRR-
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WIAWENE S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

H fth & #

ESFUHHMENAR -HMWEN BT
REFRANER  BETBREEAPHRE R
FAPI R A BB R

BRHEAVBRROBEL NREE M
BR HATAHZEEMENBEREMT
AWEEEW -

BAERMYREYBRERNES RFANE
TEHEEMER FIERET ZREM
EHNEOREEMBRRARMERTB

RAEMEROBRAFEENRBHEUT
FEEANBRBRMAER - ZREPE AT

T MREMARSEMERFEEAE
R BT EREZEE-EE @A
BPVRBEAHRE -

$&E§ AERGEEMHTE

@i
AR AL

%m

EXFAERBEEGHMASHMNE
BHBEREEAMEERROINEER
EREEEMT BNEREMBEREK  WET
BEXERRFTE NS AL S MR
ROBBEIFEHNRFRERMEED
EARBARER A -

EREGAMBHRRE EFAHTME &
SESBELENREN XEERBRATHRE
EBEKEEHNER UREAKERLSE
SEHEMR RIEZFEN EEEBR
HIFUEEE S BEEBERERNERNER

BEERABARTEE ESBNYK
BERFNARE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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WIAWENE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2023

Kwong Tin Lap
Practising certificate number: P01953

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F, Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre,
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

LZ%IEFE J:%*f%?-AEﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁTF
MRE (&

/\E

ﬁ%ﬁAﬁﬁﬁ%mmhﬂﬁﬁﬁ
BBNMAR BREE UREAMB
ﬁ%% TP ERBABERZMEIR -

e Bt Ex.WE%ﬁ%%%EW%%
BEMERTEEENENERE
BHEAMBERRERE E,ﬁﬁﬁ
BEREBERGFNT R EEMMT KM
REABRAEEHET

BREMEBEIN RMEEEEAABERT
%E’Jrﬂriﬂ%ﬁ T BRELTHEMEARNESFER
L BRERMES TR E RSP EEE
A KR PG o

ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁAE%i%%'ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
ENAEHBELEMNEREBEERER.
HipfERBRNRGENKRRER @ﬁ
BT A R EME M EIR A REE
REERT BN EER-

R BEERABRBANEERT HME
%$%#mﬁﬁﬁ%M§ﬁfﬁixZ$

B BmiEKRERER F R - R IIERBED
ﬁ¢$?LL%$E'M#%¢£ﬁTAH
AABBEELER AEBRFERLNBR
T MREEERERMRETBEBEER
ERNAEEARRBEHEEN ARG Al
PRETEERSTABZER

P EXEEHHHRAT
K B A
B

BBXR 3L
HEBEZMHEIN: P01953
ERATR
FOMEE B BK51598
BEE 5T 2R 15%81510-1517%

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= A S A
Reflax
Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-_T-_=F=A=+T—HIFE

2023 2022
—F-= g
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
B 5 F#ET TAT
(Restated)
(&e&E3)
Continuing operations REGEEET
Revenue Wz b 21,704 15,275
Cost of sales and services $HE R ARE A (15,335) (10,875)
Gross profit EAF 6,369 4,400
Other income and gains A PN & 6 2,988 4,575
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIEMAXZ (255) =
Administrative expenses TR X (15,586) (18,319)
Equity-settled share-based payments A#E 2545 & 89 LARR (5
RER R - (53,312)
Other operating expenses HAth 4R 25 7 (29,129) (105,919)
Finance costs B%E A 8 (452) (1,115)
Share of loss of an associate ﬁj\ff—ﬁﬁﬁ 55% NGl 17 (997) (6,643)
Share of profit/(loss) of HMh—HEEE QA
a joint venture uﬁnf'/()gﬁ ) 18 236 =
Loss before tax B Fi Al & 18 9 (36,826) (176,333)
Income tax expense e A 11 - (44)
Loss for the year from FERERBEE L
continuing operations REEEE (36,826) (176,377)
Discontinued operations CERIEEEER
Loss for the year from ERIERERBELEZ
discontinued operations KEEEE 12 (8,842) (5,833)
Loss for the year N[ E 1B (45,668) (182,210)
Loss for the year attributable RAFRHEE ABGEREE
to owners of the Company: B8
— from continuing operations —ELBEBBREEER (36,826) (176,377)
— from discontinued operations —EARERIEKESE
7% (40,563) (699)
Loss for the year attributable RRARREE AEBGEREE
to owners of the Company 518 (77,389) (177,076)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable  JE¥E A% #E 2 JE(G AN [E
to non-controlling interests: wmA (EiE)
— from continuing operations —EAEARBLEER - =
— from discontinued operations —EXBERILELE
E3 31,721 (5,134)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable  JE¥5E A% #E 25 JE (G N F &
to non-controlling interests WAL (E5E) 31,721 (5,134)
Loss for the year REZEE (45,668) (182,210)

=R BEEEEBR AR 2022/2023 £ 75



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FElEax
Year ended 31 March 2023
HE_Z_—F=-A=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E== —F=-=
Notes HK cents HK cents
Bt 5 31 Al
(Restated)
(&e&E75)
LOSS PER SHARE BREE
From continuing and discontinued  E4 BFELE K
operations RIS 13
Basic BN (8.87) (20.29)
Diluted g N/A 73 F N/A & A
From continuing operations EXBRBLEEL 13
Basic FH AR (4.22) (20.21)
Diluted P N/A 73 R N/A & A
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEREBRR

Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-_T-_=F=A=+T—HIFE

2023 2022
—FEZ= -
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt = THET FHT
Loss for the year RNEZEE (45,668) (182,210)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hih2mE (FxX), WA
income
ltems that may be reclassified to profit F E & HifE A] E¥ 5 48
or loss in subsequent periods: ZERIER
Exchange differences on translation ¥ E GINER 2
of foreign operations MEH 5 1,111 2,390
Reclassification adjustment relating to B HH & /BN ETEH R
foreign operations disposed of ZEHDRRAE (347) =
Share of exchange differences on HERE—HEE
translation of a joint venture NAIZEH ZRE 18 69 46
Share of exchange differences on DhRE -
translation of an associate NRZER =% 17 (1,355) 765
Other comprehensive (expenses)/ REFREHEAMEE
income for the year (BXZ) WA (522) 3,201
Total comprehensive expenses REEEHEALBE
for the year (46,190) (179,009)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income T 5l A 1 {5 AN F [Z 2
for the year attributable to: (RAX) /A4
Owners of the Company RRAREB A (76,802) (173,554)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R = 30,612 (5,455)
(46,190) (179,009)

=R BEEEEBR AR 2022/2023 3% 77
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FREMBERANE
As at 31 March 2023
R—FE—_=F=H=+—H

2023 2022
—Eg-= —E_—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ETT FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M HE R 14 5,052 32,986
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 15 - 19,302
Investment properties REYE 16 50,848 59,330
Investment in an associate R—EEE QR Z"E 17 29,000 41,000
Investment in a joint venture R—EEERAIZEKRE 18 - =
Prepayments, deposits and other AR RE R HM
receivables JE U SR IE 21 5,913 =
90,813 152,618
CURRENT ASSETS mENE E
Inventories Ve 19 62 5,483
Trade receivables JE U BR X 20 6,416 10,203
Prepayments, deposits and other AR KRIE  Re REM
receivables JiE U FR I8 21 26,323 56,189
Financial assets at fair value BAREFABRZ
through profit or loss SREE 22 17,333 19,748
Cash and cash equivalents ReERESEEY 23 7,403 18,770
57,537 110,393
CURRENT LIABILITIES nRBEE
Trade payables JE - AR SR 24 6,341 7,662
Other payables, accruals and deposits £ b J& {5 I8 - fE 5T
received HERE KRS 25 36,712 53,774
Interest-bearing borrowings FEBE 26 - 14,609
Contract liabilities EHNEaE 27 1,912 2,600
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 - 676
Income tax payable B FT R 15,327 15,327
60,292 94,648
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS  #i®8) (AEF8E) EE
FE (2,755) 15,745
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEABERRSAEE
LIABILITIES 88,058 168,363
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FeMEBERAE

As at 31 March 2023

R-E-—=#=A=+—8

2023 2022
—Eg-= T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ETT FAET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES SEMBAE
Deposits received =L ¢i 25 483 519
Lease liabilities HEARE 29 - 18,977
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE 28 1,173 2,072
1,656 21,568
Net assets EEFE 86,402 146,795
EQUITY =
Share capital % Z< 30 8,728 8,728
Reserves ] 32 77,674 154,476
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NEIE SN
of the Company = 86,402 163,204
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R 34 - (16,409)
Total equity T AR RE 86,402 146,795

TSE2RAEMGEAMBHRREN_-F

The consolidated financial statements on page 75 to 222 were HRE
—=HFERNAZ=tHREEESHAERKRET

approved and authorised for issue by the board of director on

30 June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: WA NINEERARES:
Chung Yuk Lun Cheng Chun Man
ETR BIRE
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GelgEDR

Year ended 31 March 2023

BE_Z_=f=ZA=+—BHL%FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATHAFNEE
Goodwill
Share Asset  Share eliminated  Exchange Non-
Share premium  Capital revaluation  option against  fluctuation Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve  reserve* reserve  reserves reserve losses Total interests  equity
Rt &% BEEf# BRE HfiE  EERD #izhk 44
k% BER it e i HEZHE HiE  RiER st [ 34 i)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TEr TEn TET  TEn TEL TEL TEL  T#En TEL  TiEn
As 1 April 2021 WZZ2=-%¥MA-H 8728 247,085 107433 22986 - (152) 3,653 (106,287) 283,446 (10954) 272492
Loss for the year rEEFE - - - - - - - (177,076)  (177,076) (5134 (182.210)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ~ AFEzEM2EMA/
for the year (Fx)
Share of exchange differences HMERE-REEREY
on translation of  joint venture EXEE - - - - - - 4% - 4% - 4
Share of exchange differences HMERE-ABEREL
on translation of an associate EXEE - - - - - - 765 - 765 - 765
Exchange differences on translation BEBINEHIELER
of foreign operations = = = = = = 2711 = 2711 (321) 2,39
Total comprehensive income/ AEEZRERN/ (BX)
(expense) for the year fak:o - - - - - - 3522 (177,076)  (173,554) (5,455)  (179,009)
Equity-settled share based payments IEREENURN A
BRI - - - - 533N - - - 5331 - B3N
As at 31 March 2022 and R-§--§=R=t-BER
1 April 2022 —¥--#MNA-A 8,728 247,085 107,433 22,986 53,312 (152) 1175 (283,363) 163,204 (16,409) 146,795
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (FB8) /& - - - - - - - (77,389) (77,389) 31,721  (45,668)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ~ AFEEZEfM2ERA/
for the year (%)
Share of exchange differences AHBE-REEAAZ
on translation of  joint venture ERER - - - - - - 69 - 69 - 69
Share of exchange differences AhBE-ABEAFZ
on translation of an associate EXZER - - - - - - (1,355) - (1,355) - (1,355
Exchange differences on translation BEBNEBZELER
of foreign operations - - - - - - 2,220 - 2,220 (1,109) 1,111
Reclassification adjustment relating to BHEBNEBERL
foreign operations disposed of BNAEAR - - - - - - (347) - (347) . (347)
Total comprehensive income/ AEEZZERN/ (B%)
(expense) for the year g - - - - - - 587 (77,389) (76,802) 30,612 (46,190
Transfer to retained earning upon REEHBANREES
disposal of subsidiaries BEH - - - (4,464) - - - 4,464 - - -
Transfer to retained earing upon lapsed ~ REREXHHERZ
of share options REBEF - - - - (21,979 - - 21979 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - - - - - - - - (14203) (14,203)
As at 31 March 2023 R-¥-=%=A=t+-H 8,728 247,085 107,433 18,522 31,333 (152) 7,762 (334,309) 86,402 - 86,402

EEEHRRBELAXTAANEENRAR/R
DREFEZERENE-

The asset revaluation reserve arose from changes in use from owner-
occupied properties to investment properties carried at fair value.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FER&a&aRE

Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-_T-_=F=A=+T—HIFE

2023 2022
—E== ==
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 THET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEPELZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax from: AT & IBE 4+ 2 BRELAT
E18 -
— continuing operations — BB EET (36,826) (176,333)
— discontinued operations —ERIEEEER (8,842) (5,833)
Loss before tax MR RTE 1R (45,668) (182,166)
Adjustments for: RTFBIRFEE
Finance costs B 75 & 8 974 1,722
Share of (profit)/loss of a joint SME—REE QAL
venture CaFl) &8 18 (236) 150
Share of loss of an associate pak Sl i) A /NE] P
g 17 997 6,643
Bank interest income RITHEHA 6 (96) (am
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B A E <z W 12 (7,406) =
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - BB K&RE
property, plant and equipment HE 2 W= 6 (39) (14,948)
Loss on changes in fair value REMERAAE
of investment properties BE) 2 EIR 7 683 4,312
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BAREF AR
assets at fair value through TRMEELANE
profit or loss, net B8, (e ) $ %
— equity investments at fair value —RBRAREFA
through profit or loss BaRzBERE 7 2,268 827
— investment in film production —EREERE 7 - 42,764
— investments in convertible bond —AIBRERKRE (846) (780)
Depreciation of property, ME HERZERTE
plant and equipment 9 1,259 2,828
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 9 1,215 1,789
Impairment loss on trade ol fE W BR FOR B B 1R
receivables reversed b (536) (320)
Impairment of other receivables H th & WK IBR B 7 16,142 19,15
Impairment of property, ME  WERRERE
plant and equipment 7 - 4,970
Impairment loss of right-of-use ERAEEERERBE
assets 7 - 2,641
(Reversal of)/provision for inventory — #BEFFE (#LD) BE
obsolescence (13) 15
Impairment loss on investment ®R,(BE) R —FHE
in and loan to a joint venture BEREIZRER
recognised/(reversed) ERT—HEEEAA
Z B IEE1E 6,7 351 (638)
Impairment loss on investment in R—HBE AR ZRE
an associate Z BEEE 7 9,648 46,122
Equity-settled share-based payment  DA%Ez 45 & #Y LARR 7
REREOFK - 53,312
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEBaRER
Year ended 31 March 2023
HE_Z_—F=-A=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
—FZ= —E=-Z
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k= TET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEPELZHERE
ACTIVITIES (Continued) (%)
Operating cash flows before HEECEHAI
movements in working capital KEWERE (21,303) (15,633)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TEERL, () 5,267 (963)
Decrease in trade receivables JFE L R R > 4,323 4,272
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  TE[FRIE - & R EAM
deposits and other receivables JEWRIE R A,
($&hn) 18,357 (51,917)
Decrease in financial assets BARBEFABE SR
at fair value through profit or loss BERD
- equity investments at fair value —RARBEFABRZ
through profit or loss iR & 993 996
— investments in film production —BRRERE - 21,380
Increase in trade payables JE 11 BR SR 38 A0 154 4,059
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, Hthf&{J 5818 - 5T
accruals and deposits received FIEREWIZS
R4 /580 (10,966) 14,152
Decrease in contract liabilities X OR=NEp: 8 (688) (777)
Exchange realignment HE H 38 5,866 (2,300)
Cash generated from/(used in) ReEEBESXZ/
operations (rEZ)BRE 2,003 (26,731)
Interest paid B A (452) (1,064)
Interest element of lease liabilities HEBENRZHEHD
payments (522) (658)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBEEX L/
operating activities (FTREZ )R & 75 1,029 (28,453)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEBaRER
Year ended 31 March 2023
HE_Z-_—F#=-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—FZ= —E-Z
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 THET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REBDELEZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received EERIT RS 96 11
Purchases of items of property, plant EEWZ KB K& #E
and equipment HH (484) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BERE&E
property, plant and equipment 18 B Fr5 I8 42 16,798
Net cash inflow from disposal of HERE AR
subsidiaries WEMAFHE 33 4,812 =
Net cash generated from KEEBMFZ
investing activities HeF5E 4,466 16,809
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BERHELCHERE
ACTIVITIES
New other borrowings I EMEE - 1,213
Repayment of other borrowings EBEEHEMES (14,609) (10,000)
Capital element of lease liabilities HEABRNRZEART S
payments (2,072) (1,001)
Net cash used in financing BB BB
activities H e 55 (16,681) (9,788)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RekReFEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS B 3 R (11,186) (21,432)
Cash and cash equivalents FNzHeRREEF
at beginning of the year =7 18,770 40,078
Effect of foreign exchange rate MR E R B R
changes, net (181) 124
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZESRATTE
AT END OF THE YEAR 1B 23 7,403 18,770
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBERRME

31 March 2023
—_E_=%=ZHA=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.
The Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong is
located at Room 22, 22/F, On Hong Commercial Building, 145
Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group, comprising the Company and its
subsidiaries, was engaged in the manufacture and trading
of optical frames and sunglasses, property investment,
investment in debts and securities, film distribution business
and energy business that engaged in investments in energy
sector related instrument and sale and trading of liquefied
petroleum gas products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

Restatement of comparative information
regarding discontinued operations

During the year, as detailed in note 12, the Group disposed of
Gold Strong Industrial Limited (“Gold Strong”). Gold Strong
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture
and trading of optical frames and sunglasses and property
investment. Following the completion of the disposal, the
Group discontinued the business operations undertaken by
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries, which are regarded as the
discontinued operations of the Group.

The comparative information included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, together with notes thereon, for
the year ended 31 March 2022 has been restated, where
appropriate, in order to conform with the current year's
presentation of the discontinued operations separately from
continuing operations. As the restatement of comparative
information has had no effect to the consolidated assets
and consolidated liabilities of the Group at 31 March 2022
presented in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position, the directors consider it appropriate not to present
any comparative information in that respect.

1.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ReEMBRERME

31 March 2023
—E-=#=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries

A REEER (F)

FHMBATIZER
ARAREEMBRRZFHBMT :

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered paid-in equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
130 RT3 ) ERTEER/ EAE L
3 ES ERfEERE IREE 5 TEEH
Direct Indirect
H#& GIE
Elegance Optical Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 and - 100 Investment holding and
Limited 0 non-voting deferred property investment
BEREREBRAR HK$20,000,000* REZREDERE
£ ER200% T ]2
ERFEBETR
20,000,0007% 70*
Elegance Optical Manufactory Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment holding and
Limited BE LRR2ET trading of optical frames
BERGHEBRERAF REZBKRRERZES
People by People Group Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 - 100 Trading of optical
£ LR R2007% 7T frames and bags in
Hong Kong and
Southeast Asia
REERREGET
BRERRTFRZES
BHEAZ ORI BRAA PRC Registered = 100  Trading and manufacture
(TRHERYN) * F RMB33,000,000 of optical frames
Bt RERZEHREE
A #33,000,0007T
Brilliant Plan Global Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100 - Securities investment
BRBRBRAF ("BVI") TERIET FRRE
RBRLES
((EBEEZHS])
Capital Real Estate Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Money lending
Development Limited BE T AR 10,00078 7T ME
EBEFERERAA
Filmko Pictures (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100 Film distribution
Co. Limited e &30 10,000,000 7T ETEY
BT % (BE)BRAR
GULF ENERGY (CHINA) LIMITED ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20,000,000 - 100 Energy business
(formerly known as "H. Sterling &% 38 A%20,000,000/ 7T BRER

Global Energy Limited")
Bk (hE)BRAR
(B [ELRERESERRA])

SHEXERBEEER QR 2022/2023 F3R

85



86

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME

31 March 2023

—E-=f=ZfA=+-FH

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
the year and at the end of the year.

4 The first HK$1,000,000,000,000 of the profits which the subsidiary
may determine to distribute in any financial year must be distributed
among the holders of ordinary shares where one half of the balance
of the said profits is distributed among the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares and the other half of such balance among the
holders of ordinary shares. Moreover, the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares have no other rights to dividends. The holders of the
non-voting deferred shares have no right to attend or vote at general
meetings, except for general meetings convened for the purpose of
reducing the capital of the Company or altering their class rights.
The non-voting deferred shares carry the right to receive one half of
the balance of any surplus in a return of capital in a winding-up after
the holders of the ordinary shares have received a total return of
HK$5,000,000,000

5 Fortune Optical and = &Il are registered as wholly-foreign-owned

enterprises under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

1.
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EIRERBEERFSAE A& H R
BRE - ERLEREERFAAERDY
FRERERNE LRI EREBRA
RERARERBSHEANEFNTBEHZ
R 3R K & BR SN o £E 1% 22 4 IR TE AR BT A5
MARERBEERRITAABEESH
5,000,000,000/8 7T 1% - BRI gA E AR 2
7¥0
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2023
—E-=#=A=+—H

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first

time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual

period beginning on 1 April 2022 for the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021*

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2018-2020

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
position and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

RAFE- $EIE§7KE§FH—F§|JEE
BAEG g ([BEGHMAE])
MAENEEH B REENERT AN Z
EEITAR-_ZT-__FHA—BHA
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ERy A TN

EEMBHREREYN  —F-FR/A=1H
EASPACHEN 2 #%Covid-1942 8

BeEE

BB gt £ nE BER&RE-HTE
EAPACHEN PRI A 2 P15 50R

BB gst £ BRftaH-BETaH

ERLPACHEN LB
BRMBREREN 2 T N\FE-T_TF
EHEN BBMBREEALZ

FEYE

REAEERBEEVBRSENZE
AIASAKERNBERRBEFEZE
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R ZRBELEBEATE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2023
i sy = 2= 5| = -—5]

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRS Standards that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the June Insurance Contracts'
2020 and December 2021
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs not yet effective
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 March 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statement, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users.

Going concern basis

Notwithstanding that the Group incurred net losses amounted
to approximately HK$45,668,000 and HK$182,210,000
for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
respectively; and the current liabilities of the Group at 31
March 2023 exceed the Group's current assets at that date by
approximately HK$2,755,000, the directors of the Company
consider it appropriate for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis after taking into
account the following circumstances and measures:

(@) The Company entered into a loan agreement with an
independent third party (the “Lender”) on 30 June 2023,
pursuant to which, the Lender has agreed to grant the
Company a short term loan facility to an aggregate
extent of HK$18,000,000 for the period from the date
of first draw down to eighteen months from the date of
first draw down to enable the Group to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future.

(b)  The Group is implementing various measures, such as
optimising its overall sales network and undergoing
effective cost control to improve the profit margin and
operating cash flows of its business.

(c)  The Group will also continue to seek for other alternative
financing and bank borrowings to finance its existing
financial obligations and future operating and capital
expenditures.
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31 March 2023
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking
into account the above-mentioned plans and measures,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due for at least twelve months after the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to reduce the carrying amounts of the
Group's assets to their net realisable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and
current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 16 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

3.

nvjs

2

IEp O
Ll

BRREREERE
Bk (8)

REEEEE(F)

ARREZRA Ktk LAt &
it ARBEREERALEESR
ZEEAVBRRELERRRED
T-EARHELERHKESI BT
HEZMOMBE T Bt A M5
BRODEFBELLEERE -WAE
BERFERE RIAFELAE AR
SEEENREERE LA #RFRE
SRR EELENE P RE LM
MBEENERBBEDREH D
SRBEERRBDAR ZFHEN
FEUARNUFLRA M BERER T R -

EREE
RAPBRRIVIRE LR AERE -
BT BERENERREREBRE
AREHENETEMIA(MTX
FELM S BR ML) -

FE 2 AN — AR IR BB ENE W) I AR 75
M NREZRAAEFTE -

AABEERFERMS2EEZHY
BEFRXZF S EEEMBIRZ(E
REBRERBEAMNZER T %
ERELEEERAGHERAS 7
fMEDEAGF -BFEEXRBZA
RERK AKEERETHE2EEL
AAEARREEXRBBEETEERK
EERMEEXEBERB -EZXFR
BUBHRERPAER LBRENLA
BEOENERETURE EFTEY
B3R E RSB 25% [ AR D A ER 2
FIBERNZBRONRR S BBMB

SEAE1R [HEI BERNZEE
RHGURERAREBRUELFRAE
METE (flan BE ST ERE2SR 17
BRI SR FELBTEGTER
365 [BERME] P HEREER) K
Spe

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEEERME
31 March 2023
—E-=F=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

= has power over the investee;
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

—  the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date when the Group gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

3.

RERBERT

(%)

nvjs

=

IEp O
st

B
B R

HEEE(E)
- EAEREEAHSERAURE
2 A REIHR BB AR R

- AENEBTEEINFEHER
-

8 EE R B RER Ll =826 J
%Z—Iﬁiylﬁﬁfﬁ e AR B
HEFFEEETEEFRELR-

A EBRBIRE T MRZREARBEN
RZE-BREXFREUAETHE
BREe N Al E S EEEWIRE T HE
EBE AHRRETHEAES - EF
BAKRERRRETNRERES R
UETHEBAIE AKEZEMA N
BEBERBER EhBHE:

— AEEFEREEMOREEER
EMEERAAFEREENR
1B Ko B

- AKE HMEERFAEALHM
ALHEHBERERE

- HMBAOZHELENERN: K

- RBEELRE (BEEMKR
j(/\J:E’J&mﬁE;iﬁ)H%iEHH$§%
ERIEAERLEES 2 HE
%@JE’\J%W] MEREINEE RIF

MEBRARRAEERSZNE QTN
EHERGEE AR URAEEKXE
HaMEA TE’J? HE R IR A
R-AEME  AAKENGHE %UF"”‘
Eli_ﬁizliéﬂ%T\ﬁ?@%UMﬂ%
EAiv\]H&@ﬁitH’iﬂ’JWE’AETE’U
LI&U\&S%EZ.#)%? BaKe

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEEERME
31 March 2023
—E-=#=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the equity holders of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All'intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
equity holders of the Company.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group'’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Business combination or assets acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets is
determined not to be a business and no further assessment is
needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial liabilities
at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at
the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge,
or experience to perform the related processes or they
significantly contribute to the ability to continue producing
outputs and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability
to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is
on or after 1 April 2022, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and a
liability in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 issued in June 2018 (the “"Conceptual Framework”)
except for transactions and events within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, in which the Group applies HKAS 37
or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework
to identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business
combination. Contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

= deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 "Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination or assets acquisitions

(Continued)

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard; and

- lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured

at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair
value at subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that
have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment in associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity, over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated fmanaal
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment in associate and joint venture
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interests in associates or joint ventures may be
impaired. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held
for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part of interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment in associate and joint venture
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Acquisition of additional interests in associates
or joint ventures

When the Group increases its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, goodwill is recognised at acquisition date
if there is excess of the consideration paid over the share of
carrying amount of net assets attributable to the additional
interests in associates or joint ventures acquired. Any excess
of share of carrying amount of net assets attributable to the
additional interests in associates or joint ventures acquired
over the consideration paid are recognised in the profit or loss
in the period in which the additional interest are acquired.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a
group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or contribution
of assets), the Group is considered to be conducting the
transaction with the other parties to the joint operation,
and gains and losses resulting from the transactions are
recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of other parties’ interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in which
a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase of
assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the gains
and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for
use in the production or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management, including
costs of testing whether the related assets is functioning
properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting policy.
Sale proceeds of items that are produced while bringing an
item of property, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management (such as samples produced
when testing whether the asset is functioning properly), and
the related costs of producing those items are recognised
in the profit or loss. The cost of those items are measured
in accordance with the measurement requirements of HKAS
2. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold
land, the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Shorter of the lease terms and 2%

Shorter of the lease terms and the
rates of 5% to 10%

10% to 20%

10% to 20%

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which
are being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by
the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

For a transfer to investment properties from owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under "Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
“Property, plant
above. On disposal of a

in accordance with the policy stated under
and equipment and depreciation”
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserve.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of property, plant and equipment, and
land that have a lease term of twelve months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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Leases (Continued) ey (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREABA (E)
Right-of-use assets EHEEE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: ERREENKABRE:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and are initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

s MHERENTHAESR:

o M A K ZATAERNERAE
BN RECKRBROEMNES
BERD ;

o  AEBEEAMNEMVBERKA:
4

s AERBHRKREBHREHEEE- &
EREEEMESHNEEEE
EMREEHE R RARF AR E
R RE T % E AE B BT RCAS ©

EREEERKAREMNRGITE R
BMEBEAE URBEER BN EMA
EMTEELARE-

WASEGEREEHENERFIREG
HRBEEENEAE AERAESR
2 B A A REE A &8 F 5 E R
FTE- DR ERABEEEREGA
ERFHRERNERENEREN
£ .

REBEELE G MBI R T R E R
BEE2JIREFERE -

REMEKE
ENAIRERESRENRETEHHK

EFEANEIRARL NG R A A E
AE-VTHRIBH AR EMIERE
ERABIEEMNRLFAEREE
FE HY AN

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEEERME
31 March 2023
—E-=F=A=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments includes:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2023
—Z_=%f=H=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modlfications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use assets. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, the
Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure the
lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease payments
using the unchanged discount rate, unless the change in
lease payments results from a change in floating interest
rates. In that case, the Group uses the revised discount
rate that reflects change in the interest rate and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets.
A lease modification is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

° the modification is necessary as a direct consequence of
interest rate benchmark reform; and

o the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e. the
basis immediately preceding the modification).

If lease modifications are made in addition to those lease
modifications required by interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the applicable requirements in HKFRS
16 (see the accounting policy above) to account for all
lease modifications made at the same time, including those
required by interest rate benchmark reform.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the
same way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS
16 if the changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness
or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable
lease payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to
reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at amounts
equal to net investments in the leases, measured using the
interest rate implicit in the respective leases. Initial direct costs
(other than those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors)
are included in the initial measurement of the net investments
in the leases. Initial direct costs for leases in which the Group
is the manufacturer or dealer lessor are recognised in costs
of sales at the commencement date of the finance leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments
to be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income when they arise. When
a lease contract contains a specific clause that provides for
rent reduction or suspension of rent in the event that the
underlying assets (or any part thereof) are affected by adverse
events beyond the control of the Group and the lessee so as
to render the underlying assets unfit or not available for use,
the relevant rent reduction or suspension of rent resulting
from the specific clause is accounted for as part of the original
lease and not as a lease modification. Such rent reduction or
suspension of rent is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers those payments
to occur.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

The Group uses the discount rate used for the head lease
(adjusted for any initial direct costs associated with the
sublease) to measure the net investment in the sublease if
the interest rate implicit in the sublease cannot be readily
determined.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

(i)  Operating leases
The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

For rent concession under which the Group legally
releases the lessee from its obligation to make
specifically identified lease payment, of which some
of these lease payments are contractually due but not
paid and some of them are not yet contractually due,
the Group accounts for the portions which have been
recognised as operating lease receivables (i.e. the lease
payments which are contractually due but not paid) by
applying the ECL and derecognition requirements under
HKFRS 9 and applies lease modification requirements
for the forgiven lease payments that the Group has
not recognised (i.e. the lease payments which are
not yet contractually due) as at the effective date of
modification.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 March 2023
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.
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Leases (Continued) ey (&)
Lease modification (Continued) HEER (E)

(if)  Finance leases
The Group accounts for a change in the lease payments
of a finance lease as a lease modification, that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, in accordance with
the requirements of HKFRS 9. If the change represents a
substantial modification, the finance lease receivables of
the original lease are derecognised and a derecognition
gain or loss calculated using the revised lease payments
discounted at the revised discount rate is recognised
in profit or loss on the date of the modification. If the
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For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform for a
finance lease that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group applies the same accounting policies as those

FiT 85 35 B9 88 48 ET/\Z/jEE.i/)ILEE}]
WA E - HEREE O ] 38 &
i’jﬁ/\ﬂkE&ZEA&EHHﬁAJ{EﬁWﬁE

B ) == EL By BB B T KR
ENRNEERE

%ﬁ'ﬁ#)\ﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬂiﬁ%ﬁ%

AR REENEEHETE AR
%Eifﬁ R R LB KNEE K
RERRERTANEREARER (R

applicable to financial instruments (see accounting policy TXHGETBER) °
below).
Financial instruments 2RITH

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

TRHEENRCRMAEREEERENXNA
ZLEEHBXHET N FHER T
AUBRARNBAHEZEREE
BERX S BHEERER LK IEER-
LERTABAXLEREENTSR
B IEGIFTFTFRARNEEZ © &L
BEMBASLE-

=R EEEEEABR AR 2022/2023 £ 115



116

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2023
—Z_=%f=H=+—H

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business is included in other income.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset, the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iir)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will continue to be held in the
investment revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

(i)

(iir)

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report

B35 AR T B ILA

HERBHEKAGTENSREE
Z N B WA GE R B RN ROK
B o FBIATIH © B A E HO IR
HAEEEAERMNEGTE RFE
TREEEHRLBAEERE(R
TX) HELHREERENS
BMEERD TERSPLEEERER
ERNEZR SR EEMNBHKA
EMWE%A\ﬁﬁﬁZﬁﬂﬁ

MERTAZEERREINE
NBREREETBLERERER

B AREEEETHLAEE
BEERNRERNEEZBERE
IR R & BB EE A AR AR (E R
RAEWA -

HEEBIZR A B ARMEE K
Az T A

BAREFFAEMEERABE
Alﬂhﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁi
NREEFEANWE N EEL
REM2EWRARER RN
EEGEE ABBEETRERT
He2stFBRBE TN
ERABERETHDEEED
WS HEENS EEHFEBERE -

BN 5 B AE 7 WER ik B A R
- R FEAR B BA B R R = i B B
ﬁ?§&$ ZERZTARE
M B R IR S AR -

fﬂ% in < & B

RS TR
-t AN E A 2 A SR
Bt AE2EEA
AR AR ER AR

oy o
pum}

T

DI i 3 1 8
fract
o

D 35 5 < I
° 5 D)@W@
3\_

Bk 2 A S D

i
594

3 SHR - BHARENAR
EMEERAAENE M
AR ERSENEERERA

7

Bk X
ﬁSNM

o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
loan and interest receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL, The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligation;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

J an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(ii)  Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iir)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable date about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner, Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the below basis:

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in FVTOCI revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to retained profits.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or the
Group has the sole discretion to defer payment of distribution
and redemption of principal amount indefinitely are classified
as equity instruments.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables
and deposits received, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, and lease liabilities, are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit and loss.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
financial liability from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when the Group currently
has a legally enforceable legal right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value and restricted
deposits arising from pre-sale of properties that are
held for meeting short-term cash commitments. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-
term cash commitments rather than for investment or
other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management. Such overdrafts are presented
as short-term borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit/loss differs from profit/loss before tax
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sales.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulted in net
deductible temporary differences.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract assets and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Based on the historical pattern, revenue from film distribution
agency service is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation, as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
basis when the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods to its customers.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis, except for the allocation of discounts.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell promised goods or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants (including directors of the Company and
employees of the Group) who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations, under which such participants
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby participants render services as
consideration for equity instruments.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss. When share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.

When share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the profit or loss in respect of the period as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
the Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the profit or loss in
respect of the period as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period. In determining the
present value of the Group's defined benefit obligations and
the related current service cost and, where applicable, past
service cost, the Group attributes benefit to periods of service
under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an employee’s
service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of
benefit than earlier years, the Group attributes the benefit on
a straight-line basis from:

(@) the date when service by the employee first leads to
benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefits are
conditional on further service) until

(b) the date when further service by the employee will lead
to no material amount of further benefits under the plan,
other than from further salary increases.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial
position with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income
is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period
of a plan amendment or curtailment and a gain or loss on
settlement is recognised when settlement occurs. When
determining past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement,
an entity shall remeasure the net defined benefit liability or
asset using the current fair value of plan assets and current
actuarial assumptions, reflecting the benefits offered under
the plan and the plan assets before and after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement, without considering
the effect of asset ceiling (i.e. the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan).

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net defined
benefit liability or asset before plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and the discount rate
used to remeasure such net defined benefit liability or asset,
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability or asset during the period resulting from contributions
or benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and

° remeasurement.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans.
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form
of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions
to the plans.

Discretionary contributions made by employees or third
parties reduce service cost upon payment of these
contributions to the plan.

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be
contributions from employees or third parties, the accounting
depends on whether the contributions are linked to service,
as follows:

o If the contributions are not linked to services (for
example contributions are required to reduce a deficit
arising from losses on plan assets or from actuarial
losses), they are reflected in the remeasurement of the
net defined benefit liability or asset.

. If contributions are linked to services, they reduce
service costs. For the amount of contribution that is
dependent on the number of years of service, the Group
reduces service cost by attributing the contributions to
periods of service using the attribution method required
by HKAS 19 paragraph 70 for the gross benefits. For
the amount of contribution that is independent of
the number of years of service, the Group reduces
service cost in the period in which the related service is
rendered.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier
of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when it recognises any related
restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. When a fair
value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, and a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in profit or loss.

Settlements of monetary items which formed part of net
investment in foreign operations without changes in the
Group's ownership interests is not considered as partial
disposals.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract
is considered to exist where the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received from the contract. The unavoidable costs under a
contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract,
which is the lower of the net cost of fulfilling it and any
compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEMBERREREERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EETBR (&)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions (Continued) e (B)
(a) Other non-incremental costs are allocated even (a) HEMEREREANREREFS
before application of HKAS 37 amendments %*EE‘J%W%Z@?TZFZ

When assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-
making, the Group includes costs that relate directly to
the contract, consisting of both the incremental costs
(to specify, e.g. direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs (to specify, e.g. an allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling that contract) that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts.

(b) Only considered incremental costs prior to (b)
application of HKAS 37 amendments

Prior to application of HKAS 37 amendments on 1 April
2022, the Group only considers incremental costs (to
specify, e.g. direct labour and materials) when assessing
whether a contract is onerous or loss-making. Effective 1
April 2022, outstanding unfulfilled contracts as at 1 April
2022 are assessed by considering both the incremental
costs and an allocation of other costs (to specify, e.g.
an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling that
contract) that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEEERME
31 March 2023
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of
economic benefits to the Group and they are not recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses
continually the development of contingent assets. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the Group recognises the asset and the related
income in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgment. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgment in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of investment in an associate

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment of associate at the end of each reporting period.
Investment in an associate are tested for impairment when
there are indications that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on comparable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. Changes in business circumstances
of the associate may significantly affect the recoverable
amount of the investment which would result in additional
impairment loss to be made or reversal of impairment loss
previously made. Details of the impairment loss recognised
on investment in associate are set out in note 17.

Impairment loss on inventories

Management of the Group reviews the usage of the
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
provision for obsolete and slow-moving items where events
or changes in circumstances indicates that the net realisable
value of such inventories are expected to be less than
their carrying amount. In addition, physical counts on all
inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in order to
determine whether provision is needed to be made in respect
of any obsolete inventories identified. The directors of the
Company are satisfied that adequate provision for obsolete
inventories has been made in the consolidated financial
statements. As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately HK$62,000, net of provision for
obsolete inventories of approximately HK$7,168,000 (2022:
approximately HK$5,483,000, net of provision for obsolete
inventories of approximately HK$13,547,000).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management's judgement
at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that the trade receivables are impaired.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer and the assessment of the expected credit
loss. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of the ability
of the customers to make payments, additional allowances
may be required. As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was approximately HK$6,416,000,
net of impairment of trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,507,000 (2022: approximately HK$10,203,000, net
of impairment of trade receivables of approximately
HK$2,043,000).

The Group uses four categories for expected credit loss
assessment of deposits and other receivables which reflect
their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for
each of those categories. These internal credit risk ratings are
aligned to external credit ratings, where possible.

The information about the expected credit loss assessment of
the Group's receivables are disclosed in note 40.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Management of the Group determines on a regular basis
whether there are any indications that the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are impaired. Impairment
loss for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are impaired when the carrying amounts of each of the
assets exceed their respective recoverable amounts, which
are determined based on the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. The fair values of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated by
reference to their expected selling prices which are affected
by various factors, including market conditions and the
technological occurrence. The value in use calculation requires
the use of estimates such as the future revenue and discount
rates. If the recoverable amount of an item of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount and an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss in respect
of the period. For the current year, no impairment loss was
recognised on the Group's property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (2022: Impairment loss for property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of HK$4,970,000 and
HK$2,641,000 respectively).

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as expected usage of the asset,
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset.
The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment are different from previous estimates.
Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end date based on changes in circumstances.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value measurement of financial
instruments held at fair value classified under Level 3 in
the fair value hierarchy

As at 31 March 2023, convertible bond is carried at fair
value, estimated to be approximately HK$17,160,000 (2022:
HK$16,314,000), with fair value classified under Level 3 and
determined based on significant unobservable inputs using
valuation techniques. Judgment and estimation are required
in establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the
relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to
these factors could result in material adjustments to the fair
value of these financial instruments. Details of the fair value
measurement of the convertible bond are set out in Note 39.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
Investment properties are carried in the consolidated financial
statements at their fair value. The best evidence of fair value
of the Group's investment properties are current prices in an
active market for similar properties in the same location and
condition and subject to similar leases and other contracts.
In making its judgement, management considers information
from: (i) independent valuations; and (ii) external evidence
such as current market rates for similar properties in the
same location and condition. Details regarding the fair value
measurement of the Group's investment properties as at
31 March 2023 are set out in note 16.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2023 was approximately
HK$220,519,000 (2022: approximately HK$219,879,000).
Further details are disclosed in note 28.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following operating segments based on their products and
services:

(a)

the trading segment engaged in trading of optical
frames and sunglasses*;

the property investment segment engaged in leasing of
properties for rental income;

the debts and securities investment segment engaged in
investments in financial instruments and quoted shares;

the film investment and distribution segment engaged
in film right and movie investments and distributions;
and

the energy business segment engaged in investments in
energy sector related instrument and sale and trading of
liquefied petroleum gas products.

The trading segments was organised following the cessation of the
manufacturing and trading segment included in the discontinued
operations (see below).
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Discontinued operations

In addition, the Group discontinued the following operations
which were undertaken by the former subsidiaries, Gold
Strong and its subsidiaries, which were disposed of by the
Group during the current year.

()  the manufacturing and trading segment engaged
in manufacture and trading of optical frames and
sunglasses; and

(9) the property investment segment engaged in leasing of
properties for rental income.

The disposed subsidiaries were considered by the
management as separate major line of business of the
Group. Accordingly, the entire manufacturing and trading
segment and part of the property investment segment were
accounted for as discontinued operations. Details about
these discontinued operations and the disposal are set out
in Note 12. Previously reported figures in respect of certain
segment assets and segment liabilities as at 31 March 2022
and certain segment revenue and segment results for the year
ended 31 March 2022 have been restated to conform with the
presentation of segmental information adopted in respect of
the current year.

The management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit/loss before tax
except that bank and other interest income, finance costs and
unallocated income and gains as well as corporate and other
unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

DEEE (&)
ERIEEERR

LS+ 75 5 B AR L 48 DA TS e AT I
ATSMERLHERT (fhA%E
RAEFE W E) T 25

() WNEREREERBEREABR
BIHENBEEDH R

(90 WEHEVEURDESWAZ
MEREDE -

EEERCLENBARRAKES
VIBXRBR A BERERER
DEHRBAIMREE D HMARIEDR
RIEEEXB -ARAXSTORIEES
XERLENFBHRMEI2-5H
R-B_—_F=ZA=+—HAETHH
BERDHARKBEE-_T__F=
A=+ —HLEFENE T D KGR
SHEREMEMZRATEE A
RERARFERAND BERMNZ5]
R e

BEBERAKERREN M XS
WREEBRDERFERE -DEXR
BRISRE AT R e &R (B
FHEERERTIANGER,EIE) R
RAEBRBANGER, BRI EAREE
BREAEN, BEERE AR
AEXYTBERTREAMHM B WA
MBERARRDEEA R EIA R A
EREMARDEMT -
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets exclude other unallocated head office
and corporate assets, including cash and cash equivalents,
investments in and balances with a joint venture and certain
property, plant and equipment, as these assets are managed
on a group basis.

5.

SEBEF (15)

DHMEETEREEMRSEARER
REXEE H qﬂ”\ﬂ%fﬁ@&fﬁ%—r
BEY R—HAERR ZKE REZ
BERRZEBRIARETYE BFE
R LIARZEFEEREEE

Segment liabilities exclude other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities, including income tax payable, deferred
tax liabilities and other payables, accruals and deposits
received, as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

G-

DEAE
rERAR H
EHREARERE
AEEWES

TEIEEMARDE
LR BIEEMNAER R
o FE < R IE - EET K
IR ZEEER

SEEALEER-

LA B

=

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with HEEEE RE “7—5%%1«/@%‘ BT
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third MERE=FHEZEBMET
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
In respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 BRBE_T-_=F#=HA=+—HIL#E
e
EME
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BREEEH ERILEEER
Film
Debts and  investment
Property  securities and Energy Property Manufacturing
Trading investment investment distribution  business  Subtotal investment  and trading  Subtotal Total
fBER BRRER
ER PERA E5RE BT BEEH Mt BERE  REREER it @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TiET TiET TiET TET FiET F#ET TF#EL TiET FiER TF#ET
Segment revenue Sk 7,773 1,333 - 12,598 - 21,704 343 16,404 16,747 38,451
Inter-segment revenue 7 Rk - - - - - - - - - -
Revenue from external customers RENPEE 2 ks 7773 1,333 - 12,958 - 21,704 343 16,404 16,747 38,451
Segment profit/(loss) SipiRH/ (B8) 2,605 (6,990) (3,623) (8,447)* (4,898)*  (21,353) 1,982 (17,804) (15,822) (37,175)
Bank interest income RTFHSRA - 9 9%
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LEMBARZNE - 7,406 7,406
Bad debt recovery EER M 350 - 350
Corporate and other unallocated expenses (% RE MK AHEF X (14,610) - (14,610)
Finance costs BHER (452) (522) (974)
Share of loss of an associate HME-HBEARZER - - - (997) - (997) - - - (997)
Share of profit of a joint venture HE—HAERA &R 236 - - - - 236 - - - 236
Loss before tax BRAIER (36,826) (8,842) (45,668)
Segment assets SBAE 25893 39,636 222 37576 21,085 124,412 - - - 124812
Corporate and other unallocated assets TEREMADEEE 23,938
Total assets BESE 148,350
Segment liabilities SHER 12,007 366 3,964 14,217 12154 42,768 - - - 42,768
Corporate and other unallocated liabilites ~ SEREMHAFEAE 19,180
Total liabilities AREE 61,948
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STEREAF ()
BTN BOR - 1% B fo SR
&5 18 495,764,000 7t + It Ty A FE I & B

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

Included impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and other

receivables of approximately HK$5,764,000 as the corresponding

assets were previously included in segment assets of energy business. TRt ANREREB DA EE -
i Included impairment loss on investment in an associate of *x BRER-—EBERARZRERBERBELD

9,648,000/ 7T W Th AR EETAE
FRERBTHOMBEE-

approximately HK$9,648,000 as the corresponding assets are included
in segment assets of film investment and distribution.

Continuing operations Discontinued operations

RESEER BRIEEEEE
Film
Debts and  investment
Property  securities and Energy Property Manufacturing
Trading investment investment distribution  business  Subtotal investment  and trading  Subtotal Total
BER E¥RER
BEE 9%R&E E5RE BT RERE Mt HERE  WERER it it
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHERT THRT THR THR THRL TH#RL FET THR THRL FET
Other segment information: EhHBEH:
Share of loss of an associate HME—HBEAAZER - - - (997) - (997) - - - (997)
Share of profit of a joint venture HMi—MAERR R 236 - - - - 236 - - - 236
Depreciation & 346 24 - 388 - 758 - 1,716 1,716 2,474
Impairment loss on investment R-EBERRZ
in an associate REREFR - - - (9,648) - (9,648) - - - (9,648)
(Reversal of)/impairment loss HE(BE)/REFE
of inventories (63) - - - - (63) - 76 76 13

Impairment of trade receivables BB/ (RR) ERERAE

reversed/(recognised) 267 - - 269 - 536 - - - 536
Impairment loss on investment in and BER-HRERARZRER

loan to a joint venture reversed ERTF-HagRAZRERR 351 - - - - 351 - - - 351
Additions to items of property, RENE BERREER

plant and equipment 484 - - - - 484 - - - 484
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2022

5. 9EEHE (E)
MBE—_F-_—_F=H=+—H1L%F

b
EmME
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BRESEH BRILBERH
Film
Debtsand  investment
Property  securities and Energy Property  Manufacturing

investment  investment ~ distribution business Subtotal investment  and trading Subtotal Total

EHRES BYRER
NERE RE B REEHR it MERE BERER gt &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
FET FER FEr FER FEr FEr FER FER FEr
Segment revenue Sk 1,297 - 13,978 - 15,275 6% 40921 41,545 56,820
Inter-segment revenue GETEE - - - - - (20) - (20) (20)
Revenue from external customers RESNBERP 2K 1,297 - 13978 - 15,275 604 40921 41525 56,800
Segment profit/(loss) HipEH/ (H8) (4,104 2297) @147 (15696)  (113244) (10,816)* 5,730* (5086 (118330)
Bank interest income FATFSRA 1 10 1
Bad debt recovery BRKE 3,100 = 3,100
Corporate and other unallocated expenses rEREMAIEAZ (5,120) = (5,120)
Equity-settled share-based payment IS EE A RN BERONR (53,312) = (53312)
Finance costs HKER (1,115) (607) (1,722)
Share of loss of an associate ME—RBERRAZER = = (6,643) = (6,643) = = = (6,643)
Share of loss of a joint venture AME—HAERRZER - = = = = = (150) (150) (150)
Loss before tax KBAIER (176,333) (5833)  (182,166)
Segment assets ApEE 31,669 3484 68,771 26,522 130,446 7,824 77,542 85,366 215,812
Corporate and other unallocated assets rEREMAAEEE 47,19
Total assets BELE 263,011
Segment liabilities HPEE 314 3370 34,745 12,706 51,135 388 44,077 44,465 95,600
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities rEREMAAEEE 20616
Total liabilities afEeE 116,216

* Included gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment # BEHEME BERLZEER 2BRH
of approximately HK$14,948,000 as the corresponding assets were 14,948,000 7T * it J5 M 7N 4E B9 & e Al
previously included in segment assets of manufacturing and trading. AAREREEDBEE-

e Included loss on change in fair value of investment properties of ** BERBEVELREEZ ZEBERN
approximately HK$4,312,000 as the corresponding assets are included 4,312,000/ 7T WL TR EEAY
in segment assets of property investment. XRENIEE-

*kk *kk

Included loss in change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss — investments in film production and impairment
loss on investment in an associate of approximately HK$42,764,000
and approximately HK$46,122,000 respectively as the corresponding
assets are included in segment assets of film investment and
distribution.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 9EEE (B)

Continuing operations Discontinued operations

BELELH BRILEEEB
Film
Debtsand  investment
Property  securities and Energy Property  Manufacturing
investment  investment  distribution business Subtotal investment  and trading Subtotal Total
EHRES BYRER
NERE RE BT REEHR it NERE  BERER Pt st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT FhT TER FET TEr TAL TER TEr
Other segment information: RS BEH:
Share of loss of an associate HME—FBEDAZER = = (6,643) = (6,643) = = = (6,643)
Share of loss of a joint venture ME—-HMARDRAZER = = = = = = (150) (150) (150)
Depreciation i
Segment expenses PHEX y = 1,119 = 1,160 = 3,453 3,453 4613
Unallocated RAR 4
Total @t 4617
Impairment loss on investment in an associate R-RBERRAZBERERE - - (46,122) - (46,122) - - - (46,122)
Impairment loss of inventories FEREER - - - - - - (15) (15) (15)
Impairment of trade receivables reversed/(recognised) [,/ (%32) MR A& - - (209) - (209) - 529 529 320
Impairment loss on investment in and AER-MAERAZREARER
loan to a joint venture reversed T-BAERAZAESE - - - - - - 638 638 638
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

(a)

Revenue from continuing operations from
external customers

SEER (E)
th ig & )

(a)

REIBEFZHREALEX
%5 W

2023 2022
—F=Z= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
(Restated)
(FE3))
Continuing operations HEGEER

Europe M 4,237 =
America EM 2,691 =

The People’s Republic of China RIE AR
("PRC") (including Hong Kong) ([FFE]) (BESEH) 14,341 15,275
Others E A 435 =
21,704 15,275

Discontinued operations CRILEEER
Europe B 6,946 8,972
America EM 8,707 31,297
The PRC (including Hong Kong) TE(BREEE) 808 383
Others HAt 286 873
16,747 41,525
Total revenue 8 a 38,451 56,800

The revenue information shown above is based on the
locations of the customers. The PRC (including Hong
Kong) segment mainly represents rental income from
lease of the Group's properties located in the PRC
(including Hong Kong), the sales of eyewear products to
agents located in Hong Kong including sales made to
local retailers and fair value gains on equity investments
listed in Hong Kong. The directors are of the opinion that
the agents in Hong Kong export the Group's products
mainly to ultimate customers located in Europe and
America.

Non-current assets

All significant operating assets of the Group are
located in the PRC (including Hong Kong). Accordingly,
no geographical information of segment assets is
presented.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from individual customers in respect of the
continuing operations of the corresponding years contributing

5. HE&EH (&)
AFHEEEFRZEHN
A7 8 8 4R B9 45 [ 4 L B BA10% A
EEERE R B EBAAR S

over 10% of total revenue of the Group of the corresponding 2R
years is as follows:
2023 2022
—Eg=-= ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Revenue generated from
ELEBTIHEEZKE
Customer A Film investment and distribution
EFPA BRIRE R 4,000 N/A
T iE A
Customer B Film investment and distribution
®FB BRIRE R 3,000 6,000
Customer C Film investment and distribution
®PFC BB RET 2,600 2,000
Customer D Film investment and distribution
FFD BYRE NETT 2,300 N/A
iE R
Each of the revenue of Customer A, Customer D did not B Z-_—"F#=A=+—HI1LBH&F

FE BEPAREFPDHASEA K=
BRI T E10% -

contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the
prior year ended 31 March 2022.

Revenue from individual customers in respect of the RAEE N FE AW T RI10%H
discontinued operations of the corresponding years HEFEERIESEEBEBAREZ
contributing 10% of total revenue of the Group of the Wasn T

corresponding years is as follows:

2023 2022
—E== —F==
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ERx TET
Revenue generated from
EXETIREZKE
Customer | Manufacturing and trading
BRI EREE 5,600 21,100
Customer || Manufacturing and trading
2RI HERER 3,200 1,600
Customer |lI Manufacturing and trading
2RI HERERE 3,000 5,900
Customer IV Manufacturing and trading
BRIV HERER 1,600 5,900
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. Wi R H A
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, WREHNRREREBEREZITNES
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, gross HEmeBRFE RHESWA
rental income and agency and commission income from film FRORERASBA-
distribution.
An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as REEWZE MEMBAZDFTAT
follows:
Continues operations Discontinued operations
REREEEH ERIEEEETE
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZBC=E —E-CfF —BCZ=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&535) (£535)
Revenue: B8 :
Sale of goods — at point in time ~~ HEER-RE—EBREEH 7,773 = 16,404 40,921
Film distribution agency and ERRETRERAS
commission income - over time A — R 12,598 13,978 - -
Revenue from contracts with REEPEH W=
customers 20,371 13,978 16,404 40,921
Rental income from lease of HEREMEZ
investment properties R ON 1,333 1,297 343 604
Total revenue recognised B R EK R 21,704 15,275 16,747 41,525
Other income and gains: Ht B\ Rz :
Accounting service fee iR E 900 240 875 1,420
Bank interest income RITMEMA - 1 96 10
Bad debt recovery B R 350 3,100 - =
Gain on change in fair value of RO EGFABEZ
financial assets at fair value EREEZAR
through profit or loss 2Pl
— investments in convertible —IBRREFRE
bond (note 22) (Hi5E22) 846 780 - -
Gain on disposal of items of HENE BER
property, plant and equipment REBE W 39 = - 14,948
Gain on disposal of investment ~ HER—FAEERFZ
in a joint venture REZ W - = - 116
Impairment loss on investment BER—He8RmZ
in and loan to a joint venture RERERT—ME
reversed BERAZRHEBE - - - 638
Net foreign exchange gains R Gy - 85 - 2,600
Rental income from lease of ME#KE HEBA
machineries - - 1,622 2,280
Government grants TR A 260 35 23 100
Impairment loss on trade BEEKETRERE
receivables reversed 536 274 - 46
Sales of scrap materials HEREH - - 723 143
Others At 57 60 273 14
2,988 4,575 3,612 22,315
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7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 7. HhEEMX
Continues operations Discontinued operations
REEEXRY ERIEEEEH
2023 2022 2023 2022
—ECZ=g —EZZF —ECZ=E —TZZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT FET TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&&E5) (BEF)
Impairment loss on deposits and  1&& R E i fE MR
other receivables (note 21) WEBE (HE21) 16,142 15,135 - =
Impairment loss on investment in ~ R—E# & R A 2R E
an associate (note 17) ZREBRE (KF17) 9,648 46,122 - =
Impairment loss on investmentin =~ R—HAZ DR ZRER
and loan to a joint venture ERT—HEERAL
(note 18) HEERE (H:18) 351 = - =
Impairment loss on property, mE BER&ERESE
plant and equipment - - - 4,970
Impairment loss on right-of-use ~ FAEEE ZHEBE
assets - = - 2,641
Loss on change in fair value RENERAEEZ
of investment properties (note 16)  &518 (FiE16) 683 1,071 - 3,241
Loss on change in fair value of BRARBERABEL
financial assets at fair value CREELARE
through profit or loss 2HEHRE
—investments in film production ~ —EFRERE
(note 22) (H&E22) - 42,764 - -
— equity investments at fairvalue ~ — R AR EFFABREZ
through profit or loss (note 22) R E (H522) 2,268 827 - =
Others Hith 37 = - =
29,129 105,919 - 10,852
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBEHR
Continues operations Discontinued operations
REEEET ERIEEEER
2023 2022 2023 2022
—BC=E —E-—fF —BCZ=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT TERT THT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&535) (£5&35)
Interest on borrowings EEFS 452 1,064 - -
Interest on lease liabilities HEAETS - 51 522 607
452 1,115 522 607
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31 March 2023
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9. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

9. BRBRIEIE

AEEBRBABEERNE, (FTA)

(crediting): T ZIBEER:
Continues operations Discontinued operations
FEEEER ERLESEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC-Z=E —E-_fF —E-=% —T--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TERT TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE31) (&)
Cost of inventories sold (note a) 2 EFEHKAN (Hiita) 5,493 = 16,627 39,804
Depreciation of property, plant ¥ % BB RRETE
and equipment 758 88 501 2,740
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {f & EH & - - 1,215 1,789
Auditor's remuneration Gl kA
- audit service —BERR% 993 754 200 401
Short-term leases expenses RHRERY 1,084 300 1,459 2,081
Employee benefit expense EERFIRX
(including directors’ (BREEM:)
remuneration):
Wages, salaries and other benefits T& - ¥& kA&7 8,136 10,158 6,872 20,373
Pension scheme contributions RINEFEIHK
(note b) (Misb) 243 263 435 528
Equity-settled share-based W% A E 8 AR 17
payments ABEBENT - 53,312 - -
Total employee benefit expense BB & FIF 45 8,379 63,733 7,307 20,901
Impairment loss/(reversal of FEREEBSE/ (AEESR
impairment loss) of inventories Bm) 63 15 (76) -
Notes: B & -
(a) Included in “cost of sales and services” on the face of the (a) FIANGREBEERTZ [HERRBEKA] -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
pension scheme contributions available to reduce its contributions to
the pension schemes in future years (2022: Nil).

(b) RBEHR AEEWEELBGRKRE 5T
B AR AT ER R R FE 2 RIS 5T 8t
R(ZEZ=F:8\) -
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. E5 - EBRTHASRASZ
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' mEnEEZME
REMUNERATION y
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EERFETHASME

2023 2022
—FEZ= —E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Fees we 360 360
Other emoluments: Hi e :
Basic salaries and bonuses HEA#H & ML 802 1,080
Equity-settled share-based payments LA 25 45 B B A IR (9
RERE - 18,936
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIERK 18 18
820 20,034
Total e 1,180 20,394
a. Independent non-executive directors a. BYUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FARBILIERTEEN 24
for the year were as follows: ST
2023 2022
—EZ=F —E--
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Man Wai Lun SRR 120 120
Cheng Chun Man R R 120 120
Hui Man Ho, Ivan A0S 120 120
360 360
There were no other emoluments payable to the FAMERNEBIIFENTESTZ
independent non-executive directors for the year (2022: Emle (Z2=—=F ) -
Nil).
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EE - FRTBASRASE
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' mREHESZWE (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued) ~ N
Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration EERFETHASME (B)
(Continued) . L R
b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and b. %{Lﬂ'i% CEHTESERETE

the chief executive THAS
Equity-settled Pension
Basic salaries  share-based scheme Total
and bonuses payments  contributions remuneration
WEREH
EXFHe Wik e B
R4 ERHHR at Bl AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT FERT
2023 —EC-=HE
Executive directors: HIES:
Chung Yuk Lun BEM 360 - 18 378
Wong Chong Fai! HEE 221 - - 221
Yu Baodong? FER? 221 - - 221
802 - 18 820
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EE -EETHABRASZ
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ REanESZME (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EERFETHAEME (B)
(Continued)
b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and b. HITEZ IHTEERETE
the chief executive (Continued) THAE (8)
Equity-settled Pension
Basic salaries share-based scheme Total
and bonuses payments  contributions  remuneration
AESEER
EX%E$ kiR A RIKE
R4 BRI STEIf R B¢ @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T T FAT
2022 k- el
Executive directors: HIES:
Chung Yuk Lun EEH 360 6,312 18 6,690
Wong Chong Fai' HEE 360 6,312 - 6,672
Yu Baodong? FER? 360 6,312 = 6,672
1,080 18,936 18 20,034
There was no arrangement under which a director or FAMEESHEZTHRAEN
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any EHREREERME 2 2B

remuneration during the year.
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EE - FETHASRAS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' EEnmESZME (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EERFETBHAENME (&)
(Continued)
b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and b. #BITES IHITEERFE
the chief executive (Continued) THAE (B)
1. Mr. Wong Chong Fai resigned as an executive director with 1. BREBAER T __F+A+—
effect from 11 October 2022. ARETHITES -
2. Mr. Yu Baodong resigned as the chairman and executive 2. FEREEA T -_—_F+A+T—
director with effect from 11 October 2022. ARREBEEERIITES-
Five highest paid employees’ emoluments AZmEFEEZME

The five highest paid individuals for the years ended
31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 do not include any
directors of the Company. Details of the remuneration of the

B Z-_=F=A=+—BKk=_ZF
T HF=A=t-"BIFE REX
BSHEATHTBEBERARAREMRNES-

EXN AZ(ZE_—_F AK)IFE
ERoFALTZHEFHBOT

five (2022: five) non-director, highest paid individuals for the
year are set out below:

2023 2022
—ET== —F-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER TAT

Basic salaries and bonuses AERFr e RIEA 3,823 75
Equity-settled share-based UARE 22 5 E RO LARR £

payments RER - 34,396

Housing benefits FEE®EF 1,596 =

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHEK 91 =

5,510 34,371
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EE -FETBHAESRAS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' mREHESZWE (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued) N N
Five highest paid employees’ emoluments IeemHEEZME (&)
(Continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid individuals whose MEN T THBEEZIEESTTSHA
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: T2 AT
Number of non-director,
highest paid individuals
EEEBHFALTAH
2023 2022
—FEZ= ===
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % £ 2£1,000,000/%8 7T 3 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T £ 1,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T £ 2,000,000/% 7T 1 5
5 5
One of the non-director, highest paid individuals occupied RAFE HP—ZIFEEBEETREEHFA
one of the Group's properties rent free during the year. The TREEERAEEEFR —EYE-
estimated value of the accommodation provided to him is BHE_ZT-_=F=A=T—HILFE"
HK$252,000 for the year ended 31 March 2023, which has A 1R = X B 2 f& 51 B B /252,000
been included in the amounts detailed above. T BEFALEXFREEA -
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FTRBIEX
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RRESER ERILEEEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
k- o —E-_F “ECZ=E S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TER THT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E35) (E5))
Current tax FEAR IR
Hong Kong profits tax BENEH - - - -
Elsewhere Hitit = - - - -
Deferred tax charge (note 28) ERBEX M (HizE8) - (44) - -
Income tax expense FERRX - (44) - -
No provision for the Hong Kong profits tax has been made BRAREENMREZYFE T EES
as the Group does not generate any assessable profits ERBEHNEENNEST 2 BRTA A
subject to Hong Kong profits tax for both of the years IR IREENEHBEE - ARK
presented. No provision for income tax elsewhere has EERATEERLEEXBMERM DA
been made as the Group has no profits assessable in other BEYWEERT RN WAL REFTRE
jurisdictions in which the Group operates. fth b [ 2 BT A5 B B 4 o
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1. FiEHAX (8)

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) =
PREmAX A EigaEaER 2 KRB A

The income tax expense can be reconciled to the loss

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss BEYERNT
as follows:
Hong Kong The PRC Total
& hE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET
2023 —E-=
Loss before tax B T Al B3 18 (35,170) (10,498) (45,668)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BREEMEFEZ KA (5,276) (2,624) (7,900)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR Z F 4,800 - 4,800
Income not subjected to tax BRRBA (275) = (275)
Loss attributable to a joint venture ~—fE& & A R EGEE (39) = (39)
Loss attributable to an associate —EHE R RIEGEBE 165 - 165
Tax losses not recognised ANERHIEEE 625 2,624 3,249
Income tax expense FR5 T 5 2 = = =
2022 —g=-=
Loss before tax BR A% BB 1R (180,652) (1,514) (182,166)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMEFTE 2 HIE (30,382) (378) (30,760)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 X 29,466 378 29,844
Income not subjected to tax HARR WA (3,081) = (3,081)
Loss attributable to a joint venture ~—fEl& & A RIEGEE 25 - 25
Loss attributable to an associate — A& N A fE(LEE 1,096 = 1,096
Tax losses not recognised RERRIAEE 2,920 = 2,920
Income tax expense FTS B 44 = 44
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 28 September 2022, the Group entered into a sale
agreement with, Mr. Hui Leung Wah, a director of a
subsidiary of the Group, to dispose of a subsidiary, Gold
Strong. Gold Strong and its subsidiaries carried out the
Group's operations of manufacturing and trading of optical
frames and sunglasses and property investment. The
disposal was effected in order to give the Group better
financial performances by cessation of cost inefficient
business. The disposal was completed on 24 October
2022, the date on which the control of Gold Strong and
its subsidiaries was passed to the acquirer and the Group
discontinued the operations of manufacturing and trading
of optical frames and sunglasses and part of property
investment previously undertaken by Gold Strong and its
subsidiaries.

The comparative information presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss have been restated to conform
with the current year's presentation.

The loss from discontinued operations is analysed as
follows:

12. ERIEEEEFR
RZEZZFAAZ+TNE X&EE
HAEE -—MWHBARESH =
EEFTY—HEERH LE B
BRralefE «MEREWE QA
REAEBARERZABGRERS
FEEEBRYMERE - ZEHET
B IEEK AR EREBARSEAE
EMEREMET ZBELER T
“HF+A-+HWBERK KRB 2
FERENEARMNESEER T U
Bh AEBEKRIEEELRAESHE
NEKE R R ETHRER N AKGR
REGEREBEEBRIDWERE -

HABRRAMITHLEREHNE T
BEIUREARFEREZ25 5 -

ERIRERBELZEEINWT

2023 2022
k- el -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Loss of discontinued operations REEBRIEEEES
for the year (analysed below) ZEE (DImT) (16,248) (5,833)
Gain of disposal of Gold Strong HEEMEZ W 7,406 =
Loss for the year from ERIEEEEBEE L
discontinued operations AEEBHE (8,842) (5,833)
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The results of the discontinued operations for the period
from 1 April 2022 to 24 October 2022 are analysed as below:

12. BRILEEER (8B)
ERIEREEBERE_T-__FWA
—ARE-_TE-_—_F+A=-+WMAIL
HMZ &S T

Period from
1 April 2022 to
24 October 2022

Year ended
31 March 2022

B-®=-=-%F

mA—HEE H=
—E-—F ===
+A=+mA =A=+—H
-2 IEFE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 TER FAET
Revenue W s 6 16,747 41,525
Cost of sales 85 & KA (18,118) (39,629)
Gross profit/(loss) ERN(E8) (1,371) 1,896
Other income and gains - NS & 6 3,612 22,315
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAY (290) (727)
Administrative expenses THFEX (17,677) (17,708)
Other operating expenses Hih & &R 7 - (10,852)
Finance costs p == 8 (522) (607)
Share of loss of a joint venture AMh—REEERRZ

BB - (150)
Loss before tax MR R E 1 9 (16,248) (5,833)
Income tax expense e R 11 - -
Loss for the period/year NEAR FEEE (16,248) (5,833)
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13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BiREE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to ARBIEEABEBREABIENDE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: RIA TR E -

Continuing and

discontinued operations Continuing operations

FEEERCRIEEEET FHEEEES
2023 2022 2023 2022
=ti== —ET-— === —FT-—
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHERT FET
Loss for the purpose of AR EESRER
basic loss per share BENEE
Loss for the year ZN/NEIEZ Z SN
attributable to owners ElIEAFEER
of the Company (77,389) (177,076) (36,826) (176,377)
2023 2022 2023 2022
—F¥=-= —ET-— === =
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Tz T A% F iz T
Number of shares for FAREEREX
the purpose of basic BHEERSESE
loss per share
Weighted average EEITERER
number of ordinary DN 5 8
shares in issue 872,864 872,864 872,864 872,864
The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume RAESRESERRE T ERRITE

the exercise of the Company’s share options granted
because the exercise prices of those share options granted
were higher than the average market prices for shares of the
Company for each of the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022.

No diluted loss per share is presented as the Group had
no other potential ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 or as at those dates.

ARAREREZERE RFERAER
ZEBREZOTDFEEEREBEE_Z
= =ZA=t+-—"HBRk-E-_—F=
A=+ HULEFESFEERRRAKRHZ
FHmE-

HREBE_S_=ZFRK_T_—_F=
A=+ HLEFESIRZEBHEAE
B EEMEHTEELT AR W
EmE2VGREEEE-
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. V¥ -BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
building  improvement  machinery equipment vehicles Total
{5 KB
HEME KRR RBAE
THRETF K e HL ] RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TEL TER
At 1 April 2022 R-F--¥MA-A
Cost KA 52,886 16,093 17,108 8,560 5,373 100,020
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERBE (23,796) (13,431) (17,105) (7,954) (4,748) (67,034)
Carrying amount FHE 29,090 2,662 3 606 625 32,986
Carrying amount at 1 April 2022 R-F-ZEMA-BH
REE 29,090 2,662 3 606 625 32,986
Additions, at cost AE (BRAK) - - 8 o 476 484
Depreciation provided for the year ERfEHITERE (469) (388) (1) (250) (151) (1,259)
Disposals during the year FERLE - (3) - - - 3)
Disposal of subsidiary HEWBAR (22,150) (1,780) - (109) (567) (24,606)
Exchange realignment RS (2,192) (175) (1) (158) (24) (2,550)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2023 R-B-=E=A=+-8H
REE 4,279 316 9 89 359 5,052
At 31 March 2023 R-Z®-=%=A=+-H
Cost A 9,127 3,881 8,987 7,774 3,683 33,452
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZAMERBE (4,848) (3,565) (8,978) (7,685) (3,324) (28,400)
Carrying amount KR 4,279 316 9 89 359 5,052
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME-BERRE(E)

(Continued)

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings  improvements  machinery equipment vehicles Total
R KB
HEME BER RHAE
THREF 30 e B HE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRL THRL THL Thn THL THTL
As at 1 April 2021 R=F=-£MA-B
Cost KA 54,784 15,607 16,676 8416 5290 100,773
Accumulated depreciation and impairment LHTERRE (19.223) (12,374) (16,549) (7,594) (3.837) (59,577)
Carrying amount REE 35,561 3233 127 822 1453 41,19
Carrying amount at 1 April 2021 R-B--EMR-HZREE 35,561 3233 127 822 1453 41,196
Additions, at cost AE (R K) = = = = = =
Depreciation provided for the year FRENTERR (862) (704) (128) (243) (886) (2,828)
Impairment loss recognized for the year FRERLAEER (4.970) - - - = (4.970)
Disposals during the year ERNLE (1,838) - (12) - = (1,850)
Exchange realignment ERAE 1,199 133 16 32 58 1438
Carrying amount at 31 March 2022 R-B-Z£ZA=+-B2
REE 29,090 2,662 3 606 625 32,986
At 31 March 2022 R-¥-Z£ZR=+-H
Cost KA 52,886 16,093 17,108 8,560 53713 100,020
Accumulated depreciation and impairment LHTERRE (23,796) (13431) (17,109) (7.954) (4748) (67,034)
Carrying amount REE 29,090 2,662 3 606 625 32986

MWEHE-_ZT-_—_F#=-—A=+—HItB
FEEMT  L2EHNEB{EHERDFT S
BzHREGRTEE EH5It TR
BF(GFAVE BEEREKE) MHEE
T (FAAFEREEE) BRRERRE
474,970,000 JT %2,641,0007% 7T © 1
EpEBE_T _=ZF=-A=+—A8H1t
KREEHRAEEB LW REEFURAE
B i 2 BERE -

Regarding the prior year ended 31 March 2022, impairment
loss amounted to approximately HK$4,970,000 and
HK$2,641,000 were recognised on land and buildings
(included in property, plant and equipment) and leasehold
land (included in right-of-use assets) respectively by
reference to their estimated sale prices valued by an
external valuer. No impairment loss on the Group’s land and
buildings and leasehold land was recognised in respect of
the current year ended 31 March 2023.

SAALMBEBFZETEFZLME
RREEB2IRNEREEE] -

The land use rights of certain buildings included in land and
buildings are separately presented in “Right-of-use assets”.
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. FRHESE

Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HELH HEYME @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET
(note a) (note b)
GESY (FIzEb)
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZEZ=%f
=A=+-—H
Carrying amount AREE = = =
As at 31 March 2022 R-B=-—f
=A=+-—H
Carrying amount REE 18,769 533 19,302
For the year ended BE-FC-=
31 March 2023 ZA=+—-BHLEE
Depreciation charge TEEH (682) (533) (1,215)
Carrying amount eliminated i BB R A S 8
on disposal of subsidiary ZERHE{E (16,310) - (16,310)
Exchange realignment [ 5 A% (1,777) - (1,777)
For the year ended BE-T-_-f
31 March 2022 ZA=+—BHLEE
Depreciation charge TEEH (723) (1,066) (1,789)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets ~ {FHEEEREKIE (2,641) - (2,641)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 55 B 863 - 863
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. FRHEESE (&)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
BE—T—-= HE—_ZT-_—
=A=+-8B =A=f-~H
ILEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Expenses relating to short-term leases EHAEEBEAX 2,543 2,381
Total cash outflow for leases HERES R @58 1,850 4,040
Notes: B 7 -

(a) At 31 March 2022, the Group owned various industrial buildings in
the PRC where its manufacturing facilities were primarily located. The
Group was the registered owner of the relevant property interests,
including the land in DaHou Village, XieGang Town of DongGuan,
with the lease term of 50 years, and the land in Yin Hu industrial area,
XieGang Town of DongGuan, which had 50 years fixed lease term with
monthly payments by the Group. For the land in DaHou Village, the
consideration for land acquisition in lump sum payments were fully
made by the Group. The leasehold land components of the owned
property were presented separately as the payments made can be
allocated reliably. The relevant right-of-use assets were derecognised
during the current year upon disposal of subsidiaries.

(b) The leased properties at 31 March 2022 represented the Group's lease
of a residential property for accommodation provided to management
staff. Lease contract was entered into for fixed term of two years.
Lease terms were negotiated on an individual basis and contained
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applied the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable. As at 31 March 2022, the
Group had termination option in the lease for the residential property.
The relevant right-of-use assets were derecognised during the current
year upon disposal of subsidiaries.

Management considers the lease of assets are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group's operations.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it
is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options or not
to exercise the termination options. There was no potential
exposures to these future lease payments for (i) extension
options in which the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise; and (ii) termination options in which the Group is not
reasonably certain not to exercise.

There was no additional lease liabilities in relation to right-
of-use assets recognised during each of the years ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 as a result of (i) exercising
extension option that the Group was not reasonably certain
to exercise and (ii) not exercising termination option that the
Group was not reasonably certain not to exercise.

(@) WR-ZE-_—F=ZA=+—8 KEERF
BEAEZBIERNE  HRERMEZN
REB-AEEARBYEEZR (BER
Hi AR50 M Z i R R e 3 A B #—
Pt R ASOFEEME B AL EIR
ANBZAREEHEBERA T EEN—
BIH)NELZEBA - RURKEND
T E THREREEHAER K
MAE - FTBEEMENTE T EK D
B2 AAMNKEA ED -8B
FRAEEERATERLENE R ARR
IEFERR ©

b) RKR-ZE-——F=ZA=t+—HAmHEEHWER
AEBARERASRBEMMAEAE—I8
FEME -HEENREEMFFHRTL -
HEKFIZERNEEER WERESE
TR GERRGEE -EEEHE B RTE
A ez SR NEEEAENNE
BRUBESHNARFNTHHRR -R=F
ZZHF=ZRA=+—H FAEBEREEME
HEFRHEARINEE# - HEECHESR
ERAFEREEMBARIRKIERER

EEERSHEEERANKREER
SEZEMAEETENEERLN
BAERS-

AEBRHERBERTEEEAE
BETEEREZBITITERLE
BRE-ZFRAREAENTROANEE
IR EEEITENTEREZRE (i)
REBWFESEREE NITERK LR
BREmE SEEERR-

RBE_Z_=F=RA=+t—BkZ=
T _HF-A=TBHLERFE HE
EREAEEERBEIEERR
BT R R )ITE AN R B 3F 5 I HEE
TREMEREEE: ROTTERAEE
WIFAEMETE NMTEMK ILEEE-

SHEXERBEEER QR 2022/2023 F3R
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15.

16.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 15. ER#EAE (15)
In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably Ioh REBSEEER BAMEAE
certain to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a FHEREHRERBRAEEGE &
termination option, upon the occurrence of either a significant TR SEEREETRERERE
event or a significant change in circumstances that is within B TTREKLEE#E-RNBE_T
the control of the lessee. During the years ended 31 March —=ERZFZ__F=RA=1+—HI
2023 and 2022, there is no such triggering event. FE - BELRABABESEMG-
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. B EYE
2023 2022
—F_-= T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ERT FET
Fair value at beginning of year RENZ ARME 59,330 63,181
Loss on change in fair value BRZANBEES
recognised ZEE (683) 4,312)
Disposal of subsidiaries L E KB A (7,272) -
Exchange realignment PE 7 38 (527) 461
Fair value at end of year RERZARE 50,848 59,330

The Group's investment properties consist of two (2022: two)
industrial properties in Hong Kong, one (2022: one) residential
property in Hong Kong, no (2022: one) industrial property and
one (2022: one) commercial property in the PRC. The directors
of the Company determined that the investment properties
consist of three classes of assets, i.e., industrial, commercial
and residential, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group's investment properties were
revalued on 31 March 2023 based on valuations amounted to
approximately HK$50,848,000 as valued by Roma Appraisals
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers (2022:
approximately HK$59,330,000 as valued by Roma Appraisal
Limited and AP Appraisal Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers).

Each year, the Group’s financial controller decides, after
approval from the audit committee, to appoint external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s financial controller has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation result once a year when the valuation is performed
for annual financial reporting.

AEBONRENZBENRBENMEA

TECCF ME)IEMER—E
—E o F—H)EEWEUAER
FEMNZE(ZE_—_F:—H)IT*
MER—B(ZTE__F:—I5)FFE

WME-BEBESEDENEE  FEKEE
B ANAEZTRAREENERE=
BEE IE BEREE-RES
VEELAGERHEMESHEI-HSE
RARETHHE AEBREYME
R-EBE_=F=A=+—BEHMHE
£ #150,848,0008 T (Z T - —F A
BYEXABERGEMZESBERET G
BR A aE RAP Appraisal Limitedi#1T
&) 1 8 % 459,330,000 7T )

AEBYHBEESFRREEREZE
FHERREZEINFEEMAER
AEEMENIFHE-BERMTFE
EMEAE EE - BUGHEESH
REXRE-AKENBRESER
A2 F B S R R 1T 4 (B B A E R
PAERRREESRETIM
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. IR EYE (E)

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group's investment properties are included
on pages 223 and 224 of the Company's 2022/2023 annual
report.

Fair value hierarchy

All the Group's investment properties were classified under
Level 3 in the fair value measurement hierarchy.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

REYERBKEHNEATE=H
E—THEFBIHRNGE T EREMN
5536 °

AEBREMVEZFBIARAEAR

T :7__$¢ﬁ%QQUM
Eo
AREER

REXRKERENEDBERAER
EEMBIF -

FRN TERAALEFERB1REFE2
W s IRE R A SR B I EIR (=
T FE)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within PEERARBEEREIRZARER
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: YK
Commercial Industrial Residential
property properties property Total
HENE IxM% EEME @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THET THT TR
Carrying amount at 1 April 2021 RZE-_—FWA—BH
RHE 1,895 26,786 34,500 63,181
(Loss)/gain of change in fair value REZEAZAAEZE
recognised in profit or loss (BB /hE 109 (2,521) (1,900) 4,312
Exchange realignment B 5 80 381 - 461
Carrying amount at 31 March 2022 RZZE-_—5=A=t—H
HEREE 2,084 24,646 32,600 59,330
(Loss)/gain on change in fair value REZBRAZANEESH
recognised in profit or loss (B1R) ez (103) 1,020 (1,600) (683)
Disposal of investment property upon 1 i & ff & 72 &l b5
disposal of subsidiaries HEREYE - (7,272) - (7,272)
Exchange realignment [E 5 A (153) (374) = (527)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2023 RZE-_=%5=A=1—H
MR E 1,828 18,020 31,000 50,848
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

16. ILEME (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Below is a summary of the significant inputs to the valuation
of investment properties:

AREBEER (E)
KENEHREZEZH AHEMEN
T

Significant Weighted average price per
Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs square foot/square metre
BEHRFEFHK
fH{ERI5 EXETTHRGARR InHEE Y EE
2023 2022
—EF_-= ===
Commercial properties Market comparison Price per square metre HK$46,088 HK$52,549
in the PRC approach
FEBERDR M5 EOR TP K ER 46,088#T 52,5497
Industrial properties in  Market comparison Price per square foot HK$5,210 HK$4,700
Hong Kong approach
BEIRME ML EOR FFHRER 5,210# 7T 4,700 7T
Industrial properties in  Market comparison Price per square metre N/A HK$1,192
the PRC approach iEH
FEITEYF M S EOR TR ER N/A 11928 T
AER
Residential property in  Market comparison Price per square foot HK$11,285 HK$11,867
Hong Kong approach
BBEEME M5 L EOR FF 7 RER 11,2858 11,8678 7T

Under market comparison approach, the properties are
valued on the market basis assuming sales in their existing
state with the benefit of vacant possession and by reference
to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant
markets. Comparison is based on prices realised in actual
transactions or asking prices of comparable properties.
Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the
differences between such properties in terms of age, time,
location, floor level and other relevant factors.

In estimating fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

A significant increase/(decrease) in price per square foot and
price per square metre would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.

REMBLEE RENETIRTH
HEEMBE BRAFVETIURIR
FHE Y2ERBMEAFIAE
HEEERR - LR DERERR S
REE BRI ELBRYEZEE -
ZE - RREVEZER HHE- i
HEBESEMEMHEBRRZEZSR
FHEERE-

REFAMREZAAEBRE VRZES
E&EREREBRAR-

G REE RS F 5K EREEE
m/ GRS MERBRENMEL AR
ERERN (RD) -
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2023
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17.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—EBE AT ZHE
2023 2022
—B-=F —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Unlisted associate JE Bt E AT
Cost of investment &8 AR 110,000 110,000
Share of post-acquisition profit and FEAE Wi 18 05 B K2
other comprehensive income HEih2mEUA 27,506 29,858
Impairment loss recognised B rERREEE (108,506) (98,858)
29,000 41,000
Movements during the year are as follows: REZBEMT :
2023 2022
—E-=F —=E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT
At beginning of the year RE A 41,000 93,000
Share of post-acquisition reserves FE(G W BB 12 (1
— (Loss)/profit for the year —FRN (EE),SEH (997) (6,643)
— Other comprehensive income —HEma2mkA (1,355) 765
Impairment loss recognised REEZEDHERRE
for the year (note 7) B8 (M 7E7) (9,648) (46,122)
At end of the year RER 29,000 41,000

SHABEBEEBGFR QA 2022/2023 £ 175
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17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—RIBEATIZERE (EB)

(Continued)

The unlisted investment represents the Group's 25% (2022:
25%) equity interest in Filmko Culture Limited (“Filmko

Culture”).

Particulars of the associates of the Group (comprising Filmko

FETREEAKERESEXLER
2R (2] M25% (ZF ==
F 1 25% ) B RHE

AEEBENR (BREEXERE

Culture and its subsidiaries) are as follows: MEAR)MFBNT:
Proportion
Principal  Issued ordinary/  equity interest
Place of place of registered  attributable to
Name incorporation business paid -in capital the Group Principal activities
TEEE CRTTERS FREREY
£ R T s B 2 ERMAERE IRIELLH TERE
Filmko Culture British Virgin Islands PRC Ordinary 25%  Films distribution and
("BVI") US$10,000 production in Hong
Kong and Mainland
China
43¢ RBRIHEE i P EERTPEAMNES
([(REBELES]) 10,000% 7T BT RRME
Filmko Entertainment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 25%  Films distribution and
Limited* HK$10,000 production and
artiste product
ERREFRRA BB BE gl BYBITREENES
10,0007 7T 81E
Nanjing Xinhao Film PRC PRC Registered 25%  Investment holding
Culture Development RMB23,000,000
Co., Limited*
MRERTAXLERA i i EEMARE RAER
R A 23,000,0007T
Jiangsu Anshi Yingna PRC PRC Registered 25%  Film distribution and
Film Distribution Co. RMB 10,000,000 agency service
Limited*
IHZARREZETA HE e ERMARS BRETRRERSE
R A 10,000,0007T
Khorgors Anshi Yingna PRC PRC Registered 25%  Film distribution and
Films Distribution RMB 10,000,000 agency service
Co. Limited*
ERRMZARMERE HE e ERMARS BRETRRERSE
TERRF* 10,000,0007T
& These entities are wholly-owned by Filmko Culture. & ZEERHEE L2 EHEE -
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17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
(Continued)

Note:

(i) The above associates have been accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

(i) Management of the Group conducted a review of the recoverable

amount of the investment in the associate, Filmko Culture. The
recoverable amount of the investment in Filmko Culture has been
determined, by reference to a valuation performed by an external
valuer, Ravin Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, on the basis of fair
value less cost of disposal.

In determining the fair value of the investments in associates, market
approach was adopted by the valuer as it is considered to be the
most appropriate valuation approach in this valuation.

Under the market approach, the guideline public company method
is adopted. Significant inputs for the valuation included adopted
earnings before interest and tax ("EBIT"), adopted enterprise value
("EV")-to-EBIT ratio and discount of lack of marketability.

A significant increase/(decrease) in adopted EBIT would result in
a significant increase/(decrease) in the recoverable amount of the
investment in the associate. A significant increase/(decrease) in
adopted EV-to-EBIT ratio would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the recoverable amount of the investment in the
associate. A significant increase/(decrease) in discount of lack of
marketability ratio would result in a significant (decrease)/increase in
the recoverable amount of the investment in the associate.

Coupled with the management expectation of continuous decline
in the overall film industry performance, the directors consider it
appropriate to recognise, based on the valuation of the associate,
impairment loss for the year against the investment amounted to
HK$9,648,000 (2022: HK$46,122,000), which was included in other
operating expenses (note 7).

=X BEEEEBR AR 2022/2023 3% 177

17. R—REBEAT 2/E (8)

B

E B s N AR A R AR % F
BMERAARR -

o)

)

AEEEEBHNBERRAER XL
BREMARE S FEATTERN - REMRE XL
ZRENATKESHEE S E S B LB
Ravin Global Appraisal Advisory Limited
ETHMERRAR BERLERANEE

REENBMERRZREN R E %A
EMRATHSE BRERREZRMGE
RZIERRABNMGET A

EMHAET HAES LW ARE &M
ENERBABERERANEHAZT
(TEmaAan]) KANSEER D
XEBEEDHERNBANZLERRZ T
SRR

RANSHAN AT KEE M, CRd) B
BYRBHERRZRENAREEEANE
#gm,/ ORd) - RBAHEEEEYEH
&R Z L RRIERE M CRD) 158 B
PR E R B 2 & /Y AT IR 3 S %7K 1 45 0
S ORD) - RETISREBERR L R X
B, Ol ) S BRE S R A 2R
B W E S AR Ord) /e

HEEEEBHEHTERREERETE
WIBH EFRABREZHEDANMGEE
TR E IR E R E 189,648,000/ 7T (=
T = 146,122,000 T) BAE R
RS ET AL MCER T (HE7) -
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17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
(Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated

17. R—REBEAT 2/E (8)

TREI ZBERFREKE QA
REMBEMNMERES MEHRRM
SRR B R AR

financial information in respect of the associate and its
subsidiaries, reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

BE-E=-= =
=A=+-H =A=+—8
W fE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue Yz 11,331 5,713
Loss before tax 75 B B 1B (3,990) (26,573)
Income tax expense FTigBiRA X - =
Loss for the year FANERE (3,990) (26,573)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income H M2 (X ), WA (5,424) 3,062
Total comprehensive expense RS A% (9,414) (23,511)
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
—FEZ= —F-=
=A=+-B =A=f—~
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Non-current assets EREBEE 48,398 48,578
Current assets REEE 94,719 110,060
Current liabilities REAEE (76,391) (82,498)
Net assets BEFE 66,726 76,140
Reconciliation of the above summarised il B 7 & # i 2 £
financial information to the carrying REBRBERAZ
amount of the Group's investment KREHNREEHER:
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBE 2 HEARELD 25% 25%
Group's share of net asset of REEELBEE QA
the associate excluding goodwill BERE TEEEE 16,682 19,034
Goodwill on acquisition U B g 2 120,824 120,824
Impairment loss on investment EERNEE N AIRE
in associate recognised ZREE R (108,506) (98,858)
Carrying amount of the investment KEZREE 29,000 41,000
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18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. R—REIEEATZEE
2023 2022
—Eg-= —E_C
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET AT
Share of net assets L& EFE 1,177 872
Loan to a joint venture m—EEEAFER 2,795 2,749
3,972 3,621
Provision for impairment VIRERE L (3,972) (3,621)
Movement during the year are as follows: FREESHWT
2023 2022
—Eg-= —EFE-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
At beginning of the year REFE ) - =
Share of post-acquisition reserves JE A U5 i 12 17 s
— (Loss)/profit for the year —FR(BER) B 236 (150)
— Other comprehensive income —Hn2EKA 69 46
(Repayment from)/advance to BB ARZ (BXK), 8%
joint venture 46 (534)
Impairment loss on investment in and  (F&3R) ,/ # Bl 7 —
loan to a joint venture (recognised)/ EERBZEENRER
reversed FT—HAEERFZ
BIEEE (351) 638
At end of the year RER - =

The loan to a joint venture of approximately HK$2,795,000
(2022: approximately HK$2,749,000) is unsecured, interest-
free and is not repayable within one year from the end of the
reporting period. In the opinion of the directors, the loan is
considered as part of the Group's net investment in the joint
venture.

m—fE & %R B 42,795,000 T
— T = T F: 492,749,000/ 7T ) A
EHE A BEERIAEREREHA—
FRNEE-EERE ERXWEAELE
BREENRREFRE 2 —HD-

=R EREEEEABR AR 2022/2023 F3k 179
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18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

The directors had conducted impairment testing on the
Group's investment in a joint venture and considered that
the recoverable amount of the investment is insignificant
as a result of the expected operating losses of the joint
venture, accordingly, impairment loss was recognised in
full on the investment in the joint venture. For the current
year, impairment loss on the investment amounted to
approximately HK$351,000 was charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (note 7). For the prior year ended
31 March 2022, a reversal of impairment previously recognised
amounted to approximately HK$638,000 was credited to
consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 6).

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2023
i sy = 2= 5| = -—5]

18. R—REEEABZ2H/E (B)

§$5ﬁ$%l% MegERARZE
é TR E R & HE“AM“Tﬁ
HEEBEEERENTRESET
EK EHit ERNELE ARG Z2RER
BHERABREGEBR RAFE REZ
RUE B 18 49351,0008 T B &R A 18 K
Wk (K sE7) BE_TE-_—_F=A
=+ BLEBAFE LAERZR
B #% 0] 49638, Ooox’énﬁ)\i?é-ﬁa 5 3%
(FfrE6) °

AEEEERRZHBHT:

Percentage of

Ak
Particulars Place of
of issued registration ~ Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held  and business interest power sharing Principal activities
P E#T R
Z8 i BB GREER RE# Bihim® FREH
Guangzhou Jiashimei Registered The PRC 20 20 20 Trading of optical
Optical Company capital of (2022: 20) (2022: 20) (2022: 20)  frames
Limited (“Jiashimei") RMB1,000,000
BMERILBRE A AR TB (ZFz=fF (ZFZ=fF (2% RERZES
BRAR (TERX]) AEH :20) :20) :20)
1,000,0007T
The joint venture was registered as a Sino-foreign joint B &R AITRE T BUER M AT s
venture under the PRC law and is held through a wholly- BEREGERBEBARAZEEMN
owned subsidiary of the Company. BRRIFER -

The joint venture has been accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

The joint venture adopts 31 December as its financial year
end date to comply with relevant regulations in the PRC. The
consolidated financial statements have been adjusted where
appropriate for the material transactions of the joint venture
between 1 January 2023 and 31 March 2023.

BERRREREZNUFLRA
R

& B 7% 3k

BERARERAtT_A=t—H#ERE
BREEEERBAETHEBERR
fl-tREMBHRERDAEAGERAR =
T_=F— ﬂ—E:th?f_i H
=T —RETZERXRZELHE

%E&o
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18. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group's joint venture:

18. R—RB&E AT

TRINTAREEERRZHHER

RE&E ()

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
gE-—T-= BE-_Z_——
=A=+—H =A=+—H
IFEE WEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THBT
Revenue g 14,086 6,175
Profit/(loss) before tax B AR R (EiE) 1,183 (589)
Income tax expense FTISBiF - =
Profit/(loss) for the period HREA S (EE) 1,183 (589)
Other comprehensive income H 2w A 345 189
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 2ERA ()85 1,528 (400)
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
—Eg-= —EFE -
=A=+-H =A=+-~8
HK$'000 HK$’000
F#ET BT
Non current assets ERBEE 6,947 11,651
Current assets MENEE 28 3,761
Current liabilities mBAaE (1,088) (957)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (10,096)
Net assets BEFE 5,887 4,359
Reconciliation of the above summarised LB ER B E
financial information to the carrying HEAREEREERA
amount of the Group's investment ZIRBHRE(ESHER
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEE 2 AR 20% 20%
Group's share of net asset of the AEBEMLEGE AT
joint venture BEFE 1,177 872
Loan to a joint venture m—EAEARER 2,795 2,749
Impairment loss on investment RN /NE]
in a joint venture recognised KREZRIEEE (3,972) (3,621)
Carrying amount of the investment KEZEREE - =

=X EEEEEBR QAT 2022/2023 £ 181
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19. INVENTORIES 19. &

2023 2022

—Eg-= —E__
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ETT FET
Inventories, at gross amount FE®RE 7.230 19,030
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (7,168) (13,547)
62 5,483

An analysis of inventories is as follows: FEASWWAT:

Raw materials R 62 2,313
Work in progress &M - 1,596
Finished goods RIRK o - 1,574
62 5,483

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of AEBGERERE2EZHNOT:

inventories are as follows:

2023 2022

—g-= —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At beginning of the year REA 13,547 21,423
(Reversal of)/provision for the year FEN(BE) B (13) 15
Eliminate upon disposal of subsidiaries B B A BB (12,597) =
Written off for the year F N - (8,638)
Exchange realignment R (875) 747
At end of the year RER 62 13,547
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

20. FEYTBR 7R

2023 2022

—Eg-= —E =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables, gross amount JE UL BR TR 48 58 7,923 12,246
Less: impairment loss recognised B B ERBEEE (1,507) (2,043)
6,416 10,203

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally ranging
from 45 to 120 days (2022: 45 to 120 days). Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
each reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
impairment loss recognised, is as follows:

AEBHEEREF X SIERTDEEI
BRER F T MBS —ARZAERA
MBI EEH— KN F45=1208
(- —F:452120H) - ZEEF %
ERAGELER - ANEESRk#EFY
HAEERKFBEZBZEBREHNRE
BREEERR - BPEHSHESRE
EETHR ER Ltz kAEEH
ZRERKVEREZZTEEFER W
WA FEEASFEERR - A&E
I 4 L FE ULBR XA et A T (4R R
B 3R E b {5 P 3 AR o B WK AR FRAE S AT

B o
N

NEREHRZBEZAHZ27 2 EW
BRA (B EERRERERE) ZRED
Hranr

2023 2022

—g-= ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Within 90 days 90H A 5,554 4,619
91 to 180 days 91£180H - 3
181 to 360 days 181£360H 862 5,581
6,416 10,203

=X EEEEEABR AR 2022/2023 £ 183
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements in the impairment loss recognised on trade
receivables are as follows:

20. FEWBRER (&)
St 7 Uk B 2% R 3R YR (S 4B 2 % B
—F 3

2023 2022
—E-=f =B==

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

At beginning of the year REF] 2,043 2,363
Reversal of impairment BRI EEE

losses recognised (note 6) o] (F1Es) (536) (320)

At end of the year NER 1,507 2,043

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

WAR AR RE Z B W IR BRIk 2 T 1A
T

2023 2022

—g-= =S
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired I K 38 B SR B 3,940 3,487
Less than one month past due #ER D — & A 454 1,095
One to three months past due BE— = =18 A 1,160 37
More than three months past due wERER B = 1E A 862 5,584
6,416 10,203

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

21. BfRIE - ZER A B

RECEIVABLES ®IE
2023 2022
—g=-= —E-_—
HK$'000 HK$’000
F#ET FAT
Deposits paid for acquisition of RIS ERTE N
equity investment (Note (a)) & (M) 27,800 27,800
Prepayments TE IR 4,808 5,003
Disposal receivable (Note (b)) JFE W & FRIE (B k(b)) 11,000 =
Distribution receivable from REEFREZDIK
film production (Note (c)) FEUW kI8 (KYsE(c)) 4,653 21,380
Other receivables (Note (d)) H b pE W kI8 (M sEd)) 15,552 17,441
63,813 71,624
Less: impairment loss recognised B B ERBEEE (31,577) (15,435)
Total st 32,236 56,189
Less: non-current portion W IEmBI A D (5,913) =
Current portion mENER 26,323 56,189
Notes: B = -

(a)

The Group entered into an agreement under which the Group agreed
to subscribe for 50% equity interest in H. Sterling LNG Terminal
Holding Limited (“H. Sterling LNG") a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, for an aggregate consideration of RMB223
million, of which aggregate deposits amounted to HK$27,800,000 were
paid by the Group up to the end of the reporting period. According
to the agreement for subscription, H. Sterling LNG will own 21%
equity interests in Yantai LNG Terminal Project Company immediately
prior to the completion of the subscriptions. Yantai LNG Terminal
Project Company is principally engaged in the gas operation, import
and export of goods and technology and import and export agency
services, and is a project company established to implement the
Yantai LNG Terminal Project. Completion of the Group's subscription
of 50% equity interest in H. Sterling LNG has not taken place up to 31
March 2023 and the date of approval of those consolidated financial
statement. The management of the Group considered it appropriate
to make impairment loss on the deposit amounted to HK$16,350,000
(2022: Nil) which was charged to profit or loss in respect of the year.

The disposal receivable represents the outstanding balance of
the cash consideration for the disposal of the Company's former
subsidiary, Gold Strong Industrial Limited, details of which are set
out in note 33. Having assessed the financial position of the counter
party and the underlying economic environments, management of the
Group considered it appropriate to make accumulated impairment
loss on the receivables amounted to HK$159,000 (2022: Nil) which was
charged to profit or loss in respect of the year.

REBMRIL W% - Bt AEERSREH.
Sterling LNG Terminal Holding Limited
(H. Sterling LNG | » —E 3R & 5z & &
SHEMKZZ XA 50%# BRER
AR#223,000,0007T EF B REERE
HIR A & B B X 142 £ 48 %827,800,000/%
T BRRABRETKA  RERBHZ
H. Sterling LNGH A & & R{ER A R
WUhIA B R A1 %M R - B A RIERA
RERHBEEARNETERERARLE &
MMM L QAR ARERE =
—HABEBESRERAREKRIMIEAR
MKZMIERAB -BEE_T_=F=H
=+ -BRZEFEAUBRRMUEDS
REEEREH. Sterling LNGZ50% A% # %
AEK - AEBEBERARERSELR
B 1516,350,0008 L (Z B =6 F)
(BEAXAFERSFHR)IBEE -

HERYGRREHERARBMMEARS
MEIXBERARCREKRERBES
B HFBERMEBRE - LB 5Y
FHOBBRRRABEERRR A%
BEEER /Y REGRIAFL RN ER
$8159,0008 T (ZZE-_—F:F) (BA
FEBRETHR)DBEEE -

SHEXERBEEER QR 2022/2023 F3R
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21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Included in other receivables at 31 March 2023 is the receivable from
third party amounted to HK$4,653,000 (2022: HK$21,380,000) which is
attributable to distribution receivables of the investment in film rights
held by the Group during the year and this receivable is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. Having assessed the
financial position of the counter party and the underlying economic
environments, management of the Group considered it appropriate to
make accumulated impairment loss on the receivables of HK$68,000
(2022: HK$404,000) which reversal of accumulated impairment loss on
other receivables amounted to HK$336,000 is charged to profit or loss
in respect of the year.

(d) Included in other receivables at 31 March 2023 is the receivable from
a third party amounted to HK$15,000,000 (2022: HK$15,000,000) which
is attributable to the disposal of assets by GULF ENERGY (CHINA)
LIMITED (formerly known as “H. Sterling Global Energy Limited") prior
to its acquisition by the Group during prior years and this receivable is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. Having assessed
the financial position of the counter party and the underlying economic
environments, management of the Group considered it appropriate to
make impairment loss on the receivables in full in the prior year ended 31
March 2022 which was charged to profit or loss in respect of that year.

Other than the mentioned balances above, HK$31,000
accumulated impairment loss is reversed on other receivable.
Having assessed the financial position of the counter parties
and the underlying economic environments, management
of the Group considered it appropriate to reverse the
accumulated impairment.

Except mentioned above, none of the above assets is either
past due or impaired. The financial assets (after impairment
loss recognised) included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

Movements in the impairment loss recognised on deposits
and other receivables are as follows:

21. TEF#&IE ZEERHEMBEK

/\E

Bt : (88)

(0) RZTE-Z=F=-A=+—H HaEKK
T8 B 15 FE W5 = 75 318 4,653,000%8 7T (=
T — —4:21,380,000/8 7T ) ' TR ARE
ERFAFEEZRIERE D IR FE KK
B-BERREAERE Tt 8 RAE
RERERE - SFERHUFHFOITBM
RMEBBEERRE AEEEEER/
R R IEVEHjE%quWEEﬁaéBOOO,%n
—E - F 404,000 ) HEEE  E
b JiE Uk 3R TE R &1 R (B 85 18 B [21336,000/%
TTEARFEEET MR-
(d RZZTZ=F=A=+—8 HaEKX
BRIFEEEZER(PE)FRAR (A
BIELEREFIERAR])RNBAEFE
WAEEKBIHELEMR —BE=ZH
JE W X 78 15,000,0008 L (Z T == 4F :
15,000,000/ 7T ) + H 7% FE YK T
BT BERARERER K5
TR BRI KB CERE% Zsﬁl
ERABE-_ET-_—_#=A=+—H
I EFEHERFBELEZERERSE
(EZFEBRRPHR) VBEE -

B £ XCPTIR R0 A R 51 - BLE B R
7K R % [031,00078 7T R 51 R B & 18 -
ARG BT 77 &9 A RS A OR Ko 4R B AR O
E&R'f& Zﬁ%. IEWU#J}%@%E‘I—
METDEEE -

1 1 N = = -
FRE-FFALRESRZEREE (H
K%E’EEWHEJEHE)EEE— I £ 3 R
RSk FEWGRIA R R -

BLR @ A i MR R W R AL B
BZEBHIMT:

2023 2022

—Eg-= T _F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET F&T

At beginning of the year REH (15,435) (300)
Impairment loss recognised for the year & AR 2 B (B EE (16,142) (15,135)
At end of the year RER (31,577) (15,435)

The information about the expected credit loss is disclosed
in note 40.

ERRHEEERNE R KRBT
40 o
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31 March 2023
—E-=#=A=+—H

rh 2 Srh =
22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. AR B AERZEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
2023 2022
—E== —F——
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHAT
Investments in convertible bond  AIAAREH IR E (HzEa)
(note a) 17,160 16,314
Investments in securities BHERE
— Equity securities listed - BB LT 2 BRAE
in Hong Kong 173 3,434
17,333 19,748
Details of the bases and assumptions adopted for the fair ZERAABEFABRCEREEN
value measurement of these financial assets at fair value AREFEMRAEERRENS
through profit or loss are set out in note 39. P BT FEI9 ©
Notes: B 5
a. During the prior year ended 31 March 2021, the Group subscribed a. HE_ZT-_—F=A=+—HIBEF
convertible bonds issued by a third party (“the Issuer”), which through B AEERBR-EBFE=7 ([HTAD
its subsidiaries, are principally engaged in energy sectors related BAONARRES BTAZEBBEN
business. BARNERERESATBET -
The convertible bonds held by the Group, which carry interest at 8% N B A B AT R AR (F 5 128% MY F Fi| 3
per annum with the principal amount of US$2,000,000, entitle the 5B AN€ % %2,000,000% T @ AEE
Group, as the bond holder, to convert the bond into approximately (EREBEFFHEAN)BERBESER A
2% of the issued capital of the Issuer (on full conversion). At the TTAKR2%BME BHITIRA (BEEHEE) -
expiration of the conversion period, the convertible bond, if not REREER% - ATRRESR (BRER)
converted, will be redeemed by the Issuer at the principal amount of HEHBETARESSEFEERD -
the bond.
Movements in investments in convertible bond are as follows: ARREFREZESNOT :
2023 2022
—EC-=5§ AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At beginning of the year, at fair value REX IR E 16,314 15,534
Increase in fair value (Note) AR EHE M (KEE) 846 780
At end of the year, at fair value RER BARE 17,160 16,314
Note: The increase in fair value included the interest income of M AREENREATRRESEEZ
USD160,000 generated from the convertible bond. F B U A 160,000 7T ©

=R EEEEEBR AR 2022/2023 3% 187
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REeMBRERME

31 March 2023
i sy = 2= 5| = -—5]

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23. IR RIS ZEY

2023 2022
—Eg-= —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Cash and bank balances B e MIRTTE R 7,403 18,770

At 31 March 2023, the aggregate cash and bank balances
and deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"”) amounted to approximately HK$104,000 (2022:
approximately HK$2,536,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

R-_E-_=F=ZA=+—H KA&H
NARB(TAREDIEBEZRS MR
1THEER VA R T A 49 5104,0007% 7T
— T = —4F: 42,536,000 7T) ° A
RETAERLBAEMER  Rifl:
R IE R B A 3 FINE B 3R AR T A I A B
EERMEEERTE AEBEFSE
BERAETINEER ZRITRIRA
REAEME -

RITREREBEEBERITERNEKGFE
ZERRBANB -EHEMERZT
FHMA-—HE=ZEATF BFAE
BZARKRER/RKME  Wik&EH
EMFERERRBMA B -RITEHRK
FRERROHT EARLEHEE
R ZRIT~

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME

31 March 2023

—E-=F=/8=+—H

24. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
each reporting period, based on the payment due date, is

24. FE{HERTR
RNERERRENRINDE 252 e
NEER BB AATIT -

as follows:

2023 2022

—E-=f —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Within 90 days 90H A 6,325 7,223
91 to 180 days 912180H 3 27
181 to 360 days 1812360H - 1
Over 360 days HiB360H 13 411
6,341 7,662

BNERTTRE R —RKIA (=F
T F I 90R ) NREMIE

25. H e +#RIE - FESTRVIE R
EliEE

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 90-day (2022: 90-day) terms.

25. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND
DEPOSITS RECEIVED

2023 2022
—g-= T

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAT

Amounts due to related parties FET R E A T3R8
(notes 37(c) and 37(d)) (P 7E37(c) %2 37(d) ) 10,982 17,750
Other payables E {th B4 5B 10,829 19,254
Accruals FEst A 14,793 16,216
Deposits received B Wiz e 591 1,073
37,195 54,293
Less: Non-current portion Rk FEBNERER (483) (519)
36,712 53,774

SHAEBEEEB AR AT 2022/2023 £k 189
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REeMBRERME

31 March 2023

gty = 4= = B[ =q-—g

26. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 26. ;TEBE
2023 2022
—Eg-= T
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
ERAE ER A
(%) FHA B F#ET (%) ZIHA B FET
Current
B &3
Unsecured loan, repayable
within one year N/A N/A - 8% 2022 14,609

EEWER R—FREE FER FER

- 14,609

Note: The unsecured loan was denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Miak: EERERABTAE

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. E¥ERE
2023 2022
—E== —F=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Contract liabilities related to: ERTIE=SEY 2 oo
/\Z']E\ﬁ'

Distribution of film sub-licenses BTETHERRE 1,912 2,600
The Group receives payments from customers based on AEEZBENNENNTRZHERE
billing schedule as established in contracts. Payments are FRENMK-EFERE uuj%m LNELS
usually received in advance of the performance under TEXERENTRATEEGORE
the contracts which are mainly from sales of goods and #) 2 BT E 6y -
distribution of film sub-licenses.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue TRINANE A RS B EER
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to HEHNBREENKESE:
carried-forward contract liabilities:
2023 2022
—E== ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue recognised that was included BEEAFVEHNEE
in the contract liabilities balance EERE B FER U A
at the beginning of the year 688 781
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31 March 2023
—E-=#=A=+—H

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 27. 8M AR (5)
Transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts are PRERBITEHNZRZERIITNA
as follows: ™
2023 2022
—F== —FT-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Expected to be recognised AR —F AR
within one year
Film distribution BRET 751 754
Expected to be recognised after one year FE&T I —F & ER
Film distribution BRET 1,161 1,846
Total transaction price allocated to RERDEERET
unsatisfied contracts at end of the year & X KB R FEK 1,912 2,600
28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 28. REHIEE H
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FAZBEEHBEBEZEHUT
as follows:

Depreciation

allowance
in excess
of related Property
depreciation revaluation Total
BiAHEARE
ZIERBE MES G @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT
At 1 April 2021 RZZE-_—FMA—H 1,170 828 1,998
Deferred tax credited SFABRRZ
to the statement of profit ERERE (ME11)
or loss (note 11) 44 = 44
Exchange realignment BE 5, o B - 30 30
At 31 March 2022 RZE_ZF=H=+—8 1,214 858 2,072
Eliminated on disposal S BB A R R 85
of subsidiaries (666) = (666)
Exchange realignment P& X & (153) (80) (233)
At 31 March 2023 RZZE-_=F=A=+—H 395 778 1,173
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31 March 2023
—Z_=%f=H=+—H

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. IEEHIEEE ()

192

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$220,519,000 (2022: approximately HK$219,879,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which these tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and joint
ventures established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries, associate and joint venture
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries, associate and
joint venture will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. There were no temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised at 31 March
2023 (2022: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RBERR AEBRBBEEZM
=+ 1A B3 18 49 5220,519,00078 7T ( —
T~ 4 4219,879,0005 7T ) 0 7] £
REBUKEEAZEBIBARZA
BRERHR N ARAKEBERAETS
BREERT SN T HIEEZEHIEE
B LY ARZEBERERELR
HEE -

REFBECEMETE RPBEAM
RSN E B R RBIMNREE B K
BBABMOREMHR -HREB =
TENF-A-—BRBER LEARN
—ZETEFE+A=+—BHEBZER-
BAR R TR AR R 3 10 B A 4t £
BN B ERDEERIARBIRNZ
BRATER RAKEMS EBRAREX
R5% AREBERAREEFE AN
RIZHMBRABARAERRAR_-ZEE
NE—HA—BREREZ B H PTD KK
BEBAIEIIR -

RZE-_=ZF=ZA=Z=+—HBHEZ=E
T CF=ZA=+—H HMERAEEH
RAB R 2K BRAR BEA
RAIARAERBBHMIENT 2 KE
AR E L 2 B TE I TE M R IE
EREB-ZEFERE LWEWBAR -
AR RALARNARERAT
EoRBEHEAN - R-_ZT-_=F=A4
=t+—H WEEIKERP H A
BARBEMIL A ERELTHEA
BEZERER (T __F:F)o

72N 18 AR R A 2 AR 3 A 25
fEfAEHAR -
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31 March 2023
—E-=#=A=+—H

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HHEBR
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEEE:
Within one year —F R - 676
Within a period of more than one year HBR—FEIEZRN
but not more than two years ™ B fE A - 183
Within a period of more than two years ~ B#EMFETZH
but not more than five years HFEHFARN - 589
Within a period of more than five years HBBEAFHREA - 18,205
- 19,653
Less: Amount due for settlement within BRAR+TZ@EAR
the next twelve months B EAE R FIE - (676)
Amount due for settlement after twelve JEREY B (EIE T
months shown under non-current ARt ZE A&
liabilities I HAE T 0 R I8 - 18,977
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31 March 2023
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. Ig &
2023 2022
—F== =
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Authorised: ERE
10,000,000,000 shares of 10,000,000,0004% & i
HK$0.01 each E180.0178 T 2 I fn
(2022: 10,000,000,000 shares (ZZFE——
of HK$0.01 each) 10,000,000,000/% & &
HEE0.0NEITL Z k%) 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRME:
872,863,684 shares of 872,863,6841% T ik
HK$0.01 each EEO. O'l/ijTEZHx
(2022: 872,863,684 shares (ZZE=——
of HK$0.01 each) 872,863,684H R
E{E0.0178 7T Z B {7 8,728 8,728
There are no movements in the Company's issued share E’\\%ZI_Q__i A=+—Hk=
capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March T__F=ZA=+—BLEE XA
2022. AR BITRAB M EE -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 16 March 2020.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
(i) any director, including any executive or independent
non-executive director or any full time or part time
employee of the Group; or (ii) any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, customers, suppliers, agents,
business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoter and service providers of any member of the
Group.

(¢) Maximum number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme
(i)  Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme as at 16 March 2020
(i.e. the date of passing the resolution for adoption
of the Share Option Scheme): 60,655,368 shares.

(i)  Percentage of the issued shares of the Company
that it represents as at 30 June 2021: 6.95%.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant under the Share Option Scheme
(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any 12-month period
exceeding 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders.

=R EEEEEBR AR 2022/2023 £ 195
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Bl TREITZROBE:
60,655,368/% °

iy RZEBE=-_—®~A=+H
MARRBEETRHOZAE
DL 6.95% °

BREFEIETEEEE
M ETERER LR
() PBRIFEREH A TRIFEML
2@ A BEATE BB
BEITRHZ21% 5 &

% 3

(i) WEMI2EAREARE
EMRIBULIFEATES
ARETAZIHEALR
He@hEgE F@EE %
TP 201% R BERBE
5,000,0007% 7T 78 £ i% = #t
;3



196

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2023
—Z_=%f=H=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

At any time during the option period in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and such other
terms and conditions upon which an option was granted
from the date of grant of the option but in any event not
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors.

()  Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(i) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company and will not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant; and (b) the average closing price
of the Company's shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

The remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme
Approximately 6.5 years (expiring on 15 March 2030).

31. IBRR#ERT S (45)
(e) THERBREZRBIRMGZH

()

(9)

(h)

(i)
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 31. BARAEETEl (15)
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends BRETEETHEABRREXR
or to vote at Shareholders’ meetings. RERE EIRE 2R -
Movements of share options granted under Share Option FRARBBREASRLCBREZ
Scheme during the year are as follows: BEmT
2023 2022
—E== —E_—

Weight Number Weight Number
average  of shares average of shares
exercise issuable exercise issuable

price per under price per under
shares options shares options
R 4% BB B 1 R R i

EBiRWE STFEST Sk A TET
FHTEE ZRHBHE FHTEE BHHA

HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T T BT F &
At the beginning of the year R E 1) 1.33 60,000 = =
Granted during the year FARE - - 1.33 60,000
Lapsed during the year FRKK 1.33 (24,000) - -
At the end of the year RER 1.33 36,000 1.33 60,000
No option granted under the Share Option Scheme were BHE-Z-_=FKR=-ZT=-_F=A
forfeited during both of the years ended 31 March 2023 and =+ —RIEMEFE BELKRE
2022. FERHERT B BB R -

=X EEEEEBR AR 2022/2023 £ 197



198

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2023

gty = 4= = B[ =q-—g

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercisable periods of the share
options granted under Share Option Scheme outstanding as
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023
—E=-=
Number of

shares issuable Exercise price

31. BRAEETE (18)

R 8K R B BB
5K 77 8 2 B IR > 77 {8 1 R 17 {5 B
mF

under options per shares  Exercisable period
R A4 =T P
BTz HE BRITEE 1TEH
000 HK$
Fhx AT
8,000 1.33 1 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
—E--FMNA-HE-¥=—¥=A+/\B
8,000 1.33 4 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
—EC-_-FNANBE-_F=—%(=A+/\BH
20,000 1.33 7 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
—E-_—-FMNAtHE-F¥=—%(=A+/\H
36,000
2022
K]um_be_r of

shares issuable Exercise price

under options per shares Exercisable period
REBERER T
BT ZRMNEA BIRITEE  1TEH
000 HK$
Tz BT
16,000 1.33 1 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
- —FWA-HBHE-ZTE=—F=A+N\AH
16,000 1.33 4 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
TE - —FHAmMAE=ZE=—F=/F+/\H
28,000 1.33 7 April 2021 to 18 March 2031
R —FWOA+tHEZZE=—F=HA+/\H
60,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had options
outstanding to subscribers for approximately 36,000,000 (2022:
60,000,000) shares under the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of approximately 36,000,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company which would give rise to the total proceeds
of approximately HK$47,880,000 (2022: HK$79,800,000).

RMEH R - KNRQ B R E R E 2
% F A8 A #136,000,00000 (ZE ==
£ 1 60,000,00017 ) i ARATE 2 BB AE o
BIBEARRBEEENEE BEITE
W ARITE 2 B AS ERAR R R EIT
4736,000,0000% 58 9N E 3@ % - EE £ AT 1S
FXIE 48 5E 4747,880,0008 T (2= =
£ 179,800,000/ 7T ) ©
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31.

32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

On 19 March 2021, share options to subscribe for 60,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were
granted by the Company to certain Directors, employees
and consultants of the Group, subject to acceptance of
the grantees, under the Share Option Scheme. Each of the
share options shall entitle the holder of the share option to
subscribe for one new ordinary share of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$1.33 per share during the exercisable
period from date of acceptance to 18 March 2031. Such share
options have been accepted by the grantees in April 2021.
Details of the share options granted by the Company are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 March 2021.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Company had approximately 36,000,000
shares issuable under the options, which represented
approximately 4.12% of the Company's shares in issue as at
that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 80 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group at 31 March 2023 and
2022 represents (i) the excess of the nominal value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation on 8 February 1996, over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor; (ii) the
premium arising on the subscription of shares of Elegance
Group Limited (“EGL"), the then holding company of the
Group's subsidiaries existing at that time, at an aggregate
premium of HK$22,000,000 which was credited to the
capital reserve. The Group reorganisation has resulted in
EGL becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
and (iii) the contributed surplus included in the Company’s
reserves (note 41(b)) represents the difference of the amount
of the Company's share capital immediately before the
capital reorganisation and that immediately after the capital
reorganisation during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries in prior years remain eliminated against
consolidated reserves.

31.

32.

AR HERTEl (&)
RZE-_—F=ZA+hHBH ' xRQA
BREBRESTS RAEEETE
E BEENBRNEBELEUIRBEARRQA
60,000,0000% & & F{E0.018 JT #1 &
BROBRE HASEARAZRE
FA{EE-BERER THRERS
EAREEMERE _T=—9F=A8
T NANBZTEHANRITEESRERS
1.3 TRE—RAQAFERRK 2
BEH-EHEEREER - - —F W
BEABRANBEHN ARAFEEZER
B2HEBEHIRARRESHAE T
——F=AFthBZ2R%E-

BERERAMBHRRELEER
AN X A 494 36,000,000% 1R 4% & Az 42
ATHRTZBO HERARBRZ
HEBRITRMAAL12% -

ot ¥
AEEAFERBEFE L REYNE
RAEBEHNERE B REFOE 2

HEEREPHR2D-

—_E_=E R =T ===}
=t+t—H XEBZEXFEHEEORE
B—hAAARNFE-_ANBEFTZAEER
BHAFTWEWEB A 7 2 &5 EE RN
DA BEITEIRZ RO EE 2B
EREIE: (©RELAESENBRAAE R
2EBRAREREBEERAA (5
HEB | )BRODAEERE  RFE
22,000,000 L EFT A B A fREE - A&
BEdASafEERAEA R 2B
BRa kit ARNRREEZ BA
&k (MizE41(b)) BEEZZ=_—F
AT HLEFE BBEEAEAR
ATEZEEEANSHBEARRBR AL
B Z%E o

2%

BEFERBHBARMESEZET
BESREFEGAREYE-
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

3. HEKMEAT

2023 2022
—F-= —ZE=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Net cash outflow on disposal of: HERTREZ
WE ML FHE
- Gold Strong Industrial Limited — e HNEIEFRAA
("Gold Strong”) (note (a)) (r£MeEl)
(FHEE@)) 4,812 —
4,812 -

On 24 October 2022, the Group disposed of 45% equity
interest in a subsidiary, Gold Strong, for an aggregate cash
consideration of approximately HK$21,000,000. Gold Strong
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in trading and
manufacturing of optical frames and sunglasses and property
investment.

R-B__S+A-_tWHA XAKH
A #8235 & R B £921,000,0007% 7T i &
— M8 2 B & F FRAS%H) AL - & 7
BEEREMBARTIERERERELK
BRECEERHERYERE -

The cash consideration to the extent of HK$10,000,000 RZEZ=F=ZA=+—H ' &&
was received by the Group with the remaining outstanding E = Y B3R € X f&10,000,0007% 7T -
balance of HK$11,000,000 remained outstanding at 31 March T &4 e 5&1@ 2 £ #211,000,0007%8 7T 11
2023 and was included in other receivables (Note 21(b)). AEER Wit AH b EUWRIE (K&
21(b)) °
An analysis of consolidated assets and liabilities of Gold Tf’%f?“%‘]ﬁéﬁ’]ﬁﬂ%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁfi&
Strong over which control was lost: BENDT:
HK$'000
FET
Assets &E
Property, plant and equipment M HERRE 24,606
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE 16,311
Investment properties REWMHE 7,272
Inventories rE 167
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERTFRIE 1R & & A b fE Y T IE 454
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEEY 5,188
Liabilities B
Trade payables JE A~ BR 3R (1,475)
Other payables, accruals and deposits received /H\’r{ﬂﬁ’éﬁﬁlﬁ CEEFIARE K
Be (6,132)
Lease liabilities fﬂiaiéﬁ (17,581)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE (666)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 28,144

200 Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME

31 March 2023
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. LEMBAT (&)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W
HK$'000
FET
Cash received B UIR % 10,000
Deferred cash consideration EER 2 RE 11,000
Total cash consideration ReEREETE 21,000
Net assets disposed of BEHEEERE (28,144)
Non-controlling interest disposed of EHEFERER 14,203
Exchange fluctuation reserve released 6 1% 3 REE KOK B i
upon disposal 347
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 12) HEMB ARz e (MiE12) 7,406
An analysis of cash flows from the disposal of subsidiaries as HEMBARMZAESRESNNAT :
follows:
HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration received BB ERE 10,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHERS RIRITHAER (5,188)
Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR 2RE ML FHE 4,812
34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH M. FREXFERERZEBS
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BRI B AT
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material AEERFERFERERZIMER
non-controlling interests are set out below: RGBS AT -
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
—EZ= —EF- =
=A=+-8 =A=+—-~
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Percentage of equity interest held by EER SRR 2 R
non-controlling interests: Bt
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries & F R H B A A 0% 45%
As set out in Note 33, on 24 October 2022, the Group AN E33FTE R E - —F + A
disposed of 45% equity interest in Gold Strong. ZHMAE - AEBEEE S FEAS%R
TE
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34. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 34. B ERFERER ZEB S
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING HRMEAT (&)
INTERESTS (Continued)

2023 2022
—F=-= —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to JEIEE R E DBl 2
non-controlling interests: REZmA,
(B1E)
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries ®HEREWE R A 31,721 (5,134)
Accumulated balance of non-controlling R #Rk4 B BT iR
interests at the reporting dates: Z REHEER
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries © FEREWE R A - (16,409)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed

are before any inter-company eliminations:

Gold Strong and its subsidiaries

TRET Lt b8~ A 2 B 7% & R
2o ES R AN A AL H

Rl Z &8

SRR EMBAE

Period from

1 April 2022
to 24 October Year ended
2022 31 March 2022
B=®F=-—%
A—B#EE H=E
—g-= —F-=
+A=+mA —HA=+—H
1EHAME HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Revenue Wz 12,745 30,688
Total expenses S A58 (22,627) (42,097)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEHEHN, (EE) 70,491 (11,409)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ANEETHBEEE 65,026 (12,122)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from & & EE) (FTfEZ),/
operating activities EACZRE®REFH (5,695) 2,561
Net cash flows generated from HEEBESE
investing activities BenEFa - 1,844
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash IR& RIESZED
equivalents CRA) /HEinFEE (5,695) 4,405

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

mEEE
FRBEE
mEBIE
FRBEME

31 March 2022
g
=A=+—H
12,498
57,504
(87,294)
(19,173)
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35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 35. GEBERBERMEE
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (a) EXEMETHNERE
activities L)
Interest-bearing Lease
borrowings liabilities
AREE HEAR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
At 1 April 2021 RZE-Z—FMA—H 23,396 20,041
Changes from financing cash flows Bt&ER & R=E & (8,787) (1,001)
Interest paid included in A EE R
operating activities B A = (658)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 5 B = 1,271
At 31 March 2022 RZE——
=A=+—H 14,609 19,653
At 1 April 2022 R-ZE-——FMA—H 14,609 19,653
Changes from financing cash flows BEREREE (14,609) (2,072)
Interest paid included in ALK EE R
operating activities ERFE - (522)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries | & Hff & A 7] FF £ §5 - (17,581)
At 31 March 2023 A —
=A=+—~H - -
(b) Major non-cash transaction (b) EEFREXS
During the prior year ended 31 March 2022, the Bz E-_—_F=A=4+—
disposal receivable, which represents the balance of the HIEBEFE EBREERE
consideration amounted to HK$20,135,000 for disposal (BHEAEBERBTFELE
by the Group of a subsidiary in prior years and deposit —AMBEARIBEENRELLR
received amounted to RMB17,000,000, which represents 20,135,000 7t) R B iz & A
the balance received for the disposal to another K #17,000,0007T (#§ A AR 2 A]
subsidiary of the Company, were offsetted upon the 5 — M E R & &R 4
completion of foreign currency remittance procedures. #) B R INE B R F B T K%K
BH

=R EREEEEBR AR 2022/2023 3 203



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2023
i sy = 2= 5| = -—5]

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to the

fEBHAEA

36. EEHLHRHE

$;‘%*ETE%“%A"HZ’JkHFTH%E&Q

consolidated financial statements) under operating lease ME (e BmERMTE16) AEM

arrangements, with the leases negotiated for terms ranging
from two to three years. The terms of the leases also require
the tenant to pay security deposits and provide for periodic

%u?ﬁﬁﬁ

EHHEEE -

rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market

conditions.

At 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Group had total

%
I
A

F o AR E K
MPXMERZS IREBEERFTR

T_=F=-ZA=+—HBEZ=ZZ

future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable T THF=ZA=Z+—H AEBEBREHE

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

HH P AT 7 89 A 0 48 2 1 4O e I

ARZFEESEBINHBRWOT

2023 2022
—E== —=F=-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ER FET

Within one year —FR 1,286 1,363
In the second to fifth years, ZEFRFR

inclusive (BREEREMF) 988 1,628

2,274 2,991
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with a director of certain

subsidiaries of the Company

The Group leased the properties from Million Wave
Limited (“Million Wave"”) for a monthly rental of April
2022 to March 2023. Mr. Hui Leung Wah (“Mr. Hui"),
the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, is
the beneficial owner of Million Wave. The amount of
rental paid by the Group for the current year in respect
of leasing of the properties amounted to HK$1,138,160
(2022: HK$1,182,480), which has been included in
"administrative expenses” of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, a property was
rented by the Group from Mr. Hui, for the use by a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, Mr. Poon
Sui Hong, as accommodation. The total rental paid by
the Group amounted to HK$900,000 in respect of each
of the years.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
purchased inventories of HK$6,358,000 from Gold
Strong, a former subsidiary related to Mr. Hui after the
date of disposal.

(b) Outstanding balances with a joint venture

Details of the loan to a joint venture granted by the
Group as at the end of the reporting period are included
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

(c) Outstanding balance with the spouse of a
subsidiary’s director
Included in other payables, accruals and deposits
received at 31 March 2023 is amount due to the spouse
of Mr. Hui amounted to approximately HK$7,833,000
(2022: approximately HK$15,281,000) which is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

(d) Outstanding balance with directors of
subsidiaries
Included in other payables, accruals and deposits
received at 31 March 2023 are amounts due by the
Group to Mr. Yu Wing Lung and Mr. Zheng Jian Xiong,
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company, of
HK$1,772,000 (2022: HK$1,772,000) and HK$1,377,000
(2022: HK$697,000) respectively. Such amounts due
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

37. AEALRS
B UL SR A B IS 1R A 36 ) B
2R SN AEBRERAE T 5 H

BALTZRS:

(a) BAATEFHBATZ
—BREEZXS
AEFBR-_ZTE-_—_FWWAE=
E_=F=ZAMMEERAT
((MmE|)HEEYWHE UK AX
NS AXARETHEBRRAZE
EF=ELRE([FEE]) AR
ENEaEEA - AEBRAFE
MHEEMEmMSI N Z2EAESRE

£1,138,1608 T (Z T = —F :
1,182,480/ L) » HE S A4 &
BamixP 2z [1THREAX] -

BE_T_=—fF=-A=t+—HI1
FE-AEERAFLEEEE B
ME  ARARBE THEBRG
ZE%)%JI:J?G‘EEFHT’EEE°$
& & X i #2718 £900,0007%

FH%HFF

BHE_ZT_=—F=-A=+—H1
FE - AEERTHEBHEZERH
FhREEBEZAINBRRISFE
8% 56,358,000/ TR & °

(b) H—RAEATZRMEE

REBET LS ATERR
R > B A A B 5 3R
KEFEE18 o

(c) B—ZMBASIMEFE

o 8 1 257 - JE;HF IE&EHAZ&
A@%Tﬁ#f&iﬁaﬁ%z T8 4
7,833,000 L (ZE - —F: 4
15,281,000/ 70 ) * sZ K18 A E K
bR ﬁé&/,ﬁz%/wm

(d) fﬁiﬁﬁgg"‘liizm &8
R-E-_=Z=F=ZA=+—8"
HMEMNRIE EAZERE R
&é@%ﬁ$'§lﬁ1ﬁ$ﬂaﬂ%
FHBRAAESERXKELLER
Zheng Jian Xiongst 4 2 IE D
B1,772,0008 T ( Z & = —F:
1,772,000 7T ) & 1,377,000/ 7T
ZFE 697,000 T)
ﬁ) EEEMFEAEEM &

NBREREE-

SHEXERBEEER QR 2022/2023 F3R
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(e) Compensation of key management

(f)

personnel of the Group

37.FAEANTES (E)
(e) g%z%%ﬂxézm

2023 2022
—FEZ= —E-Z

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Short term employee benefits REEEEA 802 8,020
Equity-settled share-based VARE 25 45 B 1) LARR D /5

payments HEEE B R - 18,936

Post-employment benefits RIKEF 18 135
Total compensation paid and MEEBEBRAELMR

payable to key management FE 2 Bl 4258
personnel 820 27,091

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Disposal of a property with a close family
member of a director of certain of the
subsidiaries of the Company

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company disposed of its investment
properties to Power Zone Development Limited
("Power Zone") for a consideration of approximately
HK$15,850,000. Ms. Hui Sze Man, the daughter of Mr.
Hui Leung Wah (a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company), is the beneficial owner of Power Zone.

Upon completion of the property disposal, the Group
leased back the property as short term lease from
Power Zone for a monthly rental of HK$40,000 for the
period from 1st February 2022 to 31st January 2023. The
amounts of rental paid by the Group to Power Zone for
the current year in respect of leasing of the property
amounted to HK$400,000 (2022: HK$80,000), which
has been included in “administrative expenses” of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The related party transactions as set out above also
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

EEMeE—SHBERGEAH
BERRMFE10 -

(f) HEXASZ2ETHEL
SEFEREBZUE

HE-_Z-_—_F=A= +—E|
LtEE ARRZ2EWER
H%Et&%i#@%ﬁ%%@kﬁ%éﬁ
BRAR(TEE]) RELA
15,850,000/ 7T ° FF e #E L 4 (K
NAETHBARZESR)ZK
RAFIRLTERE 2 ESER
/\o

ROELERTKE  AEE AR
EAMEEEEHESE K=
T _F#-_A—BE=_Z2=-_=
F—A=Z+—BHHEEAES
40,0008 0 AN E B A F E 5
THT#’/JJ%WUZWEZHZ?HE&M
18 /400,000 L (Z T = ZF:
80,0008 ) HEB A A4 A 18
HERPZMITHEAX] -

EXFERBEALTRSIER L
MRAUEVAEMAREBER S
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. REEI9ZzE&£R TR

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEHR SHEeMITAZKREA
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as R
follows:
31 March 2023 —E-_=#=H=+—H
Financial assets tTHEE

Financial

assets at fair
value through Financial assets at

profit or loss amortised cost Total
BARE
FABERZ REHEAE
SHEE  HEZEMEE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER THEL TiER
Trade receivables & U B X - 6,416 6,416
Financial assets included in prepayments, STABMRIE R REM
deposits and other receivables ERREZ @REE - 27,428 27,428
Financial asset at fair value through ROAEFAERZ e REE
profit or loss 17,333 - 17,333
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReZED - 7,403 7,403
17,333 41,247 58,580
Financial liabilities EA =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
1% 1 55 B A
JfRZEMERE
HK$'000
TF#ET
Trade payables JE 1~ BR K 6,341
Financial liabilities included in other ST LAt FE 5 R0 - FE AT RRIE K
payables, accruals and deposits received BhRezemAaR 22,402
28,743
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)
31 March 2022

Financial assets

38. IREFERHEINZ2ERMTI R (E)

—E¥__fF=HA=+—H

TREE
Financial
assets at fair

value through  Financial assets at

profit or loss amortised cost Total
BAR
HFABEZ REHEK A
SREE TEZEREE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET AT TAT
Trade receivables JE Uk BR 3K = 10,203 10,203
Financial assets included in prepayments, SFABMFER REREM
deposits and other receivables BURFEZEBEE - 23,386 23,386
Financial asset at fair value through BRRBHABRZEREE
profit or loss 19,748 = 19,748
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEESED = 18,770 18,770
19,748 52,359 72,107
Financial liabilities WA
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
birg: 3l PN
MRz em AR
HK$'000
TAT
Trade payables FESBR 3R 7,662
Financial liabilities included in other FTAE AL REIE  EETRUA K
payables, accruals and deposits received ke et aE 38,074
Lease liabilities HEAE 19,653
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE 14,609
79,998
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY  39. EEEIE-Z’ATMEE’ATME

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [Z 4R

The Group's finance team headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The finance team reports directly to the financial controller.
At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial controller.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
borrowings as at 31 March 2022 was assessed to be
insignificant.

Financial assets measured at fair value
The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss are based on quoted market prices.

The fair values of investments in film production has been
calculated by discounting the cash flow to capture the present
value of the expected future economic benefits to be derived
from the investment, based on an appropriate discount rate.

The fair values of convertible bonds has been calculated by
discounting the cash flow to capture the present value of the
expected future economic benefits to be derived from the
convertible bonds, based on an appropriate discount rate.

AEENMBRERE 2B NER
BEETERTARAEMEZBRER
BF -MBPNEAERAMGAEER-
REREAH BB IESITERT

W A BUE - (R ARG M 5 A BB R dit
E-RERENERAEREZESSE
FETMR® AEP PR FEH
FERER o

TMEERABZAABRZEMT
ERNBEREHENRS GEBEHIB
BUHRE) PRI RBZ SR fb&t
AAERRBATHERRR:

R-_EBE-_—_F=A=+—H XA&EEH
K2 EEBEZENRBTHAT

o

e
St

BARBHEZSRMERE
BRARBEHABERS RS
AAEHERTIEREHHE -

N

ERYRERBEZAANETERREE
MARKRERBURIART L KB X
REMEEZBHARAREEND 2R
EmarH -

AMBREFZAABNEBEEENR
BEREREREBRUAFTLESG B TR
BESHEEZERRREEMEZ
BEMHE -
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 39. £€RiTHRAZARERARE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) Bk (&)
Fair value hierarchy AREELR
The following table gives information about how the fair TREHKNOETZECREEAN
values of these financial assets are determined (in particular, EMEH (FR2HERMEAER
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used). B8 A BRIR ) ©

As at As at

31 March 31 March Fair value Valuation technique(s)
2023 2022 hierarchy and key input(s)

RZBZZ& RZT-=F
ZHE+-B ZA=t—-H AREER FHEERARBEHARE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET TR

Investments in securities (equity 173 3434 Level 1 Valuation technique:
securities listed in Hong Kong) EAE (EYIEY R
FHRE (BB LT ZRAESR) Quoted bid prices in an active market
EERTISMEEAEB
Investments in film production - - Level3 Valuation technique:
EXHERE ERE (EEE YK
Discounted cashflow
BRRENE
Key unobservable inputs:
Basis of selection for the comparable
films, discount rate and the underlying
cash flows, in particular future revenue
of the films
BRITBERGARE:
BRERBEY AL BAXRIEH
RBeng LAREFZHARMKE
Investments in convertible bond 17,160 16,314 Level 3 Valuation technique:
BREFRE F3Mh (EEE YK
Discounted cashflow
ERBEERE
Key unobservable inputs:
Discount rate and future cash inflow
BRIIBERGANE:
REERARRAERA
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 39. ﬁﬂngﬁﬁ‘E&ﬁjﬁ‘E
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) B4 (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ARERBE (E)
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value FEIRAR BT EZH AR
measurement
Investments Investments
in film in convertible
production bond Total
CEY L
ENHERSE B&E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT FHET
At 1 April 2021 RZZE-_—FWA—H 61,164 15,534 76,698
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in RIEZBRZARE
profit or loss (Note b) (B1R) Mz (Fiskb) (42,764) 780 (41,984)
Transfer to other receivables 73 R B B 38 = Lt JE W SRR
on distribution (21,380) = (21,380)
Exchange realignment TR 2,980 — 2,980
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 RZEZZF=H=+—H
B-T-——&mA—A - 16,314 16,314
Fair value gain recognised in RERERLDAE
profit or loss (Note b) Wz (MisEb) = 846 846
Exchange realignment BE 382 - - -
At 31 March 2023 RZZE_==H=+—H - 17,160 17,160
(@) During the current year and the prior year, there were (@) RAFEREL—FE ©o@EE

REBABEZAABHELER
FIRRE2R 2HEE TEE
ATKE I F34R -

RIB&=ER 2 A it (B U %846,000
BTHAFEREAHAIRRE
SHREBEB(ZE-__F: 2K
H §51842,764,000/8 7T & A £ &
Ui %5780,00078 7T 9 Bl 1 B 2 RUAE
KRERIBERERKERTR) -
REWREEET AR MU A R UES (FT

no transfers of fair value measurements between Level
1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities.

(b)  Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss amounting (b)
to HK$846,000 relate to investments in convertible
bond (2022: Fair value loss of HK$42,764,000 and fair
value gain of HK$780,000 relate to investments in
film production and investment in convertible loan
respectively) held at the end of the current year. The fair
value gain are included in other income and gains (note

6). i36) °
Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not WHEAABTENEREER
measured at fair value tRaes

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
approximate their fair value. The fair value, which included in
Level 3 category, have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing model based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the
discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables, accruals and
deposits received, lease liabilities and interest-bearing
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
in a timely and effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Most of the Group's sales were denominated in United
States dollars while expenditures incurred in the operations
of manufacturing plants and capital expenditures were
denominated in RMB. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. Management closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will further consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group's loss before tax and the Group's equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

40. BB EGEEBEHEBR

AEENTZESHM T ABEREARR
RRABNREZEMEE RELHE
EBREB - BRAABFABRSE LS
REE R LREFED BHK
oAt AEMBEN I B KA RE
WeseeRBE HEAEBERE
EE-ZE2MITANFBERENE
AT -EZEem T AGANER
BEMSAR (B8 ER 7 =Rk
Hu@ERER) EERRERABHES
BBz o AR OB A% 3 LR O BROSR B B 3 ©
AEBEEEEEREYERZFERIMA
BRMGEBEEEERE-

I EE Ja B

AEBEEBRERZEERR ZFAR
DRKEEMIRZ EMI T B IS
EREEMELE - AKBARBOHE
ASETHIME A EMEEEMES
A REARFEXTIAAREIIE &K
SEREAEIRAIEE R B
BEEZYERIIERR YHRE
FBERE-SZELHPEAINERR -

TRERRNBEPREMBHME
RS MARBEXRTREERS
BEB BT - ANE B R A E S
EAGEEER (HEBEERABER
REHERES) 2HRE-

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
RMB rate  loss before tax equity*
AREEE BRRiEE i
LH/(TE) dm, (BD) i,/ (ED)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAET FAT
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-BE-=f
ZA=Z+—-HLEE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT AAREEE 5 (816) (816)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB /875 5L A R B FHE (5) 816 816
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-E-_CHF
ZA=Z+—-HILEE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB WETAARERE 5 (1,533) (1,533)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB a8 70 5 A R EFE (5) 1,533 1,533

*  Excluding retained profits * TEERE R
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's bank deposits
with floating interest rates. The Group regularly reviews and
monitors the floating interest rate in order to manage its
interest rate risks. The directors have reviewed the Group's
interest-bearing financial instruments and determined that the
Group has no significant interest rate risk.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks
is being undertaken globally, including the replacement
of some interbank offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative
nearly risk-free rates. There is no impacts on the Group's
risk management strategy arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform and the progress towards implementation
of alternative benchmark interest rates as the Group have
no instruments bearing interest at IBOR as at 31 March 2023.
The Group is closely monitoring the market and managing
the transition to new benchmark interest rates, including
announcements made by the relevant IBOR regulators.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year.

A 50 basis points increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's loss for
the year ended 31 March 2023 would decrease/increase by
HK$370,000 (2022: decrease/increase by HK$939,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate bank deposits (2022: bank deposits).

4o?ﬁﬂm4ﬂﬁhnmﬁ

) 2 a1 B
AEBFAASTENREHRARER
EAKBERRITFRBEM - AKE
EHmEa REEZFHNRAEEET
ZER - BEECRAKEFTEESRT
BEETERIRA/ANEEL &S KT
RER

EREEH TN REEETRAM
HE BRAETERRNERMEX
BRETRTRAZFHE ([RTAXE
HRED) ~MERELENE R B REEF
%E@EE@?’E‘EEH¥T$%IHKEE
RBELXE REASAKER =

—=Ff=H=1— EII?%EHI,E\HZ
RITAEREFA B -AKELEZY
ERMBERERRAMELENREE
BREEBRITRAXFEEEHBIEL

Z/’\ﬁ:o

THBREDMDERITERIEITE
TEARBEMRONXEARET -5t
FREBEMS BRI IHERENH
THRRAREERBENEERE2FARY
REEMRR -

EREBAEEEEABERFERR
B 8 BSOEE SR RREEE
I 3% 0 T B A TR B I OB -

WA RS H PRES0E R BT A H
HmEERFIAE MAEEHE-Z
T =ZHF=ZA=+—HLEFENERE
TLHHZ/J/»{‘M:WOOOO/%E(—v—:

", 1% I1939,0005% 7T ) - It Jh
%HHEQZXE@EU/%ufETTﬁ (77
T ZF IRITER) EERA R E R
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

40. M EMEE BERB%
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

214

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL. For equity
securities measured at FVTPL quoted on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, management of the Group manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The management monitors the price risk
by timely review of investment portfolio and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 1, the sensitivity rate is
maintained at 20% in current year.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
20% (2022: 20%) higher/lower, the post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2023 would decrease/increase by HK$52,000
(2022: decrease/increase by HK$687,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of equity investments at FVTPL.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group's policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

"E

H th {5 5 2L P&t
AEERERENR AR EFAER
FH 8 2 BANRE 75 M [ bR A AN (B AR L
RREBEBMEXSMBERABREN
BARBEF ARG EZBRAZSM
EAKEEEEAEAR —AEET
AERsIKEEAAERLERR T
EEEERRRIREEAEIZEER
R4 E BN E RRERRER -

BRE DT TR BER & B B AT B
ZBRANEBRRMETE O ESE
MZBERNRETENRAESHGRE
DM AFEFRELZERS
20% -

in SRS T AER EFTB20% (=
T F:20%) AEBE_ZT_=F
AT BULEEEZRBEEERS
CERARAABEFABZZRERE
Z AR EEB) MR D, 1% 52,0005
T (ZT=Z—F /jd 1 687,000
BIT) °

S8R
AEFREHRERVEEFEECHRITZ
E=ZFLHEATETRSG - AEE
ZBRRMARBREETAETESR
ZEF HARBEEZERF U
B - 2N 5= B 5 48 BE 51 B WK R BRFE - X
AEEZRERRILENEK -

AEBHEMeREE (BREAS MR
EEEMARFAARMNRIE RER
HphEUHRE2ERMEE) ZEER
RAEAXZH T ZREES TARR
MERZETLAEZKEE-
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(i)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. MRS EE B EREBUR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EEREM (&)
Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits (i) E_%ELI&EEQ’ HEKRRERIZ
Trade receivables JEW AR
The Group applies the simplified approach to provide AEEEABEMBRELUE
for expected credit losses for trade receivables OSRIEEM B A E (K AR
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the FrEEWERK (R 2B EE
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. BHE)MERERNTEREES
Bt iREE-
As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the loss e — <= — =y — S|
allowance for trade receivables was determined as E_F=ZA=1+—H EKE
follows: FOEBEEREBERE Ty SIBEE
E e
Less than
Neither one month to Over
past due three months three months
nor impaired past due past due Total
BHLR
—ERAE g Gl iyl
KM B E =R ={@An @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THERT FHET
31 March 2023 —EC-=E
=HA=+-—H
Expected loss rate EHEEX 1.4% 1.9% 62.3%
Gross carrying amount  BREAA(E 3,996 1,645 2,282 7,923
Loss allowance ERERE (56) (31) (1,420) (1,507)
Less than
Neither  one month to Over
past due  three months  three months
nor impaired past due past due Total
—EAZE AR
AR E =EA ={&A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FET FET
31 March 2022 —FZ-C
=A=+-—H
Expected loss rate BB R 0% 0% 36%
Gross carrying amount REAE 3,487 1,095 7,664 12,246
Loss allowance B E - - (2,043) (2,043)

The above expected credit losses also incorporated
forward looking information.

R B A RS R AT
T

SHABEBEEBGFR QAT 2022/2023 £ 215



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBRERME

31 March 2023
i sy = 2= 5| = -—5]

216

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 0. U R EEEHFEEBK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE (&)
(i) Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits i) EWERR HMOEWRERIREZE
(Continued) & (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) JEW B (4E)

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

o internal credit rating;
J external credit rating;
o actual or expected significant adverse changes

in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
customer’s ability to meet its obligations;

J actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/customer;

o significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the customer, including changes
in the payment status of customer in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
customer.

Other receivables and deposits

The Group uses four categories for deposits and
other receivables which reflect their credit risk and
how the loss provision is determined for each of those
categories. These internal credit risk ratings are aligned
to external credit ratings.

AEBEEEENIGREREZ R
BT R RN & RS B
SEEREERRBE O BEL
m-EFHEERRESRER
e AEELBERBEERE
EHLEONER B Y)AFER
BHMEQRR REHEEER

FMAERAXKNAEER-
NTHEEFEEHEE:

s  AMEEFR:
o HNEMEERFAR:

s ERTAMIEBRHAMNZE
AR ~ B T AR 0 M A 0 3R
BHRONEARTHE LAY
EREFPEEEBNREN
EEEAEL:

s BHBA/BRPHEERR
ERELERERRELE
REL:

« EPEMERAETAE
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FHRRER M ECTIRP
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits

(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits (Continued)
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group's
expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
L)

Group's definition
of categories

FREFAENNES

EEBREBE

(f‘é")

12=.'1§J§ll3§i< &)

(i) WER X - Hfth E U FRIB R 3R
% (&)

A ERABARIKE (&)

AEEEHEEBEEAMNIAR

BT
Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

ERANEEEREHENEE

Performing

RAR T

Underperforming

RARE

Non-performing
KRR

Write-off

Customers have a low risk of default and a
strong capacity to meet contractual cash
flows

EFNEORRRBERENAGAORERE
GO

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk: significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if interest
and/or principal repayments are 90 days
past due

(EEEN N R ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
BEMNE R/ FAE Al fE“” sERBA
bE 2

Interest and/or principal repayments are
365 days past due
B HERFERFAE

Interest and/or principal repayments
are two years past due or there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery

FER/JASEFTABEMEXFFENR
[ &) & 72 78 5

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less than
12 months, expected losses are measured
at its expected lifetime

REANERER - HRERFEPEI2E
AZRMEBEE BHERERHEESNEFSE
Bt e

Lifetime expected losses

FHIRHEE

Lifetime expected losses
FHIRHEE

Asset is written off

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the
Group considers historical loss rates for each category
of deposits and other receivables and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data.

SHEXERBEEER QR 2022/2023 F3R

$%E@@&%%%%Ef%%
@%%k%ﬁﬂ L E Rk A
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁf%’
HiRe R EAME
<Pk BT RE

REE IA%J@
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables, other receivables and deposits
(Continued)

Concentration of credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk and the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets is derived from its trade receivables, loan and
interest receivables, deposits and, other receivables, and
cash deposits at banks.

The credit quality of the debtors is assessed based
on their financial positions, past experience and other
factors. The Group has policies in place to ensure
credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 24% (2022: 25%) and 75%
(2022: 83%) of the Group's trade receivables were due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively, within the Europe, America
and the PRC (including Hong Kong) regions. However,
the Group concludes that the credit risk in relation to
these customers is not significant because they have no
history of default in recent years. The Group’s historical
experience in collection of receivables falls within
recorded allowance and the directors do not expect any
additional material impairment on trade receivables, and
receivables from other counterparties.

Receivables that aged less than 360 days substantially
related to various customers that has a good trade
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change quality and the
balance are still considered fully recoverable.

Cash at bank and bank deposits
The table below shows the details of bank deposit
balances maintained at the end of the reporting period:

40. %g)ﬁlﬂﬁ%&ﬁ%&ﬁm%&
SRR (5)

(i)

U AR - H b UK TA R %
% (&)

£ EERR
AEEHEEERR UEAE
BReHEEFBZANEER
ok B HEWERR BERERR
FE W B 1R 2 I H b B UK IR
REBITHRE T

BEBANGEEZLENRERES
Bk AELRREMEE
i Bl o AN 5 B 7R B UK DA R AR
A SEEBARHEER KR
HFHR - BARAEE 2 EWERK
Hh24a% (ZE - _F:25%) &%
75% (ZE = —F:83%) 2 R
BARSERBUN - EMEFE (R
REB) SR ZEARAARE
F WAEEEETEFEER
EEMEERBRYTER IHE
BERDFWEELHLE - RIF
AEEM BT B LB B
HEWABEMRTHRE ME
= TE B JE AR 3R R R S b
FTRREE T BREMEME
N EER

FRiir D IN360R M EWRIE L B
HEREANEEE RIFR 5
MEFAR -REBEER &
ERRBEARZEERTIRRE
BE IR EEERYEEAHE
HEAERDBE /A 2HKE -

BRITRERBITER
TRINTNRERRFENRT
TF G RHF1E -

2023 2022

—E-= —==-=
Rating HK$'000 HK$'000
4R THET FET
Cash at banks and bank deposits A3 - Aa2 2,571 14,048
RITHE RJITER Baal - Baa2 4,832 4,537
7,403 18,585

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2022/2023 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME

31 March 2023

—E-=fZfA=+-FH

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. B %5/ e E 12 B 1R BB SR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

Credit risk (Continued) EERME (&)

(i) Cash at bank and bank deposits (Continued) (i) MITHELSRBIER(E)
The rating represents long-term credit rating provided AfErE (—BERRA
by Moody’s, an internationally recognised credit rating EETAREB) RENKRBEE
agency. Credit rating with a minimum of “Baa2” are TFR-BPEFRHNETHRER
judged to be upper-medium grade and are subject to [Baa2| IEERIBR A LE&K
low credit risk under the rating regime of Moody's. Given EERBIE ERKIH AR
that significant portion of the bank deposits are placed BRIFHRREBLFRAERE
with banks that are independently rated with high credit BEAAEBERBEFENERENR
rating with no default history in past years, management EHRIT AEEERERRR
of the Group considers that the credit risk on the bank THRAERRTERNEERRE
balances and bank deposits is limited. R o

Liquidity risk mENE 2 B IS

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEBRARELRDESRETAE

a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the ERHEsRERRAEAR -ZTAZEE

maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets TRITANTREE (MEWER) 2

(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from FMEREBcAARERE -

operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between AEEBZERREBERBITERR

continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank BEESHEREREE 2HERT

loans. The Group's policy is to minimise borrowings. B AEB s BRARERIBEE-

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at REBRBEHREZEFTHERUE

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual NREEFEZeREBEI A RN

undiscounted payments, is as follows: Ik
2023
—E-=&§
Over Carrying
On demand 1 year Total amount at
or less than  but less than Over undiscounted 31 March
12 months 5 years 5 years cash flows 2023
R-B-=%
EER eil1E KR =A=+-H
Div12{8 A {BHR5E BiBsE HeRELH HARE {E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TET TER
Trade payables JERTBR R 6,341 - - 6,341 6,341
Financial liabilities AR EFRE
included in other payables, EEFEREKEEZ
accruals, and deposits received & EIEE 22,402 - - 22,402 22,402
28,743 - - 28,743 28,743
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The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from that of the
prior year.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. M5B PR EE H IR EBUR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mENESRME (F)
2022
—E-Zf
Over
On demand 1 year Total Carrying
orlessthan  but less than Over  undiscounted amount at
12 months 5 years 5 years cash flows 31 March 2022
i s
R BB1F ABHE =ZA=+-H
SR12{8 A BHRSE BESE HEeNBRE MEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTEL THT TR TET
Trade payables FERTBR R 7,662 - - 7,662 7,662
Financial liabilities AT AE M B FUE -
included in other payables, B FEREKZEE 2
accruals, and deposits received SRERE 37,555 519 - 38,074 38,074
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,391 2,969 26,245 30,605 19,653
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 14,609 - - 14,609 14,609
61,217 3,488 26,245 90,950 79,998
Capital management EXERE

AEBEAERZTIBZEBRARER
SEHAGBRELZE 2RI RERRRE
MBERLE R U HEERRIERK
REE-AKEMEERMEE EFR

AEEREEERAZEHMERE
AEBLMAFAE - BBREFHAZRE
AEER AEE g FHEmREIRE
2B AR E R B & A sk B 1T
D AEBEAITMAIRIEZE
RERKPR - RBE_T==FR=
T _FZA=Z+—HLEFER &
BEAZBEZ BERNKEBFILELRE

=8 e
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

41. AT ZHBIRAFT

2023 2022
—EF=-= -T2
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BE REAE - 5
Investments in subsidiaries (note a) REB AR Z®RE
(FftzEa) 75,768 107,264
75,768 107,269
CURRENT ASSETS MENAE
Prepayment, deposits and BRZKE RE Rk
other receivables H 4th JiE U FR I8 7.514 18,100
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEED 1,070 4,169
8,584 22,269
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEaE
Other payables and accruals H A 8t 3R TR K e AT
A 3,094 3,476
3,094 3,476
NET CURRENT ASSETS MBEEFE 5,490 18,793
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRHDERE
LIABILITIES 81,258 126,062
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Due to subsidiaries T B A A (26,461) (26,461)
Net assets BEFE 54,797 99,601
EQUITY HE2S
Share capital % Z< 8,728 8,728
Reserves (note b) EE (MisEb) 46,069 90,873
Total equity o B FE 54,797 99,601

RRABNHMBIRARCEEZTEN —
TC=FRA=TRE R ET

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 June

2023 and is signed on its behalf by: WHNATATRAZEE:
Chung Yuk Lun Cheng Chun Man
ET BiRER
Director Director
EF EF
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 41. KA ZHBIRRAF (E)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: B 5
(a) Included in investment in subsidiaries are amount due from (a) JE Uk BT BB A &) FXIE 4939,916,0007%8 7T (=
subsidiaries of approximately HK$39,916,000 (2022: approximately T = T4 1 #946,682,0007 7T ) 5 AR B
HK$46,682,000). DREIZERE
(b) A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: (b) RARZ FEEMEMOT
Share premium Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
R 53 it (8 AR BB BithsiE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHT
At 1 April 2021 KW-B-—4mA—A 247,085 212,481 (365,934) 93,632
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZERAZAE
expense for the year - - (2,759) (2,759)
At 31 March 2022 R-ZE-——%=A=+—-8 247,085 212,481 (368,693) 90,873
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZERAZAE
expense for the year - - (44,804) (44,804)
At 31 March 2023 R-E=-=%=A=1-8 247,085 212,481 (413,497) 46,069
The Company's contributed surplus at 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=ZA=+—H K27
represents the difference between the consolidated net ZEARBRESREERNR—NANAREF
asset value of EGL on 8 February 1996, the day on which its ZANB (KRR ERBEMR 32 2
entire issued share capital was acquired by the Company AEESFHARBEEIEBHITRAZ
pursuant to the Group reorganisation referred to in note 32, HIzimeEEFEREREBWE
and the nominal amount of the Company's shares issued in FEHE7REMBITZ ARG EE
consideration for such acquisition. ZHEZZEH -
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), BEABRE-NAN—F28E (K&
the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to ) ARRBZHABBARETER
shareholders under certain circumstances. THIKTARE -
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Particulars of Properties

MRFER

31 March 2023
—E-=%=ZA=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BREME
Applicable
interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
FEE
I B A& 7HE FEILHE R
B1, 6th Floor, Block B, Industrial Medium 100%
Mai Hing Industrial Building,
16—18 Hing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
B Iz h BA
JLBEEE
B2 5161857
FETHKNE
BEEGIEBTZE
B5, 4th Floor, Block B, Industrial Medium 100%

Mai Hing Industrial Building,
16-18 Hing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
BB I B
B2 16185
EETHANE
BEEAIEBSZE

=R EEEEEBR AR 2022/2023 F£3f 223
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Particulars of Properties
MEFER

31 March 2023
i sy = 2= 5| = -—5]

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Location Use

#h 24 A&

wREME (15)

Tenure

1

Applicable
interest of
the Group
AEE
FE{L LS

House No. 203 and Vacant
two car parking spaces,
Boulevard Du Lac,
The Beverly Hills,
23 Sam Mun Tsai Road,
Tai Po, New Territories
Hong Kong
BB =E
ARKHE
= PIFRE235%
LEZE R 1L Rl 22
=B
2 B 2035 Rk M & & A1

Shop 240 on 2nd Floor, Commercial
China Travel Commercial City,
No. 219 Zhong Shan Wu Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, The PRC
FEERE (EES
&N T S [
AL ER2195%
L iGEE S
% [B2405% &8

N/A

Medium

ik
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